
City ofBridgeport Connecticut

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK
LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

45 Lyon Terrace Bridgeport Connecticut 06604 Telephone 203 5767081 Fax 203 3325608

FLEETA C HUDSON FRANCES ORT1Z
City Clerk Assistant City Clerk

PUBLIC NOTICE

Due to inclement weather the Bridgeport City Council
Meeting to be held on Monday February 3 2014 in the
City Council Chambers 45 Lyon Terrace BridgeportConnecticut at 700 pm is hereby CANCELLED and a

Special Meeting will be held on Tuesday February 4 2014

Public Speaking requests for February 3 2014 are also
CANCELLED and RESCHEDULED to February 4 2014
at 630pm

The Public Hearing to be held on February 3 2014 in the
City Council Chambers 45 Lyon Terrace Bridgeport
Connecticut is hereby CANCELLED and will be
RESCHEDULED to February 4 2014 at 700pm

ATTEST

FLEETA C HUDSON
CITY CLERK



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday January 21 2014

Cancelled due to inclement weather

All items carried over to

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4 2014
SPECIAL MEETING

700 PM

City Council Chambers City Hall 45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport Connecticut

ATTENDANCE Council members Brannelly Torres Banta TaylorMoye Halstead
Swain McCarthy Austin Lyons VizzoPaniccia McBrideLeeSalter
DeJesus Castillo Martinez Feliciano Marella Paoletto Martinez

Walker Holloway
arrived late

Council President McCarthy called the meeting to order at 710 pm

Prayer Council member McBrideLee offered the prayer

Pledge of Allegiance Kristin duBay Horton led the pledge of allegiance

Roll Call the city clerk took the roll call and announced there was

a quorum

Point of Personal Privilege

Council member Holloway recalled that he was elected to the city council in 1995 and he

was put on the National Energy Environmental Natural Resource Committee He relayed
however that lately he has been about the School Building Committee and the claim that
schools are being built on contaminated soil and this isnttrue He clarified that the School

Building Committee has nothing to do with the sites noting that this is done by the
DEEP and the Department of Environmental Protection and they determine the site the

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 8 of 22



school will be built on He referred to a site in upstate New York Love Canal that was

contaminated and resulted in people having health issues but this isnt the case with
Harding High School He urged those persons that are complaining to contact the
agencies mentioned about their complaint He pointed out that its difficult to find a site in

Bridgeport prior to 1966 that didnthave contaminants He repeated that the DEEP
regulates what occurs on a site He stressed that a council membersgetting beat up for
something that is out of their control and when the facts are wrong is stupid He reiterated
that the city council doesnthave any authority overwhere a school is built

Council President McCarthy made the following announcements

Mayor Finch wasntin attendance because he had a community cabinet meeting

Council member VizzoPaniccia was appointed as the National Vice Chair of
Universities and Colleges Council of Cities

Council member McBrideLee was named the Vice President of the IMA as the first
female vice president in its history

Mayoral Proclamation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut
Coalition and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during
American Heart Month 2014

Council President McCarthy asked the recipients to come forward to receive the citation
He expressed that the city council always tries to recognize positive in the city He
mentioned the Know your Numbers program that was conducted by Bridgeport Hospital
to step up and say its time to know your numbers which can result in a healthier lifestyle
in terms of know what your blood pressure and weight are He shared that the city council
took part in the program and he urged that every resident do the same

He read the proclamation that outlined the importance of monitoring ones health to detect
potential heart disease and diabetes

City Council Citation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut Coalition
and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during American

Heart Month 2014

Council member Paoletto stated that as a city employee that works in public health he
shared that he found out that he was at risk of developing diabetes a month ago and he
personally thanked the program for providing the information related to early detection
which he agreed could result in making healthier choices He read the citation

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 9 of 22



Kristin duBay Horton Director Health Department stated that heart disease and diabetes
are a reality for people that tend to be overweight She encouraged people to take care of
themselves and take advantage of the programs for early detection She thanked
Bridgeport Hospital and Stratford Health Center for helping reduce the risk factors She
noted that screenings are available throughout the city and information can found at
wwwCTaovdph

Council President McCarthy expressed that Bridgeport Hospital has been a great
community group in conjunction with the Get Healthy Connecticut Coalition a group
picture was taken

0413 Public Hearing re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste Interlocal
Agreement

Mayor Finch asked if there was anyone to speak in favor of the item

There were none heard

Mayor Finch asked if there was anyone to speak against the item

There were none heard

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC
HEARING

t COUNCIL MEMBER AUSTIN SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

1313 Request to Order Public Hearing before Full Council for February 18 2014 re

Proposed Resolution concerning a Ground Lease with United Illuminating
Company to facilitate the construction of a Solar ElectricityGenerating Facility on

the Landfill near Seaside Park and the construction of a Fuel Cell Facility on

Adjacent Land Item1313Pending in Contracts Committee

COUNCIL MEMBER BRANNELLY MOVED TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC
HEARING
COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED

kk MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSL

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 10 of 22



MINUTES FOR APPROVAL

Approval of City Council Minutes December 16 2013

k COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES

COUNCIL MEMBER SWAIN SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES

Mayor Finch asked for a motion to combine the COMMUNICATIONS TO BE
REFERRED TO COMMITTEES and RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED TO BOARDS
COMMISSIONS ETC

COUNCIL MEMBER HOLLOWAY MOVED TO COMBINE COMMUNICATIONS
TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES and RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED
TO BOARDS COMMISSIONS ETC

COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

1713 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development re Grant
Submission National Fish and Wildlife Foundation for a Youth Coastal
Stewardship Conservation Grant Program referred to Economic and

Community Development and Environment Committee

1813 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development re Grant
Submission The Arbor Day FoundationsTD Green Streets Grant Program
referred to Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee

1913 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development re Grant
Submission National Council on the Aging for the Senior SNAP Enrollment
Initiative Grant Program referred to Economic and Community Development
and Environment Committee

2113 Communication from Port Authority re Proposed Resolution concerning the
Donation of Surplus Equipment Acquired with a Federal Grant to another
Clean Vessel Act Program within the State of Connecticut referred to

Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 11 of 22



2213 Communication from OPED re Proposed Resolution Authorizing the
Extension of a Tax Incentive Agreement for the Sycamore Place
Apartments An Affordable Housing Development located at 285 Maplewood
Avenue referred to Economic and Community Development and
Environment Committee

2313 Communication from City Attorney re Proposed Resolution concerning A
Tax Cooperation Agreement with Housing Authority regarding Maplewood
Court Apartments referred to Contracts Committee

2413 Communication from Finance Department re Approval of Tax Anticipation
Notes to Pay Current Expenses and Obligations of the City100000000
referred to Budget Appropriations Committee

2513 Communication from Parks and Recreation re Proposed LeasePurchase
Agreement with PNC Equipment Finance LLC for a Tractor at D Fairchild
Wheeler Golf Course referred to Contracts Committee

RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED TO BOARDS COMMISSIONS ETC

1613 Resolution presented by Council President McCarthy re Council Review and
Possible Revisions to the Citys Purchasing and Procurement Ordinance
Chapter 308 City Contract and Purchasing Procedures referred
to Ordinance Committee

2013 Resolution presented by Council Member Torres re Proposed Amendments
to the Municipal Code of Ordinances Chapter 308 City Contracts and
Purchasing Procedures amend Section308070 Purchase of Goods and
General Services Subsection B referred to Ordinance Committee

COUNCIL MEMBER HOLLOWAY MOVED TO REFER COMMUNICATIONS TO
BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES and RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED TO

BOARDS COMMISSIONS ETC

COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Points of Personal Privilege

o Council member Torres stated that he has known Cecil Young for twenty years

noting that hes known to have integrity He expressed that he was distressed to
hear that he hasnthad a day in court regarding his termination He relayed that he

drafted a resolution for the committee to investigate the termination of Cecil
Youngsjob

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 12 of 22



o Council member Torres referred to a document that pertained to five out of fifteen
council members not having the latitude for looking out for the greater good of the
residents He stated that he hoped he would be provided the information he
requested He said he hoped they could meet to discuss how to protect the integrity
of the city council

Council member Paoletto stated that as the Deputy Majority LeaderSgt of Arms items of
personal privilege should be discussed either at the beginning of a meeting or at the end
of a meeting according to the city council rules

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON CONSENT CALENDAR

Mayor Finch asked if there were any items to remove from the consent calendar

Council member Paoletto requested to remove 0313 Public Safety
and Transportation Committee Report re Executive Session Discussion and
Potential Action as Appropriate with respect to Certain Litigation specifically
the Pending Appeal concerning the Stratford ZBAsGranting of a Variance
for the New Access Way Constructed by Mark IV Construction Co Inc on

Sikorsky Memorial Airport Property

Council member VizzoPaniccia requested to remove 1213 Miscellaneous
Matters Committee Report re Resolution Approving the 20142016

Bridgeport Citizens Union Committee

Council member Torres requested to remove 0113 Public Safety and

Transportation Committee Report re Application for Waiver to Extend
Driveway Width 4 Entrances located at the New Harding High School on

Bond Street

1113 Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of

Energy and Environmental Protection DEEP Microgrid Design and
Installation Grant for Critical Facilities

The city clerk read the remaining consent calendar items into the record

0113 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Application for
Waiver to Extend Driveway Width 4 Entrances located at the New Harding
High School on Bond Street removed

0313 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Executive Session
Discussion and Potential Action as Appropriate with respect to Certain
Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the Stratford ZBAs

Granting of a Variance for the New Access Way Constructed by Mark IV
Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial Airport Property removed

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 13 of 22



0913PHO Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014
re Disposition and Redevelopment of CityOwned Property located at 1752
Barnum Avenue

1013PHO Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014
re Disposition and Redevelopment of CityOwned Property located at 431
435 445449 Kossuth Street

1113 Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection DEEP Microgrid Design and
Installation Grant for Critical Facilities removed

1513 Economic and Community Development and Environment
Committee Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of

Energy and Environmental Protection for America the Beautiful Grant

0613 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Joseph Diaz

1213 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Resolution Approving the 2014
2016 Bridgeport Citizens Union Committee removed

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO APPROVE

COUNCIL MEMBER TAYLORMOYE SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 14 of 22



Council President McCarthy made a request to push the following
item to the end of the agenda for the purpose of conducting the
executive session

0313 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Executive
Session Discussion and Potential Action as Appropriate with respect
to Certain Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the
Stratford ZBAs Granting of a Variance for the New Access Way
Constructed by Mark IV Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial
Airport Property removed

Mayor Finch returned to item 0113 Public Safety and Transportation
Committee Report re Application for Waiver to Extend Driveway Width 4
Entrances located at the New Harding High School on Bond Street
removed

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO APPROVE
COUNCIL MEMBER BRANNELLY SECONDED

Council member Torres stated that he removed the item to begin the discussion about the
water that travels alongside the property that is close to the woods He stated that he was

told that all types of toxins are in the water including lead that could pose a potential health
hazard to the students He said that he agreed with Clyde Nicholson that the site could be
used for an industrial use rather than a school use

Council President McCarthy clarified that the width of the driveway was the only item they
were taking up on the agenda tonight He relayed that the width being widened is needed
for buses and emergency vehicles He stated that if the item isntapproved the driveway
width will be narrower which could pose a hazard for emergency vehicles

Council member Lyons stated that this matter was a Public Safety Transportation
Committee item She recalled that the regulations and rules will be revised and updated
for driveway width requirements to accommodate buses and emergency vehicles She

repeated that the driveway width was the only matter they were voting on tonight

Council member Holloway stated that the city council currently has a rule that a driveway
can be built commercially at 30 feet and anything beyond that size has to go through the
council for approval He commented that the item had nothing to do with the waterway that
sits 30 feet beyond the driveway and he didntfeel the waterway should be an issue
noting that its a DEP issue

Council member Torres stated that his comments had to do with a strategic matter not
because he doesntlike students but because he has an issue with the school being built
on the site Council member Holloway responded that the football field has been played
on at Harding High School for years and he emphasized once again that any site built
prior to 1966 is probably contaminated He questioned why anyone should beat up on

Harding noting that Roosevelt School and Longfellow also had the same problem
City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 15 of 22



Council member McBrideLee stated that although the school sites may have been
contaminated prior to building them she had a problem with the statement that other
school properties are probably contaminated She questioned why something wasntdone
prior to building on these sites

Council President McCarthy made it clear that they can not build on the property unless it
is cleaned up according to the Department of Environmental Protection DEP standards
He clarified that General Electric has the responsibility to clean up the property Harding
High School He stated that he would put in a request to have a representative from
General Electric attend the committee meeting to make a presentation regarding the
matter

MOTION PASSED WITH SEVENTEEN VOTES IN FAVOR TWO VOTES IN
OPPOSITION COUNCIL MEMBERS HALSTEAD and TORRES and ONE
ABSTENTION COUNCIL MEMBER HOLLOWAY

empoyedwith the Department ofPublic Facilities

Mayor Finch returned to the following item 1113 Economic and Community Development
and Environment Committee Report re Grant Submission State of
Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection DEEP
Microgrid Design and Installation Grant for Critical Facilities removed

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO APPROVE
COUNCIL MEMBER MARELLA SECONDED

Council member Torres stated that he removed the item because of the proposed
construction in the park He stated that if the location was reconsidered he would vote
otherwise

MOTION PASSED WITH EIGHTEEN VOTES IN FAVOR AND TWO VOTES
IN OPPOSITION COUNCIL MEMBERS HALSTEAD and TORRES

Mayor Finch returned to the following item 1213 Miscellaneous Matters
Committee Report re Resolution Approving the 20142016 Bridgeport
Citizens Union Committee removed

COUNCIL MEMBER VIZZOPANICCIA MOVED TO AMEND THE 2014
2016 BRIDGEPORT CITIZENS UNION NOMINATION OF NAMES BY
SUBSTITUTION SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK

COUNCIL MEMBER BRANNELLY SECONDED
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

k COUNCIL MEMBER VIZZOPANICCIA MOVED TO APPROVE AS
AMENDED THE 20142016BRIDGEPORT CITIZENS UNION ROSTER

1 COUNCIL MEMBER SWAIN SECONDED
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 16 of 22



UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0413 Contracts Committee Report re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste
Interlocal Agreement

Council member DeJesus stated that all the committee members questions were

addressed in committee

COUNCIL MEMBER DEJESUS MOVED TO APPROVE
COUNCIL MEMBER AUSTIN SECONDED
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Mayor Finch returned to item 0313 Public Safety and Transportation
Committee Report re Executive Session Discussion and Potential Action as

Appropriate with respect to Certain Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal
concerning the Stratford ZBAsGranting of a Variance for the New Access
Way Constructed by Mark IV Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial
Airport Property removed

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO APPROVE

COUNCIL MEMBER BRANNELLY SECONDED

Council President McCarthy updated that there is a pending lawsuit regarding this item
He asked that City Attorney Anastasi do his presentation first and then the city council will
enter into executive session to discuss the matter further

City Attorney Anastasi stated he would give a brief presentation for item 0313 He
recalled the proposed settlement that was unanimously approved He said he would make
a public presentation and then they will enter into executive session to discuss details of
the settlement
He continued and said he was there on behalf of the city attorneysoffice He noted that
Pauline Mize Sikorsky Manager was present for questions and also Attorney Edwin
Schmidt to answer questions

CityAttorney Anastasispresentation comments are highlighted below

There has been ongoing litigation with the Town of Stratford for close to two
decades to address the matter of extending the safety area on the runway Its a

4050 million project and there have been litigation costs of 500k
There is a partnership between the Federal Aviation AssociationFAA CT

Department of Transportation DOT Town of Stratford and the City of Bridgeport
to add a safety zone at the end of Runway624 by constructing anEmass system

he referred to the map layout of theEmass system
The fatality that occurred on the runway was during the 1990s and thats the
reason for the safety zone

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 17 of 22



Referred to the permit dated November 14 2013 that was issued by the CT DEP

for the project to move forward
Referred to the permit denoting a yellow line where the old access way was

located It will be a6month to1year removal project
The city is obligated to provide a number of parcels
Referred to layout 6 of the driveway to Mr Moutinhos property The city
constructed other parcels serviced by the access way
Referred to a document dated January 7 2014 indicating that the Airport
Commission voted unanimously to recommend the settlement that is being present
to the city council tonight
Referred to the motion voted upon by the Airport Commission he respectfully
requested that during the executive session to give the details of the

settlement parameters The reason for the executive session was due to the

litigation details

CityAttorney Anastasi continued to discuss the following details
Emass system as outlined in the document that was distributed
PhaseIof the project and PhaseII The runway will be repaved and oncethe E

mass system is completed and the roadway completed the runways will be
upgraded
1973 Title Search for the property noted that the grantor reserved access

easement outlined in document 5 reference page 2 as read and reviewed

Removal of the access way and the timeline for construction as reviewed and
outlined in the document
Refened to document 6 that outlined the utility easement

Access way relocation performed by Marks Construction at a cost of 339k as

reviewed

Recalled that the city attorneys office worked closely with the Ordinance

Committee per the procurement process the bids were reviewed

Reviewed the motions and appeals that were filed as outlined and read

Airport Commission approved the proposed settlement on January 7 2014 as

read and reviewed

Will file the appropriate documents with the Town of Stratford on February 7 2014

CT DOT will advertise bids for the first phase of the project on March 5 2014

Pauline Mize Sikorsky Manager gave a brief presentation pertaining to the item as

follows

Reviewed the economic viability noting that out of ninetyone 91 employees
twenty 20 of them are residents of Bridgeport Commented that there are direct
and indirect benefits to the city

The amount of money the FAA has earmarked for the project noted that the FAA

doesntnormally allocate 43 million to an airport project so its crucial to

understand the importance of the project not only to Bridgeport but also for the

surrounding region

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 18 of 22



Council President McCarthy asked what will happen if they closed the airport and put up
condominiums for example Ms Mize responded that government funding is 90 of the
project and state funding is 5 Over a course of time the FAA put in a lot of time and the
document reads that if the airport closes for any reason the money must be given back
from the sales that profited the airport

Questions from the council members have been summarized below

Council member Torres asked the following questions and requested the following
information

o Is relevant data associated to the project available for review response City
Attorney Anastasi told the committee and the council president that that information
couldntbe given as a quorum it was clarified that only one council member could

request the information

o Transfer of easement details

o Document that explains the selection process and to remove the easement

o Reason for the termination of John Ricci

Responses

o City Attorney Anastasi clarified that the will not comment on the termination of
John Ricci

o There is no obligation or timeline to provide access

o He will not discuss labor relations matters in public

Council member Torres asked again about access to information relevant to the
movement of the easement Attorney Anastasi reiterated that he would provide the
information that is of public matter but not the information related to labor relations

Mayor Finch recapped that Council member Torres made a request to see the test bids
from the other construction companies He stated that he told him that if the information
was available he could have it Attorney Anastasi stated there were initial quotes by Julian
Construction and BJ ConstructionNew Haven and two independent price analyses

Council member Torres clarified and repeated that he requested all the information
relevant to the movement of the easement Mayor Finch clarified and explained that the
easement was taken for public interest and it had to be replaced he emphasized that that
matter was as simple as that in that it became a public project for public land

Attorney Anastasi stated that there was a difference in timelines and the city needed to
move forward and decisions were made

Council member Lyons recalled that she asked for an Excel sheet She said that although
she appreciated the information that was provided she was told by Ms Mize that there
was no comprehensive study available She suggested that due to all the questions still

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 19 of 22



being asked she recommended tabling the item and sending the matter back to
committee She further suggested that the item should go before the Contracts
Committee

MsMize stated that she is not a skilled economist noting that the information requested
involved detailed technical data She clarified that all the information she had contained
employee data

Council President McCarthy stated that the information that Council member Torres
requested should be easy information to share He suggested that Attorney Anastasi just
reply and say yes to agree to provide the information He further addressed Council
member Torres to say that he needed to be more specific of the information he was

looking for related to the easement He suggested that he visit the city attorneysoffice to
through the boxes of information to fulfill his request

Attorney Anastasi stated that the deadline was this Friday to submit the documents to the
Town of Stratford to get on the ZBA agenda He noted that on March 5 the Raymark road
removal will take place

Mayor Finch stated that currently the condition of the airport runway is not safe He

emphasized that this could result in blood on their hands if they dontact expeditiously
He recalled the tragic incident that occurred during the 1990s and he mentioned that this
is the last airport in the United States to implement mandatory safety improvements due to
the tragedy that occurred He stressed that peoples lives are in the city councils hands
and he relayed the horrific injuries that one of the victims experienced He stated that the

only option if they want to continue operating the airport is to accept the settlement and
move forward with the improvements

Council member Halstead stated that he wasntcomfortable with only the information that

they were given tonight He asked if the 43 million cost is itemized and how they came up
with that amount Mayor Finch stated that the pollution on the site is the citys
responsibility to clean up which amounts to 6 million for the environmental clean up out
of the 43 million and the balance of the 43 million is split between the safety zone

installation and the airport runway narrowing

Ms Mize reviewed the project phases as follows

o PhaseA will consist of the relocation of the runway and the EMass system
installation it was noted that all come with labor costs

o PhaseB will consist of project refurbishment the runway recabled and the lighting
system

It was noted that all DOT documentation for PhaseA is available on the citys
website

Council member Torres commented that Ms Mize has been professional and terrific in
terms of providing information He stated that there is an opportunity to approve the

project and improve the runway And he emphasized that hes glad they will have access

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 20 of 22



to review easement information He relayed that at this point its best to move and pass
the item to ensure that they dontjeopardize safety

Council President McCarthy relayed that what was in front of the council is the matter

related to whether or not they will pay the 65k to continue and not risk the 43 million

project that is essential for the airport to remain open He cautioned that if the matter is

delayed there will be a cut off He emphasized that the Emass system has to be
constructed and if its delayed and not done by the deadline the airport will close He
further relayed other repercussions they are looking at if the airport closes

He urged the council members to put the matter in perspective and he further relayed that
the matter has gone through the city council process and was passed In addition all the
information has been out there and available and the matter has been open and
transparent He clarified that the only information that hasntbeen transparent is related to
the lawsuit settlement

Attorney Anastasi responded to the possibility of the airport closing down He relayed that
there are tenants on the airport property to consider

Mayor Finch thanked everyone present for all the discussion regarding this item

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
WITH THE FOLLOWING PERSONS PRESENT CITY ATTORNEY MARK

ANASTASI PAULINE MIZE SIKORSKY MANAGER ATTORNEY EDWIN SCHMIDT
MAYOR FINCH AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

The city council entered into executive session at 930 pm

The city council came out of executive session at 1015pm

0313 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Executive
Session Discussion and Potential Action as Appropriate with respect
to Certain Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the
Stratford ZBAs Granting of a Variance for the New Access Way
Constructed by Mark IV Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial
Airport Property

COUNCIL PRESIDENT McCARTHY MOVED TO APPROVE
AUTHORIZE EMPOWER AND DIRECT THE CITY ATTORNEYS
OFFICE AND THE AIRPORT MANAGER TO ENTER INTO FULL
AND FINAL SETTLEMENT OF ALL PENDING LITIGATION

CONCERNING THE RELOCATION OF THE ACCESS WAY FROM
OFF OF ROUTE 113 TO OFF OF SNIFFENS LANE STRATFORD
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITONS AS

DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION AND IN ACCORDANCE

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 21 of 22



WITH THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE CITYS AIRPORT
COMMISSION ON OR ABOUT JANUARY 7 2014

r1 COUNCIL MEMBER BRANNELLY SECONDED

MOTION PASSED WITH SEVENTEEN VOTES IN FAVOR AND
THREE VOTES IN OPPOSITION COUNCIL MEMBERS LYONS
McBRIDELEE and SALTER

0413 Contracts Committee Report re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste
Interlocal Agreement

COUNCIL MEMBER DEJESUS MOVED TO RECONSIDER ITEM0413
k COUNCIL MEMBER CASTILLO SECONDED

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

COUNCIL MEMBER DEJESUS MOVED TO AMEND THE COMMITTEE REPORT BY
SUBSTITUTION AS AMENDED AND REVISED BY THE CITY ATTORNEYSOFFICE

CityAttorney Anastasi explained that the amended version was approved by the
InterLocalGroup

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED
k MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

COUNCIL MEMBER DEJESUS MOVED TO APPROVE AS AMENDED
kk COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED
kk MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

Other business

Council President McCarthy reminded everyone that another storm is coming on

Wednesday and next Monday and Tuesday He noted that everyone should pay attention
to their emails for possible cancellation of meetings

ADJOURNMENT

COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO ADJOURN
k COUNCIL MEMBER BANTA SECONDED
k MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

The meeting adjourned at 1020pm

Respectfully submitted

Diane Graham
Telesco Secretarial Services

City of Bridgeport
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 22 of 22



AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

TUESDAY JANUARY 2 1 2014
CANCELLED DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER

ALL ITEMS CARRIED OVER TO

MONDAY FEBRUARY 3 2014
MONDAY FEBRUARY 3 201 4

CANCELLED DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER ALL ITEMS CARRIED OVER TO

SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4 201 4

700PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS CITY HALL 45 LYON TERRACE

BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

Prayer

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Mayoral Proclamation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut

Coalition and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during
American Heart Month 2014

City Council Citation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut
Coalition and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during
American Heart Month 2014

0413 Public Hearing re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste Interlocal

Agreement

1313 Request to Order Public Hearing before Full Council for February 18 2014
re Proposed Resolution concerning a Ground Lease with United

Illuminating Company to facilitate the construction of a Solar Electricity
Generating Facility on the Landfill near Seaside Park and the construction

of a Fuel Cell Facility on Adjacent Land Item1313 Pending in Contracts

Committee

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL

Approval of City Council Minutes December 16 2013

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES

1713 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission National Fish and Wildlife Foundation for a Youth

Coastal Stewardship 8v Conservation Grant Program referred to Economic

and Community Development and Environment Committee

1813 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission The Arbor Day Foundations TD Green Streets Grant

Program referred to Economic and Community Development and
Environment Committee



Agenda
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 2

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES CONTINUED

1913 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission National Council on the Aging for the Senior SNAP

Enrollment Initiative Grant Program referred to Economic and Community
Development and Environment Committee

2113 Communication from Port Authority re Proposed Resolution concerning
the Donation of Surplus Equipment Acquired with a Federal Grant to

another Clean Vessel Act Program within the State of Connecticut referred
to Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

2213 Communication from OPED re Proposed Resolution Authorizing the
Extension of a Tax Incentive Agreement for the Sycamore Place

Apartments An Affordable Housing Development located at 285 Maplewood
Avenue referred to Economic and Community Development and
Environment Committee

2313 Communication from City Attorney re Proposed Resolution concerning A

Tax Cooperation Agreement with Housing Authority regarding Maplewood
Court Apartments referred to Contracts Committee

2413 Communication from Finance Department re Approval of Tax Anticipation
Notes to Pay Current Expenses and Obligations of the City 100000000
referred to Budget 8v Appropriations Committee

2513 Communication from Parks and Recreation re Proposed LeasePurchase

Agreement with PNC Equipment Finance LLC for aTractor at D Fairchild
Wheeler Golf Course referred to Contracts Committee

RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED TO BOARDS COMMISSIONS ETC

1613 Resolution presented by Council President McCarthy re Council Review

and Possible Revisions to the Citys Purchasing and Procurement

Ordinance Chapter 308 City Contract and Purchasing Procedures
referred to Ordinance Committee

2013 Resolution presented by Council Member Torres re Proposed Amendments
to the Municipal Code of Ordinances Chapter 308 City Contracts and

Purchasing Procedures amend Section308070 Purchase of Goods and

General Services Subsection B referred to Ordinance Committee



Agenda
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 3

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON CONSENT CALENDAR

0113 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Application for
Waiver to Extend Driveway Width 4 Entrances located at the New Harding
High School on Bond Street

0313 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Executive Session
Discussion and Potential Action as Appropriate with respect to Certain

Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the Stratford ZBAs

Granting of a Variance for the New Access Way Constructed by Mark IV

Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial Airport Property

0913PHOEconomic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014 re Disposition
and Redevelopment of CityOwned Property located at 1752 Barnum
Avenue

1013PHOEconomic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014 re Disposition
and Redevelopment ofCityOwned Property located at 431435 8v 445449

Kossuth Street

1113 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection DEEP Microgrid Design and Installation
Grant for Critical Facilities

1513 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection for America the Beautiful Grant

0613 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Joseph Diaz

1213 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Resolution Approving the

20142016Bridgeport Citizens Union Committee

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0413 Contracts Committee Report re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste

Interlocal Agreement



THE FOLLOWING NAMED PERSON HAS REQUESTED PERMISSION TO ADDRESS THE CITY

COUNCIL ON TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4 2014 AT 630 PM IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
CITY HALL 45 LYON TERRACE BRIDGEPORT CT

NAME SUBJECT

Ethan Book
144 Coleman Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

Cecil C Young
99 Carroll Avenue

Bridgeport CT 06607

John Marshall Lee

30 Beacon Street

Bridgeport CT 06605

A to do list stemming from the recent

municipal campaign and election process

Unethical tactics by city and state officials

Financial Position



AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

TUESDAY JANUARY 2 1 2014
CANCELLED DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER

ALL ITEMS CARRIED OVER TO

MONDAY FEBRUARY 3 2014
MONDAY FEBRUARY 3 201 4

CANCELLED DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER ALL ITEMS CARRIED OVER TO

SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4 201 4

700PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS CITY HALL 45 LYON TERRACE

BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

Prayer

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Mayoral Proclamation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut

Coalition and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during
American Heart Month 2014

City Council Citation In Recognition of the Get Healthy Connecticut
Coalition and its Partners for the Know Your Numbers Campaign during
American Heart Month 2014

0413 Public Hearing re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste Interlocal

Agreement

1313 Request to Order Public Hearing before Full Council for February 18 2014
re Proposed Resolution concerning a Ground Lease with United

Illuminating Company to facilitate the construction of a Solar Electricity
Generating Facility on the Landfill near Seaside Park and the construction

of a Fuel Cell Facility on Adjacent Land Item1313 Pending in Contracts

Committee

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL

Approval of City Council Minutes December 16 2013

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES

1713 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission National Fish and Wildlife Foundation for a Youth

Coastal Stewardship 8v Conservation Grant Program referred to Economic

and Community Development and Environment Committee

1813 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission The Arbor Day Foundations TD Green Streets Grant

Program referred to Economic and Community Development and
Environment Committee



Agenda
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 2

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES CONTINUED

1913 Communication from Central Grants and Community Development
re Grant Submission National Council on the Aging for the Senior SNAP

Enrollment Initiative Grant Program referred to Economic and Community
Development and Environment Committee

2113 Communication from Port Authority re Proposed Resolution concerning
the Donation of Surplus Equipment Acquired with a Federal Grant to

another Clean Vessel Act Program within the State of Connecticut referred
to Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

2213 Communication from OPED re Proposed Resolution Authorizing the
Extension of a Tax Incentive Agreement for the Sycamore Place

Apartments An Affordable Housing Development located at 285 Maplewood
Avenue referred to Economic and Community Development and
Environment Committee

2313 Communication from City Attorney re Proposed Resolution concerning A

Tax Cooperation Agreement with Housing Authority regarding Maplewood
Court Apartments referred to Contracts Committee

2413 Communication from Finance Department re Approval of Tax Anticipation
Notes to Pay Current Expenses and Obligations of the City 100000000
referred to Budget 8v Appropriations Committee

2513 Communication from Parks and Recreation re Proposed LeasePurchase

Agreement with PNC Equipment Finance LLC for aTractor at D Fairchild
Wheeler Golf Course referred to Contracts Committee

RESOLUTIONS TO BE REFERRED TO BOARDS COMMISSIONS ETC

1613 Resolution presented by Council President McCarthy re Council Review

and Possible Revisions to the Citys Purchasing and Procurement

Ordinance Chapter 308 City Contract and Purchasing Procedures
referred to Ordinance Committee

2013 Resolution presented by Council Member Torres re Proposed Amendments
to the Municipal Code of Ordinances Chapter 308 City Contracts and

Purchasing Procedures amend Section308070 Purchase of Goods and

General Services Subsection B referred to Ordinance Committee



Agenda
City Council Meeting
February 4 2014

Page 3

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON CONSENT CALENDAR

0113 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Application for
Waiver to Extend Driveway Width 4 Entrances located at the New Harding
High School on Bond Street

0313 Public Safety and Transportation Committee Report re Executive Session
Discussion and Potential Action as Appropriate with respect to Certain

Litigation specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the Stratford ZBAs

Granting of a Variance for the New Access Way Constructed by Mark IV

Construction Co Inc on Sikorsky Memorial Airport Property

0913PHOEconomic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014 re Disposition
and Redevelopment of CityOwned Property located at 1752 Barnum
Avenue

1013PHOEconomic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014 re Disposition
and Redevelopment ofCityOwned Property located at 431435 8v 445449

Kossuth Street

1113 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection DEEP Microgrid Design and Installation
Grant for Critical Facilities

1513 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee

Report re Grant Submission State of Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection for America the Beautiful Grant

0613 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Joseph Diaz

1213 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re Resolution Approving the

20142016Bridgeport Citizens Union Committee

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0413 Contracts Committee Report re Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste

Interlocal Agreement



THE FOLLOWING NAMED PERSON HAS REQUESTED PERMISSION TO ADDRESS THE CITY

COUNCIL ON TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4 2014 AT 630 PM IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
CITY HALL 45 LYON TERRACE BRIDGEPORT CT

NAME SUBJECT

Ethan Book
144 Coleman Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

Cecil C Young
99 Carroll Avenue

Bridgeport CT 06607

John Marshall Lee

30 Beacon Street

Bridgeport CT 06605

A to do list stemming from the recent

municipal campaign and election process

Unethical tactics by city and state officials

Financial Position



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

CITYCOUNCIL

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

A Public Hearing will be held before the City Council of Bridgeport at the regular

meeting to be held on Monday February 3 2014 beginning at 700pmin the City Council

Chamber City Hall 45 Lyon Terrace Bridgeport Connecticut relative to the following

0413Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement

Attest

Fleeta C Hudson

City Clerk

AD ENDS ABOVE LINE

1 Edition Connecticut Post

PLEASE PUBLISH ON Sunday January 26 2014

Requires Certifications

Emailed to Legal Ad Dept at publicnoticescrctpostcom

P014000718

Account 111171

Dated January 24 2014

Sent By
Althea Williams

City ClerksOffice

45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport CT 06604

203 5767205

203 3325608 Fax

Ec City Council Members

Mayor Bill Finch

A Nunn CAO
A Wood Chief ofStaff
M Anastasi City Attorney

PLEASE NOTE DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER THE PUBLIC HEARING TO BEHELD ON

TUESDAY JANUARY 21 2014 WAS CANCELLED AND THEREFORE WILL BE HELD ON

MONDAY FEBRUARY 3 2013



BILL FINCH

Mayor

City ofBridgeport Connecticut

CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE
999 Broad Street

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Telephone 2033325662
Fax 2033325657

COMM 1713Referred to ECDECommittee on01212014
caNCELrF

Carried over to February 3 2014

January 10 2014

To Fleeta Hudson

From Renu Gup

Re Resolution Wildlife Guards Youth Coastal Stewardship Conservation

ANDREW J NUNN
Chief AdministrativeOfficer

CHRISTINA B SMITH
Director

Central Grants

The Central Grants seeks authorization for Mayor Finch to apply and to sign all related documents
contracts and resolutions for Developing the Next Generation ofConservationists Program from
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation

The grant will provide funds for green job training mentoring and employment opportunities for high
school students in order to protect threatened beach nesting birds on Pleasure Beach The Conservation
Corp will be working with the Audubon CT and Student Conservation Corp

Please feel free to call me at 5767732 with any questions Thank you

h1

i
Yi

i

f

rn
j



Y

D 6RIDDEP
RT

O

n

F EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
0

y FOR ALL CITY COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS

NCORPORATE0g6

PROJECT TITLE Wildlife Guards Coastal Stewardshia and Conservation
RENEWAL NEW X

DEPARTMENT SUBMITTING INFORMATION Central Grants Department

CONTACT NAME Renu Gupta

PHONE NUMBER 2035767732

PROJECTSUMMARYDESCRIPTION

City is seeking funding to provide green job training mentoring and employment opportunities for high
school students in order to protect threatened beach nesting birds on Pleasure Beach The Conservation
Corp will be working with the Audubon CT and Student Conservation Corp

CONTRACT DATES June 2 2014 to May 29 2015

PROGRAM GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Protect threatened beach nesting birds when Pleasure Beach opens to the public this year

IF APPLICABLE

FUNDING SOURCES include matchinginkindfunds
Federal

State

City
Other NFWF 20000

FUNDS REQUESTED
SalariesBenefits

Telephone
Staff Training
Supplies
Subcontracts Yes X No

Student Conservation Association

20000 for program operations



r j

WHEREAS National Fish and Wildlife Foundation is authorized to extend financial assistance to

municipalities in the form ofgrants and

WHEREAS this funding has been made possible through National Fish and Wildlife Foundation and

WHEREAS funds under this grant will be used provide regrenjob training mentoring and employment
opportunities for high school students in order to protect threatened beach nesting birds on Pleasure
Beach

WHEREAS it is desirable and in the public interest that the City ofBridgeport Central Grants
Department submit an application to the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation for funds to provide
conservation related training to youth to protect endan egrpecies

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Council

That it is cognizant ofthe Citys grant application and contract to the National Fish and Wildlife

Foundation

That it hereby authorizes directs and empowers the mayor or his designee to execute and file such

application with National Fish and Wildlife Foundation and to provide such additional information and to

execute such other contracts and documents as maybe necessary under this program



BILL FINCH

Mayor

COMM 1813Referred to ECDECommittee on01212014
cvcFLL

Carried over to February 3 2014
January 10 2014

Officeof the City Clerk

City ofBridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace Room 204

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Re Resolution Arbor Day Foundation TD Green Streets Grant Program

CHRISTINA B SMITH
Director

Central Grants

Attached please find a Grant Summary and Resolution for the Arbor Day FoundationsTD

Grant Streets Grant Program

Ifyou have any questions or require any additional information please contact me at 203332

5664 orPatrickcarletonabridgeportctgov

Thank you

GC
Patrick Carleton
Central Grants Office

City ofBridgeport Connecticut

CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE
999 Broad Street

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Telephone 203 3325662
Fax 2033325657

ANDREW J NUNN
Chief AdministrativeOfficer

ti
p

a

l
c 1

J x77

r
U i t



of swopePOqT

GRANT SUMMARY
ew YCn

HppRPpRATEO180

PROJECT TITLE The Arbor Day FoundationsTD Green Streets Grant Program

RENEWAL NEW x

DEPARTMENT SUBMITTING INFORMATION Central Grants Office

CONTACT NAME

PHONE NUMBER

Patrick Carleton

2033325664

PROJECT SUMMARYDESCRIPTION

The City is requesting2000000 from the Arbor Day FoundationsTD Green Streets Grant

Program This program supports innovative practices in community forestry Through the

program municipalities are eligible to receive one often 20000 grants in support of local

forestry projects in lowtomoderate income LMI neighborhoods If awarded the Department
ofParks and Recreation will allocate approximately8000 towards the purchase of trees and

materials The City of Bridgeport would also hold two2 community events that would provide
Bridgeport residents the opportunity to learn how to properly plant and care for trees and educate

them on the importance of the urban tree canopy In addition the City will partner with

Groundwork Bridgeport for an education component Groundwork Bridgeport would be

responsible for hiring and supervising interns who would develop an Urban Tree Manual a best

practices informational guide for residents

Project Period 1 Year from Award

IF APPLICABLE
FUNDING SOURCES include matchinginkindfunds FUNDS REQUESTED

Federal SalariesBenefits

State 2000000 Supplies
City



A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

Regarding the Arbor Day FoundationsTD Green Streets Grant Program

DRAFT

WHEREAS the Arbor Day Foundation is authorized to extend financial assistance to

municipalities in the form of grants and

WHEREAS this funding has been made possible through the TD Green Streets Grant Program
and

WHEREAS funds under this grant will be used to implement and support a local forestry
project in lowtomoderate income LMI neighborhoods in Bridgeport Connecticut and

WHEREAS it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of Bridgeport Department of

Public Facilities submit an application to the Arbor Day Foundation in the amount of 20000
for the TD Green Streets Grant Program and

Now therefore be it hereby RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL

That it is cognizant of the Citys grant application to and contract with the Arbor Day
Foundation to implement and support a local forestry project in lowtomoderate income

LMI neighborhoods in Bridgeport Connecticut Bridgeport Connecticut and

2 That it hereby authorizes directs and empowers the Mayor or his designee to execute and

file such application with the Arbor Day Foundation for the TD Green Streets Grant

Program and to provide such additional information and to execute such other contracts

amendments and documents as may be necessary to administer this program



BILL FINCH

Mayor

City ofBridgeport Connecticut

CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE
999 Broad Street

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Telephone 2033325662
Fax 2033325657

COMM1913Referred to ECDECommittee on01212014

Carried over to February 3 2014
January 10 2014

ANDREW J NUNN
Chief Administrative Officer

CHRISTINA B SMITH
Director

Central Grants

Officeof the City Clerk

City ofBridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace Room 204

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Re Resolution National Council on the Aging Senior SNAP Enrollment Initiative

Grant Program

Attached please find a Grant Summary and Resolution for the National Council on the Aging
Senior SNAP Enrollment Initiative Grant Program

If you have any questions or require any additional information please contact me at 203332

5664 orPatrickcarletonabridgeportctgov

Thank you

Patrick Carleton

Central Grants Office

t y

3

1
1 t

i

r

y1

tv r

1

N



DC gRIDGBPG
AR

rV CD1
GRANT SUMMARY

ycn
NGNPORAtEg ti

PROJECT TITLE National Council on the Aging Senior SNAP Enrollment

Initiative Grant Program

RENEWAL NEW x

DEPARTMENT SUBMITTING INFORMATION Central Grants Office

CONTACT NAME

PHONE NUMBER

Patrick Carleton

2033325664

PROJECT SUMMARYDESCRIPTION

The City is requesting5000000 from the National Council on the Aging Senior SNAP

Enrollment Initiative Ifawarded this funding will be used by the Department of Social Services

to engage in activities to increase the number of eligible seniors participating in the

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program SNAP Social Services will establish contacts

build relationships and convene meetings with relevant agencies to reach as many seniors in the

City of Bridgeport and the Greater Bridgeport region

Project Period Feb 14 2014Jan31 2015

IF APPLICABLE
FUNDING SOURCES include matchinginkind funds FUNDS REQUESTED

Federal SalariesBenefits

State 5000000 Supplies

City



A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

Regarding the National Council on the Aging

Senior SNAP Enrollment Initiative

DRAFT

WHEREAS the National Council on the Aging is authorized to extend financial assistance to

municipalities in the form of grants and

WHEREAS this funding has been made possible through the Senior SNAP Enrollment

Initiative and

WHEREAS funds under this grant will be used to provide information and assistance to seniors

who are eligible to participate in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program and

WHEREAS it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of Bridgeport Department of

Social Services submit an application to the National Council on the Aging in the amount of

50000 for the Senior SNAP Enrollment Initiative and

Now therefore be it hereby RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL

That it is cognizant of the Citysgrant application to and contract with the National

Council on the Aging to provide information and assistance to seniors who may be

eligible for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program and

2 That it hereby authorizes directs and empowers the Mayor or his designee to execute and

file such application with the National Council on the Aging for the Senior SNAP

Enrollment Initiative and to provide such additional information and to execute such

other contracts amendments and documents as may be necessary to administer this

program



COIN 2113 Referred to ECDE Committee on1212014 CANCELLED
Carried over to February 3 2014

January 15 2014

The Honorable City Council

City ofBridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport CT

06604

B R I DG PO RT Re A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council
To Donate Its Share of Surplus Equipment
Acquired with a Federal Grant

PORT A
Dear Honorable Body

Please fmd attached for your review and consideration aresolution authorizingAUT0 R I TY the Mayor to execute documents related to the donation ofsurplus Equipment
originally acquired with Federal grant funds c

A

A representative ofthis office will be in attendance atyouretingspred
to discuss this request in detail Thank you for your consication

r rns
O
r1

O n

C11

Acting Executive Director

Bridgeport Port Authority

Cc Bill Finch Mayor
Mark Anastasi City Attorney
Martha Klimas Project Manager
Fleeta Hudson City Clerk

Frances Ortiz Asst City Clerk

330 Water Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

2033849777

Fax 2033849686



BRIDGEPORT

PORT

aurNORirr

330 Water Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

2033849777

Fax 2033849686

CONIlI 2113 Referred to ECDECommittee on1212014

January 15 2014

The Honorable City Council

City ofBridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport CT

06604

Re A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

To Donate Its Share of Surplus Equipment
Acquired with a Federal Grant

Dear Honorable Body

Please fmd attached for your review an consideration aresolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute documents related to the donation of surplus Equipment
originally acquired with Federal grant funds c

Q w

A representative ofthis office will be in attendance atyourSetingspred
to discuss this request in detail Thank you for your consi tion z

r ns

o
n

o
cn

Acting Executive Director

Bridgeport Port Authority

Cc Bill Finch Mayor
Mark Anastasi City Attorney
Martha Klimas Project Manager
Fleeta Hudson City Clerk

Frances Ortiz Asst City Clerk

j



A RESOLUTION BY THE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCIL

TO DONATE ITS SHARE OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT
ACQUIRED WITH A FEDERAL GRANT

WHEREAS in 1998 the City ofBridgeport Harbormaster acquired aMarine Sewage Disposal
Vessel and TrailerakaEquipment for the purposes ofservicing recreational vessels docked
moored or otherwise secured in Bridgeportswaters

WHEREAS the Equipment was acquired with aFederal grant administered through the State of

Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection DEEP which provided
75 ofthe Equipment costs

WHEREAS since 2002 the Bridgeport Port Authority and DEEP have provided funding to

operate and service the Equipment including all staffing maintenance and repairs

WHEREAS the 15 year old Pump out Boat and trailer with a2012 value of3300 are nearing
the end oftheir useful life

WHEREAS DEEP in accordance with Federal criteria established in 43 CFR Part 12 requests
the City ofBridgeport to donate their 25share ofthe Equipment to another Clean Vessel Act

program existing within the State of Connecticut

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee the Chief

Administrative Officer is authorized to take any and all necessary actions and execute such

documents as may be required related to this matter consistent with the Grant this resolution
and in the best interests ofthe City ofBridgeport



Klimas Martha

From
Sent
To

Subject

Good Afternoon Martha

Brown Kate KateBrown@ctgov
Tuesday December 10 2013422 PM

Klimas Martha
CVA Vessel Bridgeport

As you and I have discussed there is another pumpout vessel program which is interested in obtaining your older CVA

funded pumpout vessel as a donation Since the existing Bridgeport PO vesselsvalue exceeds500000 in accordance

with the federal rules we must retain the federal value of that vessel One way to retain the Federal value is to donate

the Citys25share ofthe vessel along with the Federal share to another CVA program This way the equipment is

maintained for its original purpose

It would be in the programsbest interest to donate the vessel at this time in order to continue to provide CVA pumpout
services statewide

Thank you for considering this request

Kate

Kate Hughes Brown

Grants and Outreach Coordinator

Office of Long Island Sound Programs
Bureau ofWater Planning and Land Reuse

Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection

79 Elm Street Hartford CT 061065127

P 8604243652 F 8604244054 Ekatebrownactgov

ENERCY
ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTIQN

wwwctgovdeep

Connecticut Iepartmentf

Conserving improving and protecting our natural resourcesand environment

Ensuring a clean affordable reliable and sustainable energy supply



Connecticut Department of

ENERGY

ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION

For Information Contact

Dwayne Gardner 8604243938

Kate Hughes Brown8604243652

June 25 2013

P R E S S R E L E A S E
DEEP Says Funds Available for Marine Pumpout Programs to Protect

Waters of Long Island Sound

Connecticuts Department oEnergy and Environmental Protection DEEP today
announced that more than 1 million in federal funds are available for boat sewage disposal

facilities or pumpout stations on Long Island Sound for the 2014 boating season The program

is administered by DEEP with a grant from the US Fish and Wildlife ServicesClean Vessel Act

Program This year Connecticut was one ofthree states receiving the highest grant award in the

country which helps to fund the program grants and the staff that manage statewide pumpout

and boater education programs

DEEP is requesting grant proposals from owners and operators ofpublic or private

marine facilities that wish to install anew marine sewage disposal facilities MSDFs facilities

with an existing MSDF in need of substantial repairs or upgrades or to obtain funding tooperate

anew or existing MSDF including pumpout boats and central vacuum pumpout systems which

are incorporated within the marina or boatyard dock system

The continued success ofpumpout programs for boaters significantly improves the

water quality of Long Island Sound increasing the quality ofswimming fishing and other

recreational opportunities in Connecticut said DEEP Commissioner Daniel C Esty This

latest round of grant funding will allow us to continue and expand those programs as well as

provide financial assistance to municipalities small marine businesses andnonprofit

organizations along our shoreline

Congress passed the Clean Vessel Act CVA in 1992 after finding that there werean

inadequate number of onshore sewage disposal facilities in waters frequented by recreational

boats and determining that these vessels may be contributing substantially to localized

degradation of water quality The primary goal of the CVA is to reduce overboard sewage

discharge from recreational boats The CVA provides funds to states for the construction



renovation operation and maintenance ofpumpout stations for holding tanks and dump stations

for portable toilets Connecticut has an active program to utilize these federal funds to facilitate

low cost convenient pumpouts and dump stations

Since 1993 DEEP has worked in partnership with the US Fish and Wildlife Service

marinas yacht clubs boat yards municipalities and nonprofit organizations to install more than

971andbasedpumpout facilities 21 dump stations 18 pumpout vessels and three pumpout

vessels associated with marinas for a total of 139 pumpouts to accommodate the removal of

recreational marine sewage from vessels topreserve and protect water quality in Long Island

Sound Since that time all ofthe waters of Long Island Sound in Connecticut and New York

have been designated by the EPA as a federally approvednodischarge area

Funding for this program known as the Clean Vessel Act CVA program comes from

the Sport Fishing and Boating Trust Fund which is supported by excise taxes on certain fishing
and boating equipment and boat fuels The CVA Grant Program helps keep coastal waters clean

and safe for recreation by safely disposing ofmillions ofgallons ofboaters sewage annually

The Connecticut CVA program serves as a good example to many other States and has been the

recipient of numerous awards for its excellence

Up to75 percent of the costofan approved project may be reimbursed under the

program whose purpose is to increase the availability ofproper waste handling facilities for

boaters which will reduce the discharge or poorly treated or untreated sanitary wastes into the

waters of Long Island Sound and its harbors thereby helping to improve water quality

The CVA program has awarded more than 12 million in grants since 1993 to fund more

than 525 projects in Connecticut providing grants to small marine business owners avaluable

service to boaters and providing improved water quality in Long Island Sound It is DEEPs

intent to continue funding for these facilities to further improve water quality in Long Island

Sound and other boating destinations in Connecticut including rivers and lakes in inland areas

For a copy of the Request for Proposals RFP visit the DEEP web page at

wwwctoffvdeepcva and select Grant Program Information or contact Kate Hughes Brown

Grants and Outreach Coordinator at 860 4243652 or by email atkatebrowncrctgov



y

Able Marine Surveyors
47 Fair Street

Guilford CT 06437

Cell 203 623 1933 Email bdrew1133caolcom

Robert Drew

National Association of Marine Surveyors Certified Marine Surveyor 107828

Society of Accredited Marine Surveyors Accredited Marine Surveyor 624

VESSEL SURVEY REPORT

GENERAL CONDITION

9000

This survey sets forth the condition of the vessel including hull machinery equipment fittings and

outfit to the best of the Surveyorsability without removing of bulkheads paneling ceilings or other portions of

her structure and without taking borings to ascertain thickness of structure testing for tightness and without

opening up of her machinery and auxiliaries for internal examination It represents the honest and unbiased

opinion of the surveyor but in no event is it to be considered a guarantee
This report is a summary of the findings of the survey performed on81412for the Bridgeport Port

Authority with the sole intent to determine the condition and value of the vessel Two copies of this report are

issued No other copies are authorized This report contains proprietary information which is intended for the

sole use of the Bridgeport Port Authority and is not sellable or transferable in any manneror form This report
is copyrighted under the copyright laws of the United States and any reproduction distribution or use is

expressly prohibited

Work order no 81412 j Report date L81612 I
Survey location Captains Cove Marina

Bridgeport CT
i Afloat Yes Hauled no

e

Kind of vessel Center Console Vessel name Bridgeport 23
Outboard

Year built
Y

98 I HIN number
L

KPN23005H898

Registration no NA Model no j High Seas 23

Length 23 LOA J Designer High Seas

Maximum beam T5 Intended use j Waste Pump Out Boat j
j Maximum draft 2 6 Builder High Seas Out of

s businessI
Displacement 3000 lbs w engine Where built Bristol RI

Cruise speed
R

20 ktsT
Name Brid a ort Port Authorig p tY

Attn Martha Klimas
Address 999 Broad St

r

City State Bridgeport CT06604

Waters navigated Bridgeport Harbor

Attending survey Robert E Drew

Copyright 2012 all rights reserved by Able Marine Surveyors Page 1 Of 3



9000

General Description

Center console High SeQS 23 used for waste pump out

Exterior Hull Superstructure Deck Details

Hull material Fiber Reinforced Plastic Hull finish White Gel Coat
FRP foam cored

Deck material FRP cored Decking finish Molded in Nonskid

Railings SS bow rail Rub rail Vinyl
General Condition Good
Note The hull and under body sides were inspected and sounded Percussion sounding
with a phenolic hammer indicated some areas of delamination in the cockpit sole
No areas of normally restricted access or visibility were opened up or uncovered at time of

survey Soft andor decayed wood weak fasteners and or other defects may exist which are

not readily apparent The attending surveyor can not be held liable for any such future

findings

Engine make Honda 150 Four Stroke
j A V

Serial no BAPJ1200028 Tj
2004

r Engine hrs i 39937
A

Fuel type Gasoline Y

Eng Appearance r Good

General Condition Appears good visually Engine was not run

Fuel capacity Unknown Material Unknown
Waste tank 350 Gals Material FRP built into hull

General Condition Tank is below cockpit sole and can not be inspected
Pumps

Bilge electric Rule 1 Waste Pump Edson 120 wNord Gear
and 4 HP 12VDC electric
motor

General Condition Not tested
DC Electrical System

v

Batteries 2 24 2 31 12VDC Securecovered Yes

Circuit protect Breakers

Battery charger Alternator

Wiring condition Where sighted OK

General Condition Systems were not operated

Copyright2012 all rights reserved by Able Marine Surveyors Page 2 of 3



Navigational Equipment
VHF 2 Standard Chart Plotter
h

Compass Ritchie 3 Horn
Garmin
Hand held

Radar Furuno Depth
General Condition No equipment was tested or operated

Adl

Trailer Z axle galvanized
wspare tire

Uniden

9000

General Condition Average tires in good condition but hydraulics brake wash system
and electrics need servicing

Summary Surveyor Notes

For the purposes of evaluation the condition equipment of this vessel is average for
her age and type This vessel is used for waste pump out She is 14 years old and shows
her age The engine has high hours This is a purpose built vessel with the waste pump
removed she could be used for recreational activities however retail value is low
because of the 350 Gallon block water holding tank

NADA Marine Appraisal Guide and local North East comparables were used to

determine the values shown below

Estimated fair market value

Boat 250000
Motor 300000
Edson 120 pump 125000 new250000
Trailer 80000

Total 755000

Submitted withcGt pdeiudice

Robert

Accredited Illarine Surveyor SAMSAMS
Certified Marine Surveyor NAMSCMS

Copyright 2012 all rights reserved by Able Marine Surveyors Page 3 of 3



BRIDGEPORT PUMP OUT ABLE MARINE SURVEYORS

as ofAugust 2012

A B C D E

1 Equipment Value Share values

2 City Title Assets

3 BOAT 250000
4 TRAILER 80000

5 total 330000
6 Federal share @ 75 247500

7 City share @ 25 82500

8

9

10 Port Authority acquired assets

11 MOTOR 300000
12 EDSON PUMP 125000

13 total 425000
14 Federal share @75 318750

15 BPA share @25 106250

16

17

18

19

20

21



CtYi

Offics of the Secreary IFteror

IRataniion oftixla Retain title after
coiupensating thr awarding agcaacy

The aniouact paid to theavasdisag agen
cy wi11 be computed by applying the

awarding ageneys percentage of par

ticipation is tla cost of the original
purchase to the fair market value of
the property Haweocr in those xitua
tions whore agranteeor subgrantee is

disposing of real property acquired
withgiant Eunds nand acquging replace
ment real property under thesame pro

grana the net proceeds froaaa tine dis

position may bt used as an ofEsttto the
cost of theraplaezrtproperty
2 Sara ofprapaYy Se11 thePaoPntY

artd compensate tlxe awarding agency
Thor amount due to tlae awarding agen
cy will be calculated by applying the

awarding agencys percentage of par
ticipation in the cost of the original
puredsasc to the proceaLs of the sale
after deduction of any actual and reams

soaaabfc rolling and fetingupcopenses

iffiho gcautustill active the ntrt pro
cecds from Salo may be offset agaiatsL
thearigiaalcost of tlae propertyt6hen
a gxansee os subgraneeis dereeted to

sell property sales procedures shall be
folla4edthat provide far coaspetitian
m the extentpracticssble and result irs
thehighest possible return

3 rrnrefsi qftirTa Transfer title to

the awazdixig agency or to a third

party desigaatexlTapproced by tlae
aweding agency Tlae grasaGx or sub
gtantee shall be paid an amount caI
culated by applying thegrantee orsuU

3raaatees percentage of participation
in the purchase of thereal property to

the currrsat fair sssarktvalue of the

ih

1242 EgttepaaeFak
a 2tixTs Subject to the obligations

and conditions act fortka in this section
title to equipment acquired under a

gratst oa zubgrattt vtdll vest upon acqui
sition ins tlae grantee or subgrantee re

spectioely
b Santos d4 State will nat manage

and dispose o eguipment acquired
under agrant by the State in accord
aacc with State laws and procedures
Otxr grantees and subgraatees will
foilou paragraphs c through e of
dais section

c Use 1Lqaipsnent shall be used

by the grantee o subgrantce in tlac

1272

program orproject forwhich itwas ac

clcaired as Lang as needed wheteror

not the project or progrms continues
to be supported by Federal foods VVhceu
no Iouger weeded for the original pro

gram orproject flat equipaent may be
wand in other actirities uuxently or

previously supported by a Federal
agency

2 The grantee or subgrantee shall
also make equipment esraiIable for urc

an other projects os programs ztr

rently or previously supported by the
Federal Government providing such
nscwillatot iaaterfere with thework on

the pr0CCtS oprogram fOr AhlCh Et

wax originally acquired First pref
erence or ot3acr usm drill be given to

other prograzns or projects supported
by theavardiag agexacy User fees
should be considered ifappropriate
1 1Yotvitlsstandiag tlac cncruragc

meut ins 1265a to earn program in
come the grantee ar subgtantee must

not use equipment acgtaared it6 great
funds to provide services far a fee to

couspcxe unfairly witch private compa
nies Shat provide ageairalent services
unless specifically pemaitted or on

tenaplated 6y Federal statute

4 Gi7ien acquirisag replacemetat
tquipaaent the grantee ar subgrantee
may use the oquipmesst to be replaced
as a tradeiaa or sell the property and
use the proceeds to OffiCt the bat Of
the replacemrat property subject to

the approval of the awardingagent
d Management7QfLLam6T16Prace

duats formmagiaig equipmesas includ
ing tcplacenaent equipment whether

acquired in whole orinpart withgranC
funds until dispositioua tames place
gill as amininanm meet the foitowiag
requirements
1 Progerty records must bea

taiaed that isac3udc adrscriptian of the

property a serial number or other
identificatiasa nsunber the saucce of

pzperty vho holds title ttaeaquisi
tion date and cost of tltproperty per

centage of Federal participation inthe
cost of the property the location use

and condition of the property and amy
ultimate disposition data including the
date of disposal and sale price of the
ProPeatY

323



BILL FINCH

Mayor

City ofBridgeport Connecticut
OFFICE OF PLANNING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

MARGARET E MORTON GOVERNMENT CENTER
999 BROAD STREET

BRIDGLPORTCONNCTICUT06604
TELLPHONE 203 57672Z 1

FAX Z03 332561 1

DAVID M KOORIS

Director

Corrrn 2213 Referred to ECDE Corrgnittee on1212014 CANCELLED
Carried over to February 3 2014

Office ofthe City Clerk
45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport CT 06605

January 15 2014

Dear City Clerk

Attached please find a resolution that would authorize the Extension ofa Tax Incentive
Agreement for 285 Maplewood Avenue in support of aS million refurbishment ofthis
1 l8unit affordable housing development This item is for referral to the Economic and
Community Development and Environment Committee

Sine ely
Il 1

a

Bill oleman ri
Director of Neighborhood Development A

nCC Mayor Finch gym3

Andrew Nunn CAO
David Kooris OPED Soto

cn n
ao rr

t



A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

Authorizing the Extension of a Tax Incentive Agreement
for the

Sycamore Place Apartments
an Affordable Housing Development

at 285 Maplewood Avenue

Whereas Sections8215 and Section8216 of the Connecticut
General Statutes the Statute provide that municipalities may by
ordinance provide for real estate tax abatements for housing
developed solely for low or moderateincome persons and may
enter into Agreements with the State of Connecticut acting
through its Department of Economic and Community
Development the State to provide for the States

reimbursement at the Statesdiscretion to the municipality of
such taxes abated for this purpose

Whereas the Statute provides that such tax abatement shall be
used for one or more of the following purposes 1 To reduce rents

below the levels which would be achieved in the absence of such
abatement and to improve the quality and design of such housing
2 to effect occupancy of such housing by persons and families of

varying income levels within limits determined by the

Commissioner of Economic and Community Development by
regulation or 3 to provide necessary related facilities or services

in such housing

Whereas Sycamore Place Apartments located at 285 Maplewood
Avenue the Property is a 118unit affordable housing
development deedrestricted exclusively for low and moderate

income residents earning less than Sixty 60 percent of the

AreasMedian Income



Whereas the Property was originally constructed and owned by
the Bridgeport Rotary Club Housing Corporation the Original
Owner

Whereas the Sycamore Housing Associates Limited Partnership a

Connecticut Limited Partnership with an address co The

Wishcamper Companies Three Canal Plaza Suite 501 Portland
Maine 01401 the Developer purchased the Property for

4000000 on11302011 and has since invested approximately
5000000million in the renovation of the Property including the

following improvements new roof new windows new elevators
new kitchens new floors new appliances new fixtures new

paint as well as an expanded community room new handicapped
accessible units exterior masonry repairs new landscaping
parking lot restriping and signage known herein collectively as

the Project

Whereas the Developer is aforprofit limited partnership the

general partner of which is Charlton Realty the Managing Member

for which is the Wishcamper Companies a national affordable

housing developer and owner

Whereas the Developer manages the Property through its

affiliated property management company Preservation

Management Inc the Property Manager which manages a

portfolio of over 10000 units in 18 states and has been providing
management and resident services at affordable housing properties
for more than 17 years



Whereas the Property Manager provides the residents with a

Resident Services program which include a part time resident
Services Coordinator who is responsible for the implementation of
the Services Plan for this property which includes such programs as

1 Preventative health care education

2 Information regarding available community services

3 Information regarding available community homemaker
services

4 Information regarding available health care for elderly and

handicapdisabled individuals

5 Information regarding available community transportation
particular service for individuals with mobility impairments

6 Information regarding medication programs
7 Computer and Internet use

8 Information on financial counseling
9 Information on mental health counseling
10 Reasonable Accommodation process
11 Description of the special accessibility amenities within

the apartments and the property

known herein collectively as the Resident Services

Whereas per resolution dated February 7 1972 the Bridgeport
City Council authorized the abatement of up toonehundred

100 percent of the real property taxes on the Property subject
to the City of Bridgeport the City and the Original Owner

executing a contract Tax Incentive Agreement that would per
the Statute restrict occupancy to persons of low or moderate

income and that would obligate the Original Owner to use the tax

abatement to allow a monthly occupancy cost consistent with such

income levels while providing quality housing all as per the

requirements of State Statute and local ordinance



Whereas the Tax Incentive Agreement was executed between the

City and the Original Owner on January 14 1974

Whereas per City Council resolution dated November 3 2003 the

City Council allowed for the continuation of the Tax Incentive

Agreement allowing that it could be assigned to a future owner

beyond the Original Owner provided that the City Council

approve such a future owner

Whereas per resolution dated March 7 201 1 the City Council

approved the Developer as the future owner and Assignee for the

Tax Incentive Agreement

Whereas on an administrative level per the Tax Incentive

Agreement and the Citys corollary agreement with the State the

City receives no tax payment directly from the owner of the

Property neither the Original Owner historically nor the

Developer going forward but instead receives a payment from the

State subject to the availability of State funding

Whereas the City of Bridgeports Office of Planning and

Economic Development OPED finds that the public purposes
of the Statute are met with respect to this Project and that the

Project is consistent with the Citys Master Plan and that it is in the

Citys interest to support the reinvestment in the Property

Whereas the Developer has presented OPED with an operating
proforma that shows reasonable operating expenses and reserves

as per industry standards

Whereas OPED has conducted the Economic Justification

Analysis required by Section320040 of the Citys Tax Incentive

Development Program the Ordinance and has concluded that

absent the provision of a Tax Incentive Agreement fixing real



estate taxes at the schedule provided herein the Development shall
not attract the capital it needs to proceed

Whereas the Project meets the Eligibility Criteria outlined in
Section320030 of the Ordinance

Whereas it is in the Citys interest to encourage the development of

high quality affordable housing with services for its senior

residents

Whereas the Developer has a solid track record in developing and

managing such projects

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that consistent with all
actions taken by the City Council to date with respect to this

Property the Director of the Office of Planning and Economic

Development or the Director of the Office of Finance of their

Designee is authorized to negotiate and execute a Tax Incentive

Development Agreement consistent with and in conformance with
the provisions of the Tax Incentive Agreement of January 14
1974 carrying such provisions forward for a period not to exceed

forty years

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor the Chief

Administrative Officer the Director of the Office of Planning and
Economic Development the Tax Assessor the Tax Collector and

the Director of Finance are each authorized to negotiate and
execute such other agreements and take such other necessary or

desirable actions in furtherance of the Project and consistent with
this resolution as they may deem to be in the best interests of the

city



fiTYAPfORNEY

Mark T Anastasi

DGPl1I1CITYATTORNEIr

Arthur C Laskc I11

ASSOCIATE CITYATTORNFYS

fregory M Conte

Betsy A Edwards
Melanie J Howlett

Richard G Kascak Jr
Russell pIiskov

John R Mitola

ASSIS1ANiC1TY ATTORNEYS
Sahatore C pePiano
R hristopher Meyer

Eroll V Skyers
telephone 20357ti7647
Facsimile 203 576 8252

Ronald J Pacacha Co 2313 Referred to Contr ets Cotnittee on

Lisa R Trachtenbur 1212014 Cancelled
A

Carried over to February 3 2014
January 15 2014

Fleeta C Hudson City Clerk rn
Frances Ortiz Asst City Clerk cn i
Office of the City Clerk rn
45 Lyon Terrace o
Bridgeport CT 06604 ii

ca rf

Re Proposed Resolution Concerning Tax Cooperation Agreement between Nousing Authorityof the City of Bridgeport Local Authority and City of Bridgeport Municipality regarding
Maplewood Caurt Apartments

Dear Ms Hudson Ms Ortiz

Kindly place the attached draft Resolution on the Agenda for the City Council meeting of
Tuesday January Z1 ZU14 for referral to the Contracts Committee

Enclosed herewith are the requisite Z5 copies ofthe proposed resolution

Thank you for your assistance in this matter

Very truly yours

Ma k T Anastasi

City Attorney

Cc Mayor Bill Finch

Thomas McCarthy City Council President
Adam Woad COS
Andrew Nunn CAO

David ICooris Dir DPED

Lynn Haig Senior Planner

tITY OF BRIDGEPORT

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
999 Broad Strcct

13ridgcportfonnecticut 066034328

3a



Draft Rev11514

CITY COUNCIL RE5OLUTiON

WHEREAS the City of Bridgeport theCityencourages the creation of housing
opportunities for all of its residents and

WHEREAS the City encourages the restoration of historically and architecturally
significant properties and

WHEREAS the Developer Maplewood School Limited Partnership or its successor has
created a residential property located at 434 Maplewood Avenue commonly known as

Maplewood Court and

WHEREAS residential rents are targeted to low and moderate income households and

WHEREAS the project would be economically infeasible without some measure of tax
relief from the City and

WHEREAS the City of Bridgeport approved aPaymentinLieuofTaxesPILOT for the
project for a period not to exceed ten 10 years such payment to be based upon the post
construction assessed value of the property and said PILOT expired in 2005 and

WHEREAS Bridgeport Housing Authority in association with Mutual Housing
Association of SWCT located eight 8 Father Panik Village replacement units at 434

Maplewood Avenue and

WHEREAS upon information and belief the City of Bridgeport Bridgeport Housing
Authority and Mutual Housing Association ofSWCT entered into a Cooperation Agreement in

April 1999 governing taxation of these eight 8 units and

WHEREAS the Contracts Committee of the City Council of the City of Bridgeport
favorably referred the Cooperation Agreement to the Consent Calendar of the City Council for

their December 21 1998 meeting and

WHEREAS minutes of the December 21 1998 City Council meeting are unavailable to

document the full City Councils approval of the Cooperation Agreement

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of tFre City of Bridgeport
hereby ratifies and approves that certain Cooperation Agreement for the Maplewood Court

project copy attached as if adopted on December 21 1998 and agrees to its implementation
effective as ofApril 1999



6 S

rrrtuuteruO

eyppo

To the Common Council of the City of Bridgeport

The Committee onQ1i3A45and recommends for adoption the follodting reeolueOnleave to repoCt

Nol98 CONSvTCALnDAR

RESOLVED That attached Taz Cooperation Agreement between Housing
Authority ofthe City of Bridgeport the LocalAuthority and City of Bridgeport
called Municipalitysregarding Maplewood Court Apartments be and it hereby is in
all respects approved ratified and confirmed

RESPECTFULLY SUBMTI7TD
CONTRACTS COMIVII1TEE

Joscp6iue MCovino

Andres Ayala

Joel Gonzales

Auden Grogiue

Maureen E Ariacoll

NichedJ MarellaJr

James Holloway



alf cut no aGiacuo IOL L6C ntvvr UAlVAs0 YyuuuauUltl
2F13 7f32 213f39

r

This Agraernent entered into this day of 1998 byandbetwoen the

Housing Authotity of the Cityof Bridgeport theiocalAuthority and the Cityof Bridgeport
herein called the MuaioipaUty tvitnessech

In toasideration ofthe mutual covpiaants hercinatbr sot fvrtb theparties hotetodo agree

as follows

1 Wheneverused in this Agrcemcat

a The farm Project shall mean the historic renovation of two threestory

iotaofdtoctturybrick ateactureslocaoed at 434 Maplewood Avenue

Bridgeport Connecticut into amixedfnuuece developtndnt ooncistingofa

thirtytwo32unit mutuathoushtg community the Dwelling Units

eight ofwhich Dwelling Units of the Development grill besetaside as

public housing as deBnod in Suction 3bof the UniAcd States klousing

Actof x937 as amended the Aotthe Public 13ottaing Uttite

b The tarn Taxing Body shall moan the State qraqy politivalsubdivisian

or taxing unit thereof is which the Project is situated and whichwould

have authority to assess or levy real or personal prppexty taxes ar to acxtify

such taxes to x taxingbody orpublicofficer to be levied for its use aad

bcneStwith respect to the Public Housing Units if theywere not exempt

from taxatioa

lJ



OJ 4 FJ yevo roc Ltl6M IYlbllh tc LAlVA1M

978z 28t39 uooaiooio

c The term ShelterRear shall mean the total ofall charges to the lenante

of the Public Housing Unitsatcluding all ether income associated with

tlyd Project loss the costs to theLocal Authority or the Maplewood
School Apatumcnta Limatod Partnonthip the Paxhtership associated

with the Public Housing UnitsPmsuaatto acertain Regulatory and

Operating Agreement between the Local Authority sad the Partnership
dated 1998 the Regalatory sad Operating Agrecrnent

2 e Pursuaxrt to Connoeticut General Statutes Section 858 the Public Housing
Units are exempt from aU real sad pcneonal property taxes levied orunposed by any Taxing
Body With respect to thePublic Housing Units so long asithe Public Housing Units are

owned by a public body orgoternmartatl agency orby as ageary or instmmentality designated
or appointed by rhoLocal Authority and are used for low raceme dousing pnrposea oriisay

coairaetbctweoa the Local Authority and the USDepartment ofIionsing andUrban

Devalopmeat HUD for loans or annual coatnbntionsorboth fie conaectlonwith and for rho

benefit of the Project remains in Ponca and etlectoriii any toads issttod in connection with the

Projector say monies due to HUD in eonnectIon withtlrcPtvjoct rctnain unpaid whichever

period is the longest the Municipality agrees that it will trot levy or impost any real or personal

ProPonY texas upon the Public Housing Units or upon thePartrship or anyother titleholder

with respat thereto The Pamrexship shall make anrnrsl payments hacnttcalled Payments in

Lieu ofTaxes is liwof such texts in paymcat for the public saviors cad facilidcs ftrmishod

from time to time without othercost orohargc for or with rospoct to the Public Rousing Units



sv w rvwo
naWal B LAAi

ZE9 i BIVUUSiUUltl

Such Payment inLieu of Taxes shall be considered and treated far all purposes hereunder as real
estate taxes

Eachsuch annual Payment in Lieu ofTaxes siaall ba roads at the end of
each calendar year and shall be inan amount equal to tartit1090 ofthe Shelter Rtatt

actually collected but in no eveaat to caceed the Shelter Rest charged dtuhtsuoh calendar year
orrho amount perntittad to bopaid by epplicabk state law in effect on rhoderv such payment is

tnado whichever amount is the lower

c NoPaylneat for any year shall bemark to the Municipality ineccess of

rho amount of the real pmporty taxes which wouldbout boar paid to rhoMunicipality for such

year ifthc PublicHousing Units werenot exempt from taxation

d 1a ao event shall theMunicipality take any action that would preclude the

Publia Housing Units from operation as public housing units 1t totaoterrrs ofthe

Regulatory sad Operatfngtecaneat

3 Commencing with flat dateof occupancy ofrhotst ofthe Public blousing Units
which shall be deomeci to occur upon HUD approvalof We CooperationAgeemept and the

Annual Contnbutions Ccaraotsopcxatiog subsidy for rhoPublic Housing Units sand contiIDUing
so long asithe Public Housing Units are owned by apubic body orgovcmcatal agency and

is used for low income housing proposes or iiany contractbetween rho Local Authority and

IiUI for loan or annual coattibtations orboth in connection wide sad for the baroIIt ofthe

Project remains in fence and offeat or iiiany bonds issuo8 in conaearon withthe Projector aqy

monfes due to HUll in connection with the Projectrentain unpaid witieheverperiodts the



aai cvido ac as icvf ds Y4litl nlblalh k LAhAltl
RJ00o80018

203 782 2689

longest the Municipality without cost or charge to the Perin etship other than the Paymaus
licv ofTaxes tho Local Authority or the occupants of the Projoet shall

a Furnish or cause to bo fuunished to the oxupants of the Publcc Housing
Unite public services and facilitios of the samo character and to tho same

extent as are iiirnished from time to time without cost or charge tcother

dwellings and inhabitants in the Municipality

b Accept grants of easements aocetsary for the development of the Pmject

Ifby reason oftheMunicipalitysfailure or refusal to fumislt or cause to be

furnished any publicservices yr facilities which it has agreed herewtdar to furnish or to cause to

be llunishod to thetenants of the Public Housing Units and the Partrlonship incurs any expense

to obtain such services orfactities then the Partnership upon cider ofa court of law having

jurisdiction over the matter may deduct the amount of such expense from any payments inLice

ofTaxes due or to become due to the Municipalityhereunder

So long as any contractbetween the lace Authority sad HUD for loans

inclttdiw Preliminary loans orarmual contributions orbolt is connectionwith the Project

remains in force and effect or ao long as anybonds issued in connection with Ste Pmjxt or aqv

monies due to HUD in cormeotion with the Project remain unpaid this Agreement shallnotbe

abrogated changed or tnodiftedwithout the eonserrt of IUD and the privilogas and obligations
of the Municipality hereunder shall rrmaln in 13111 force amt effect withteapect to the Prnjoct if

Y time beneFtoial title to or possession of the Public Ffoueing Units is held by suchother

public body orgovernmental agency or by g designated agency or instruimentality designated or



i

s

r atea yi ir ootl uvvaa uainio

203 7B2 2869
Y4IVUVIIUUIb

appointed by the Local Authority the provlsjons hornofshall inure to the benefit ofand may be

enforced by such othor puhlic body or governmental agency includingmMunicipality or such

designated agency or instrumontality
1N SSWIIEREOF the Municipality tho incal Authority and the partnership

have resptxtively signed this Agreement and caused theirscale to beaviced and attested as of
tfre dxy and year first above written

SICNIDSEALED AND DHLIVIIEI
IN THE PRESENCE OF

Name

Namo

ATTEST

CityClork

Name

Name

CITY OPBRtDJIORT

ay
Honorable JosophP Cianin
Mayor

THE HOUSINQ AUTHORITY OF THE
CITYOP BRNGEPORT

By
Clataroe34aig Jr
Its Bxeoutive Director

s



V283 782 2889
i

AGrRBED AND CONSENTED TO
THIS DAY OF 1998

MAPLEWOOD SCHOOLAIARTMNTS
LIIvIITED PARTNERSHIP

BY Maplewood Court Mutual Rousing
Association Iac
Ira GeneralPartner

Name

By

Namo YKiuetsch
Assistant Seomtary
Hcnctmto Duly Authorized

r

L

STATE OF CONNECtTC1J7y
New Haven 1998COi7NfYOF NEWHAVEN

Beforeme theundeasigned officer peisonslly appeatedTho Honorable 3oseph T
Ganiny whoaclnaowlcdged hinnself to be theMayor of the CITYOF BRIDpBpORT signer eadsealer ofthe foregoing ieatrument and aclanowiodgod the aamabbehisErseactand dadas such
Mayor and the ttcc act sad flood oftheCITY OFBRmGiEPORT

Commissioacr oftho3upaiorCourt
Notary Public
Mycommission expires

6



rv a4 av yrrv 1vI iHVI
a a MAA10

GVJ 2

au

ahvVVbi
VV1D

STATE OF CONNBCTlCUT
New Haven

998COUNTY OF NEW HAVEN

Before me tho undersignedocapersonally appoamdCg Craig Jr whoacIuowledged hiatsclfto be the ExocntivcDirxtorof T1iE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THECITY OF BRIDGBPORT sigtl and sealer of the foragoinigitsbvaxtrtaad aclaowledgod thesame to behis iieeact and decd as such Executivo Director and the free xrx and deed of THEHOUSINQ AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

Commissionea of the Supeaior Court
Notary Prtbltc

My oomrmssion expires

srATrrof coNNECTclrr
New Haven l 998

COUNTY OFNEW HAV81

Beforemc theundereigaod officer petsonaliy appearod Larry XCluetarb who
ackaowledgerl hirnsfllfto be thoAssistant Socmtary ofMaplewood Court Mutual RousingAssociation Ina a Connecticut coiporatioq general pardter ofMaplewood School ApartmentsLimited Partnetsltip signer and sealer ofthe foregoing insrnuaent and arJanowlegad the same tobt hisfree ectand daod as atrchoiicarand rho froo ad and deed of said general psriuar and
limited partnership before me

Commissionerof the Snpaior Court
Notary Public

My comxniasionoxphes

3oiosaochss3s3si7os

7



f CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
MARGARET E MORTON GOVERNMENT CENTER

999 Broad Street

Bridgeport Connecticut 06604

Telephone 2035767251 Fax 2035767067

ANNE KELLY LENZ
Finance DirectorBILLFINCH

Mayor

COMM 2413 Refd to Budget Appropriations Committee on 02032014

MEMORANDUM

T0 Fleeta Hudson City Clerk

FROM Anne KellyLenz Finance Director

DATE January 21 2014

SUBJECT APPROVAL OF TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES

To Pay Current Expenses and Obligations ofthe City

Enclosed are copies of the abovecaptioned resolution Please place this item on the Agenda for the
next regularly scheduled City Council meeting to be referred to the Budget Appropriations Committee

AKLmr

Enclosure

3

i
w

ice
i

rv
L rye

1

r
L

n

ik



PCFinal

11714

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

To the City Council ofthe City of Bridgeport

The Committee on BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS begs leave to report and
recommends for adoption the following resolution

NO

APPROVAL OF TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES
To Pay Current Ezpenses and Obligations of the City

BE IT RESOLVED that having received the recommendation of the Mayor of the City

ofBridgeport the City with respect to the action authorized herein the City Council ofthe

City ofBridgeport the City Council hereby approves the appropriation of an amount up to

10000000000 and the issuance of general obligation tax anticipation notes secured by the

Citys full faith and credit the Notes in an aggregate amount up to 10000000000

exclusive of Financing Costs as hereinafter defined for the purposes of i paying current

expenses and obligations of the City as are determined by the Mayor the Finance Director and

the Treasurer collectively the Officials to be in the best interest of the City to pay through

the issuance of the Notes and ii financing such additional costs and expenses in an amount not

to exceed one percent1 of such authorization as the Officials shall approve for the funding

of necessary and appropriate financing andor issuance costs including but not limited to legal

financial advisory investments fees net temporary interest or other financing and transactional

costs credit enhancement trustee underwriters discount printing and administrative expenses



as well as the costs ofthe establishment and maintenance of any reserve pursuant to Chapter 109

Chapter 112 and other chapters ofthe Connecticut General Statutes the Financing Costs and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Officials are further authorized on behalf of the

City to make temporary borrowings as authorized by the Connecticut General Statutes

including but not limited to Section 7405a of the Connecticut General Statutes and to issue

notes of the City in anticipation of the receipt of tax collections and such notes shall be issued

and renewed at such time and with such maturities requirements and limitations as provided by

the provisions ofthis resolution and the Connecticut General Statutes and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the Officials

if the Officials determine it is in the Citys best interest to acquire on behalf ofthe City bond

insurance or other forms of credit enhancement guaranteeing the Notes on such terms as the

Officials determine to be appropriate such terms to include but not be limited to those relating

to fees premiums and other costs and expenses incurred in connection with such credit

enhancement the terms of payment of such expenses and costs and such other undertakings as

the issuer of the credit enhancement shall require and the Officials if they determine that it is

appropriate are authorized on the Citys behalf to grant security to the issuer of the credit

enhancement to secure the Citysobligations arising under the credit enhancement including the

establishment ofareserve from proceeds of the Notes and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the Officials to

determine the date maturity prices interest rates whether fixed or floating form manner of sale

whether by negotiation or public sale or other terms and conditions ofthe Notes including the

terms ofany reserve that might be established as authorized herein whether any of the Notes

issued will be issued as taxable notes and whether the Notes will be issued in one or more series

2



on the same or one or more separate dates all in such a manner as the Officials shall determine

to be in the best interest ofthe City and to take such actions and to execute such documents or

to designate other officials or employees of the City to take such actions and to execute such

documents as deemed to be necessary or advisable and in the best interests of the City by the

Officials in order to issue sell and deliver the Notes and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the Officials in

connection with the issuance of the Notes to execute and deliver on behalf of the City such

reimbursement agreements remarketing agreements standby bond purchase agreements interest

rate swap agreements and other agreements for the purpose of managing the interest rate

fluctuations and risks and any other appropriate agreements the Officials deem necessary

appropriate or desirable to the issuance of the Notes and the Officials are hereby authorized on

behalf of the City to secure the payment of such agreements with the full faith and credit of the

City if they deem it necessary appropriate or desirable and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Notes shall be signed by the Mayor the

Treasurer and the Finance Director provided that such signatures of any two of such officers of

the City affixed to the Notes may be by facsimiles ofsuch signatures printed on the Notes and

each of such Officials and any designee of any of them is authorized to take such actions and

execute such agreements instruments and documents on behalf of the City that they deem

necessary appropriate or desirable to consummate the intendment of this and the foregoing

resolutions

3

ACTTVF556175YYILMA4464638vl



e

OeBGP0

C ti T ff

3 A f

mtyC
7 h

cORPORATEO

CHARLESMCARROLL
Director ofParks Recreation

City of Bridgeport Connecticut

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS RECREATION
7 TRUMBULL ROAD

TRUMBULL CONNECTICUT 06611
TELEPHONE 203 5767233

FAX 203 5767235

C0112513 Referred to Contracts Committee on 02032014

January 17 Z 014

T0 Fleeta Hudson City Clerk

LUANN CONINE
Recreation Superintentent

Enclosed are 13 packets for Council review at meeting on February 3rd
I am requesting you refer this to Contracts Committee for approval

The Golf course D Fairchild Wheeler requests council approval to lease the
tractor referenced in the contract City Attorney has reviewed and approved
the lease contract Attorney Contes signature is affixed on the required
document

Thank you for your consideration

Charles Carroll Parks Director

CMCrz

r
3

r

7

a
D rn

o

Y

I r



k
LACia7l

coaronnno

s Rosemary Zolyomi
ty of Bridgeport
39 Broad Street

ridgeport CT 06604

E Lease 178648000

ear Ms Zolyomi

Specialists irr

Golf arrrl TrrrfEgrripmerrt

November 18 2013

lease pass this documentation on to the appropriate person who is authorized to sign for the town

lease note Stamped signatures are not acceptable Must have documents with original signatures

nclosed please find the following documentation

se Puhase Agreement Please have the Authorized signer execute the documents and provide their title

on of Counsel Please have your attorney sign and provide the name of the lav firm if applicable located at the bottom of page 4

Please date sign name print name and titlecJG

r n List your Authorized Representativesand their titles In the body of the Resolution Nave the Authorized

representatives provide their names titles and signatures on the lines which appear under the Authorized Representative Signature Section near

e bottom ofthe Resolution Finally have the Secretary or appropriate Trustee attest to the information of the Authorized Representative by
igning and printing hisher name title and date on the Last signature line provided

the Lease Agreement The Resolution must reflect the title of the individuals who have authorization to sl n the documents 7

f Please complete the form Sign but DO NOT DATE When the equipment is delivered you
will receive a phone call confirming delivery GM C

eouest for Insurance Please note the page detailing instructions regarding the certificate of insurance required under the terms of the lease

se fill in Insurance Agent information then sign print name title and date at the bottom of the page A4Ilo
r

F Please sign date and Include the title of the signertO rPaSu2ri u
i

approving the purchase finance of equipment Please return a copy with the documentstp AlpTei

Please return a copy with the documents

Please include check in the amountof2063216made out to PNC Equipment Finance

Tease send all original documentation and check back to my attention to the following address

TTN Sue

2uick lease Corp
0 Box 1133
nfiekl CT 06083

Ve appreciate your business and look forward to working with you in the future Should you have any questions I can be reached at 860 253

867

ly

r

sue Mllliot

operations Manager

l7 ootav ltu 1 i3x 1133ltetuCttcrtctTOfiUiiCtt6Ufii7867 Fx tititl7631161



r

0gP
A ORIGINAL Purchase Orderd

M
v

h

n

pj
FI

A Y Fiscal Year 2014 Page 1 of 1

anoanito u5Ai PRFkCKAE3E A Q Hi RAPFig

B
I 355 Purchase 1400536800O

PARKS ADMINISTRATION
rder

999 BROAD ST
FIRST FLOOR Delivery must be made within
BRIDGEPORT CT 06604 doors of specified destination

PNCEF LLC
FAIRCHILD WHEELER MAINT GARAGE995 DALTON AVE
1062 CHURCH HILL RD

CINCINNATI OH 45203 I
a FAIRFILD CT 06825

6245 I SAM K 2036733438

11082013 106484 11052013 PARKS ADMINISTRATION

L cnontFartElio qty LIOItlrlWrce dire
FWST28814A LAWN GROUNDS MTCE

1 GOLF PURCHASE PROCOREBLOWER PROCORE648 203822 EA 000 2038216
MULTIPR05800
AS PER SALES ORDER AGREEMENT NUMBERS
764327643376444 LEASE OF INDUSTRIAL
EQUIPMENT

010303033100055145 2038216
STATE CONTRACT 10PSX0307 LAWN AND GROUNDS
MICE EQUIPMENT END DATE13114TOTAL 20
38216

16



City of idspprt Check Nwnbr00089347

1112013 1748000 CUSTOMER1164628 PO 14005368 Voucher14020376 2063216

owtInaaazoso PNCEF LLC 00089347 12272013 2063216

City of Bridgeport
vaor Check

5157Numiber Daie NumbeY

Officeof theCity Treasurer 106484 12272013 00089347 ins

45tyon Terrace Vblp 1Qf1 DAYS FRCSM DAlEOFt33UE
siasrcT

2ots3sls

TwentyThusatidSix Hundied Thnty wo tJotlarsar7d 16 cents

To The y995 DALTON AVE MP
OrlerOf CIICINNkTIOH 45203

nlmerka
FtarlfadCT qrs a MPa

t Tswey

tl00089 34 7tt 0 L L 900 5 7 L 00000 5 6 L 6 2tl



LeasePurchase Agreement Dated as ofNovember 1S 2013

Lease Namber 178648000

E04

Lessor PNC Equipment Finance LLC
995 Dalton Avenue

Cincinnati OH 45203

Lessee tESSSeruracarr rx m

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT
999 BROAD STREET

BRIDGEPORT CT 06604

Ob6 001865

Equipment See attached Certificate ofAcceptance for Equipment Description
Description

Rent Lease Term is for 60 months with Rentpayments due in Advance monthly quarterly semi
Payment annual annually each in the amounts set forth in the attached Schedule ofPayments
Schedule

Lessee shall pay Rent payments exclusively from legally available funds in UScurrency to Lessor in the amounts and on the
dates set forth herein without notice ordemand

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 LEASE Subject to the terms of this Lease Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor the equipment the Equipment described in the attached
CeRificate of Acceptance when Lessor accepts this Lease Lessee agrees to be bound by all the teens of this Lease

2 DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF EQUIPMENT Acceptance of the Equipment occtvs upon delivery When Lessee receives the
Equipment Lessee agrees to inspect it and to verify by telephone or in writing such information as Lessor may requite Delivery and installation
costsare Lesseesresponsibility If Lessee signed a purchase contract for the Equipment by signing this Lease Lessee assigns its rights but none of
its obligations under the putdtase contract to Lessor

3 RENT Lessee agrees to pay Lessor Rent plus applicable taxes in the amount and frequency stated above IfLesseesRent payments an due in
Advance Lessees first Rent payment is due on the date Lessce accepts the Equipment under rho Leases Lessor will advise Lessee as to a the due
date of cackt Rent payment and b the address to which Lessx must send payments Rent is due whether or not lessee rroeivcs an invoice from
Lessor Lessee will pay Lessor any required advance rent when Lessee signs this Lease Lessee authorizes Lessor to change the Rent by notmore
than 1596 due to changes in the Equipment configuration which may occur prior to Lessors acceptantx of this Lease Reshiaive endorsements an

checks Lessee sends to Lessor will not reduce Lessees obligations to Lessor Unless a proper exemption certificate is provided applicable sales and
use taxeswill be added to the Rent

NONAPPROPRIATION OR FUNDS Lessee intends to remit all Rertt and other payments to Lessor for the full Lease Term if funds are legally
available In the event Lessee is not granted anappropriation of funds at any time during the Lease Term for the Equipment subject to this Lease and
operating funds are not otherwise available to Lessee to pay the Rent and other payments due and to become due under this Lease and there is no
other legal procedure or available funds by or with which payment can be made to Lessor and thenettappropriation did not result from an net or
omissbn by Lessee Lessee shall have the right to return the Equipment in accordantx with Section 16 of the Lease and terminate this Lease on the
last day of the fiscal period for which appropriations were received without penalty or expense to Lessee except as the portion of Rent for which
fbnda shall have been appropriated and budgeted At least 30 days prior to the end ofLesseesfiscal year Lessces chiefexecutive officer or legal
counsel shall certify in writing that a funds have not been appropriated for the upcoming fiscal period b such nonappropriation did not result
from any act or failtm to set by Lessee and e Lessor hes exhausted all fitnds legally available for the paymentofRent

4 UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION LESSEE AGREES THAT 1T IS UNCONDITIONALLY OBLIGATED TO PAY ALL RENT AND
ANY OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE N ALL FISCAL YEARS W WHICH FUNDS NAVE BEEN APPROPRIATED NO
MATTER WHAT HAPPENS EVEN IF THE EQUIPMENT IS DAMAGED OR DESTROYED IF IT IS DEFECTIVE OR IF LESSEE
HA3 TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT LOSS OF ITS USE LESSEE IS NOT ENTITLED TO ANY REDUCTION OR SET0FF
AGAINST RENT OR OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE FORANY REASON WHATSOEVER

S DISCLAIMEROF WARRANTIES THE EQUIPMENT IS BEING LEASED TO LESSEE IN ASlSCONDITION LESSEE AGREES
TNAT LESSOR HAS NOT MANUFACTURED THE EQUIPMENT AND THAT LESSEE HAS SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT BASED
UPON LESSEESOWN JUDGMENT LESSEE HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY STATEMENTS LESSOR OR ITS EMPLOYEES HAVE
MADE LESSOR HAS NOT MADE AND DOES NOT MAKE ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED REPitESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES
WHATSOEVER INCLUDWG WITHOUT LIMITATION THE EQUHMENTSMERCHANTABILITY FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE SUITABILITY DESIGN CONDITION DURABILITY OPERATION QUALITY OF MATERIALS OR
WORKMANSHIP OR COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS OR APPLICABLE LAW Lessee is aware of the name of the Equipment
manufacturer and Lessee will contact the manufacturer for a description of Lesseeswarranty fights If the manulireturtrhas provided Lessor with a

warranty Lessor assigns its tights to such warranty to lessee and Lessee may enforce alt warranty rights directly against the manufacutrer of the

Equipment Lessee agrees to settle any dispute regarding performance of the Equipment directly with the trtanufacttuaofthe Equipment
6 TITLE AND SECURITY INTEREST Unless otherwise required by the laws of the state where Lessees is located Lessee shall have title to the

Equipment immediately upon ddivery and shall be deemed to be the ownerof the Equipment as long as Lessee is not in default under this Lease In
the watt ofa default title to the Equipment shall revert to Lessor Prec and clear of any tights or interest Lessee tnay have in the Equipment To
secure all of Lessees obligations to Lessor under this Lease Lessce hereby grants Lessor a security interest ina the Equipment to the extent of



Leksas interest in the Equipmentb anything attached added replaced andorsubstituted to the Equipment at any time c arty money or propeny
from thesale of the Equipment and d any money from an insurance claim if the Equipment is lost or damaged Lesser agrees that the security
interestwill nest beatlectod ifthis Lease is changed in any way

7 USE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR Lessee will not move the Equipment from the Equipment Location without Lessorsadvance written

conseat Lesser will give Lessor reasonable access to the Equipment Location so that Lessor can check the Equipmentsexistence condition and

Proper maintenance Lessee will use the Equipment in the manner for which it wasintrnded as required by all applicable manuals and instructions
and keep it eligible for any manufactttrascertification andorstandard full service maintenance contract At Lesseesown cost and exprnse Lessee

will keep the Equipment in good repair condition and working order ordinary wear and tear excepted Lessor will not make any permanent
alterations to the Equipment

8 TAXES lessee agras to pay Lessor when invoiced all taxes including arty sales use and personal property taxes fines interest and penalties
relating to this Lease and the Equipment excluding taxes based on Lessors net income Lessee agrees to file any rcquirod personal property tax
rattans and if Lessor asks Lessee will providetessor with proofotpaymrnt Lessor does act have to contest any tax assessments

9 NDEMNlTY Lessor is not rcsponsble for any injuries damages penalties claims or losses inducing legal expenses incurred by Lessee or any
other person txrusod by the transportation installation mannfacturc selection purthasc lease ownership possession modification maintrnance
condition operation use return or disposition of the Equipment To the extent permitted by lawlessoe agrees to reimburse Lessor for and defend
Lessor against any claims for such losses damages penalties claims injuries or exprnscs This indemnity continues even after this Lease has

expired for acts or omissions that otxutred during the Lease Term

10 IDENTIFICATION Lessee authorizes Lessor to insert or wrrcct missing information on this Lease includingLessees official name serial
numbers and any other information describing the Equipment Ixssor will send Lessce copies of such changes lessee will attach to the Equipment
any name plates or stickers lessor provides lessee

I1 LOSS OR DAMAGE lessee is responsible for any loss of the lquipment from any cause at all whether or not insured from the time the

Equipment is shipped to Lesser until it is returned to Lessor If any itemotFquipmrnt is lost stolen or damaged Lessee will promptly notify Lessor
of such event Then at Lessors option Lessee will either a repair the Equipment so that it is in good condition and working order eligible for any
manufacturers certification or b pay lessor an amount equal to the Net Baok Value as defined in Section 14 of the lost stolen or damaged
Equipment If Lessee has satisfied their obligations under this Section 11 Lessor will forward to Lessee any insurance procads which Lessor
receives for lost damaged or dcsaoyod Equipment Iflasce is in default Lessorwill apply any insurance proceedstessor receives to reduce
Lessors obligations under Section 14 of this case

12 INSURANCE Lessee agrees to s keep the Equipment fully insured against loss naming Lessor as loss payer and b obtain a general public
liability insurance policy covering both personal igjury and property damage in amounts not less than Lessor may tell Lessee naming Lessor as
additional insured anti lessee has met all theirobligations under this ease Lessor is under no duty to tell Lesser if Lessors insurance coverage is

adequate The policies shall state that Lessor is to be notified of any proposed cancepation at least 30 days prior to the date act for cancellation

Upon Lessors request Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with certificates or other evidence of insurance acceptable to Lessor If Lessee dons not

provide Lessor with evidence of proper insurance within ten days of Lessors request or Lessor receives notice of policy cancellation Lessor may
but Lessor is not obligated to obtain insurance on Lessors interest in the Equipment at lessorsexpense Lesser will pay all insurance premiums
and relued charges

3 DEFAULT Lessee will be indefault under this Lease if any of the following happens a Lessor does not receive any Rent or other payment due
undo this Lease within tea days after its due dateb Lessee fails to perform or observe any other promise or obligation in this lease and does not

correct the default within ten daysafter lessor sends Lessee written notice of default c any reprcsrntation warranty or srotement Lessee has made
in this Lease shall prove to have ban false or misleading in any material respocl d any insurance carrier canals or threatens to cancel any
insurance on the Equipment ethe Equipment or any part of it is abused illegally used misused lost destroyed or damaged beyond repair Q a

petition is filed by or againstlessa under any banluuptry or insolvrncy laws org Lessee defaults on any other agreement between it andIcssor

or Lessors slnliates
14 REMEDIES Upon the occurnnce of a default Lessor may in its sole discretion do any or all of the following e provide written notice W

Leases of default b as liquidated damages for loss of a bargain and not as a penalty datare due and payable the present value ofiany and all
amounts which may be then due and payable by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease plus iiall Rrnt payments remaining through the end of the then
current fiscal year discounted at the higher of36 or Utc lowest rate allowed by law collectively the Net book Value and c require Lessee to

immediately rctum the Equipment w Lessor Lessor has the right to require Lessee to make the Equipmrnt available to Lessor for rcposscssion
during reasonable business hours or Lessor may repossess the Equipment so long as Lessor does not breach the peace in doing so or Lessor may use

legal process incompliance with applicable law pursuant to court order to have the EquipmentnpossessedLessor will not make any claims against
Lessor or the fquipmcnt for trespass damage err any other reason If Lessor takes possession of theFquipmrnt Lessor may a sell or case the

Equipment at public or private sale or lease andorb exercise such other rights as may beallowed by applicable law Although Lessee agrees that
Lessor has no obligation to sell the Equipmrnt if lessor dots sell the Equipment Lessor will reduce the Net Book Value by the amounts Lessor
reoeives lessa will immediately pay Lessor the remaining Nct Book Value asses agrees a that Lessor only needs to give Lessor ten days
advance notice of any sale and fro notice of advertising b to pay all of the costs Lessor incurs to rnforce Lessors rights against Lessor including
attorneys foes and c that Lessor will retain all of Lessors rights against Lesser even if lessor does not choose to enforce them at the time of
Lesseesdefault

IS LESSEESOPTION AT END OF LEASE Provided lessee is not in default upon expiration of the Lease TermIessce has the option to

purchase all but not less than all of the Equipment for 5100plus all sales and otherapplicable taxes
Ili RETURN OF EQUIPMENT If a default occurs or banonappropriation of funds occurs in accordance with Section 3 Lessee will

immediately return the Equipment to any locationsin the continrnW United States and aboard any carrierssLessor may designate Thc

Equipment must tx properly packed for shipmrnt in accordance with the msnufsaurtrsrecommrndations or spailications freight prepaid and

insured maintained in accordance with Suction 7 and in Average Saleable Condition Average Saleable Condition means that all of the

Equipment is immediately available for use by a third party buyer user or lessee other than Lessee named in thisIeasc without the nerd for any
repair or retbrbishmart AllEquprnertmust ire free of markings Lessee will pay lessor for any missing or defxtive parts or accessories lesscc

will centime to pay Rent until the Equipmrnt isroceived sad accepted by Lessor

17 LESSEES REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES lessee hereby represents and warrants to lessor that as of the dateof this Lease and

throughout the Lease TermaLessor is the rntity indicated in this Lease bLessee is a State or a fully constituted political subdivision or agency
of the State in which Lesser is located c Lessor is duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State in which they are

located d lessee is authorized to enter Into and carry out Lessees obligations under this Lease any documrnts relative to the acquisition of the

Equipment and any other documents required b be delivered in connection with this Lease collectively the Documents ethe Documents have

3



boob duly authorized executed and delivered by Lessee in atxordance with all applicable laws rules ordinances and regulations the Documrnts are

1alid IegW binding agreements enforceable in accordance with their termst and the persons signing the Documents have the atuhority to do so arc

acting with the fullatuhoritionof Lesseesgoverning body and hold the offices indicated below their signatttrc each ofwhich ere genuine f dre

Fquipmrnt is essrntial to the immediate performance eta governmental or proprietary function by Lessee within the scope of Lessees authority and

shall be used during the Lease Tenn only by Lessee and only to perform such function g Lessee intends to Ilse the Equipttrettt for the entire Lease
Tam and shall take alt necessary action to include in Lessees annual budget any funds required to fulfill Lesseesobligations for each fiscal year
during the Lease Term h Lessee has complied fully with all applicable law governing open meetings public bidding and appropriations required in
connection with this Lease and the acquisition of the Equipment iLessees obligations aremit Rent under this Lease constitutes a current pcpense
and not adebt under applicable state law and no provision of this Leases constitutes a pledge of Lessces tax or general revenues and any provision
which is so constructed by awort of competent jurisdiction is void from the inception of this lease Q all payments due and to become due during
Lessees current fiscal year are within the Rscal budget of such year and are included within an unrestricted and unencumbered appropriation
currently available for the leasrlpurehasc of the Equipment k Lessee shall net do or cause to be done any act which shall cause or by omission of

any act allow the interest portion ofany Rent payment to biome includible in Lessorsgrins income for Federal inrnme taxation purposes under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code 1 Leases shall maintain awmplete and accurate record of all assignments of thislcasc
in the forth sufficient to wmply with the book entry roquiremrnts of Section 149aotthe Code and the regulations prescribed thereunder from time
to time m Lessee shall comply with the information reporting requirtntatts of Section 149eof the Code such wmpliance shall include but not
be limited to the execution of IRS Form 8038Gor8038GC andnall financial information Lessee has provided to Lessor is true and accurate and

provides a good represrntation of Lessees financial wndition
18 LESSEESPROMISES In addition to the other provisions of this Lease Lessee egrets that during the term of this Lease a Lessee will promptly

notify Lessor in writing if it moves its principal office or changes its name or Iegel structure b Lesser will provide to Lessor such financial
infomnation as may rtasonably request from time to time and c Lessee will take any action lessor reasonably roqucsts to protect Lessors rights in
the Equipmrnt and to meet Lessees obligations under this Lease

19 ASSIGNMENT LESSEE WILL NOT SELL TRANSFER ASSIGN PLEDCE SUBLEASE OR PART WITH POSSESSION OF THE
EQUIPMENT OR FILE OR PERMITA LIEN TO BE FILED AGAINST THE EQUIPMENT Lessee will not attach any of the Equipment to

any real estate Upon Lessors reasonably request and at Lessees east Lessex will obtain tiom each person having an interest in the teal estate
where Ute Equipment is lotxted awaiver ofany rights they may have in the Cquipmrnt

20 ASSIGNMENT BY LESSOR This Lease and the rights of Lessor hereunder and 3n and to the Equipmrnt may be assigned and reassigned in
whole or in part to one or more assignors by Lessor or its assigns at any time without the necessity of obtaining the consent of Lessee provided
however no such assignment or rrassignmynt shall be effective unless and until Lessee shall have been given written notice of assignment disclosing
the name and address of the assignee or its agent authorized to receive payments and otherwiseservice this Lease on its behalL Upon receipt of
notice ofassigtunent Lessee agrees to record the same inrtcords maintained for such purpose and further to make all paymenu as designated in the
assignment notwithstanding any claim defrnse setoRor wunterclaim whatsoever whether arising from a breach of this Lease or otherwise that
Lessce may from time to time have against lessor or Lessors assigns Lessee agrees to execute all documents including acknowledgments of
assignment which may reasonably be requested by Lessor or its assigns to protect their interests in the Fquipmrnt and in this Lease

21 COLLECTION EXPENSES OVERDUE PAYMENT TERMINATION Lessee agrees that Lessor can but does not have to take on Lessees
behalf any action which Lessee fails to take as required by this Lease and Lessors expenses will be in addition to that of the Rent which Lessee
owesLessor IfLessor rtxefves any payment from Lessee after the due date Lessee shall pny Lessor on demand as a late charge 596 ofsuch overdue
amount limited however to the maximum amount allowed by law Upon 30 days prior written notice by Lessee to Lessor and so long as there is
no Isvrnt of Default then existing Lessee shall have the option to purchase all but not less than all oC the Equipment covered by the Lease on any
Rent Payment due date by paying to Lessor all Rcnt Payments then due including accrued interest if any plus the Termination Value amount set
forth on the Payment Schedule to the applicable Lease for such date Upon satisfaction by Lessee of such purchase wnditions Lessor shall release
its Lien on such Equipment and Lessee shall retain its title to such Equipment ASISWHEREISwuhout representation or wartartty by Lessor
express or implied except for a rcprcserttation that such Equipment is Ira and clear ofany Liens created by Lessor

22 AGREED LEASE RATE FACTOR Leuce understands that the Equipment may be purchased for cash the Equipment Cost or it may be
leased By signing this Lease Lessor acknowledges that it has chosen to lease the Equipment from Lessor for the Lease Term and that lessee has
agrad to pay Rent Each payment of Rent includes a principal amount based on the Equipment Cosl and a Icase charge rate If it is determined that
Iessecs payments under this Lease result in an interest payment higher than allowed by applicable law then any excess interest collected will be
applied to the repayment of principal and interest will be charged at the highest rate allowed by law In noevent will Lessor charge or receive or will
Lessee pny any amounts in excessof the Icgalamount

23 MISCELLANEOUS This Lease contains lice entire agreement and supersedes any conQicting provision of any equipment purchase order or any
other agreement TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS LEASE Ifa court finds any provision ofIcasc to be unrnforeeablc the remaining
terms of this Lease shall remain incfIect THIS LEASE IS A FINANCE LEASE AS DEFINED IN ARTICLE 2A OF THE UNIFORM
COMMERCIAL CODE legsee authorizes Lessor or Lessors agent to a obtain credit reports bmake such other credit inquires as Lessor

may deem necessary and c furnish payment history information to credit reporting agencies To the extent permitted by law Lessor may charge
Lcssa a fee of 525000to rover Lessorsdaeumentation and investigation vests

24 NOTICES Allof Lesseeswritten notices to Lessor must be scot by certified mail or recognized overnight delivery service postage prepaid to

Lessor at Lessorsaddress stated in this Lease or by facsimile transmission to Lessors facsimile telephone numbs with oral wnfirmation of
rcceip4 Allotlessorsnotices to Lessee may be sent first class mail postage prepaid to Lessorsaddress stated in this lease Atany time alter this
lcase is signed Lessor orLessor may change an address or facsimile telephone number by givingnotice to the otherof the change

2S ANTIMONEY LAUNDERINGINTERNATIONALTrtADECOMPLIANCE Lessee represents and warrants to Lessor as of the date of this
Lease the date ofeach advance of proceeds under the Lease the date of any renewal extension or modification of this Lease and at all times until
the Lease has barn terminated and all amounts thereunder have been indefeasibly paid in full that ano Covered Entity iis a Sanctioned Person
or ii does business In or with or derives any of its operating inwme from investments in or transactions with any Sanctioned Country or

Sanctioned Person in violation of any law regulation order or directive enforced by any Compliance Authority b the proceeds of fire Lease will
not be used to fund any unlawful activity c the fiords used to repay the Lease are not derived from any unlawful activity and d each Covered

Entity is in wmpliance with and no Covered Entity engages in any dealings or transactions prohibited by any laws of the United States

As used herein Corapliaaa Authority means each and ell of the a US Treasury DepartmendOffice of Foreign Assets Control bUS

Treasury iparmentFinancial Crimes Enforcement Network cUS State DcpartmentDiroctorate of iDefense Trade Controls dUS Commerce

lkpartmenUBureau of Industry and Securiry eUS Internal Revenue Service fUSlustice Department and gUS Securities and Exchange



Commission Covered Fortify means Lessee its affiliates and subsidiaries and direct and indirect owners Saactioaed Country means a country
subject toe sanctions program maintained by any Compliance Authority and Sanctioned Person means any individual person group regime
entity ar thing listed or othcnvise rtrcognized as a specially designated prohibited sanctioned or debarrai person ar entity ar subject to any
limitations or prohibitions including but not limited to the blocking of property or rejection of transactions under any order or directive of any
Compliance Authority ar otherwise subject toor specially designated under any sanctions program maintained by any Compliance Authority

26 USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE To help the governmatt fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities Federal law requires all
financial institutions to obtain verify and record information that identities each lessee that opens an account What this means when the Lessee

opens an account Lessor will ask for the business name business address taxpayer identifying number and other information that will allow the
Lessor to identify Lessee such as organizational documents For some businesses end organizations Lessor may also Hood to ask for identifying
information and docnmentaUon relating to attain individuals associated with the business or organization

27 WAIVERS LESSOR AND LESSEE EACH AGREE TO WAIIVE AND TO TAKEALL REQUIRED STEPS TO WAIVE ALL RIGHTS
TO A JURY TRIAL To the extent Lessee is permitted by applicable law Lessee waives all rights and remedies conferred upon a lessee by Article
2A Sections5522 of the Uniform Commercial Code including but notlimited to Lessees rights to a canal or repudiate this Lease b rejoct
or revoke aooeptanee of the Equipmrnt c recover damages firom Lessor for any breach of vvarronty or for any ottrer reason d grant a security
interest in any Equipment in Lessees possession To the extent Lessee is permitted by applicable law Lessor waives any rights they now or later
may have under any statute or othewise which requires Lessor to sell or othetwise use any Equipment to reduce Lessors damages which requires
Lessor to provide Lessor with notice of default intent to aaxlcrate amounts becoming due ar acceleration of amounts bxoming due or which may
otherwise limit or modify any of Lessors rights or remedies ANY ACTION LESSEE TAKES AGAINST LESSOR FOR ANY DEFAULT
INCLUDING BREACH OF WARRANTY OR INDEMNITY MUST BE STARTED WITHIN ONE YEAR AFTER THE EVENTWHICH
CAUSED IT Lessor will notbe liable far specific performance of this Lease or far any losses damages delay or failure to deliver Equipment

28 SMALL ISSUER STATEMENT Lessee hereby certifies to Lessor and its assigns that a the Lessor designates the Lease as a Qualified Tax
Exempt Obligation for the purposes of Section 26Sb3of the Code b Lessee w111 own and operate the Equipment in the performance of its
public purposes and the Equipment will not be subject to the use or control ofany other entity c Lessee will not designate more than Ten Million
Dollars510000000 oftaxexanpt obligations during the curetrt calendar year as QualifiedTaxExempt Obligation Lessen reasonably expects
to issue no more than Ten Million Dollars ZI0000000 of taxexempt obligations during the current calendar year and d For purposes of
Paragraph 3 herein above the amount oftaxexempt obligations statod as either issued or designated as QualifiedTaxExempt Obligations includes
taxexempt obligations issued by all subordinate entities of Lessee as provided in Section 265 b3E of the Code

IMPORTANT READ BEFORE SIGNING THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BECAUSE ONLY THOSE
TERMS IN WRITING ARE ENFORCEABLE TERMS OR ORAL PROMISES WHICH ARE NOT CONTAINED IN THIS WRITTEN
AGREEMENT MAY NOT BE LEGALLY ENFORCED THE TERMS OR THIS LEASE MAY ONLY BE CHANGED BY ANOTHER WRITTEN
AGREEMENT BETWEEN LESSEE AND LESSOR LESSEE AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR THIS
LEASE LESSEE AGREES THAT THE EQUIPMENT WILL BE USED FOR BUSINESS PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PERSONAL
FAMILYOR HOUSEHOLD PURPOSES

LESSEE CERTIFIES THAT ALL THE INFORMATION GIVEN IN THIS LEASE AND LESSEES APPLICATION WAS CORRECT AND
COMPLETE WHEN THi3 LEASE WAS SIGNED THIS LEASE IS NOT BINDING UPON LESSOR OR EFFECTIVE UNLESS AND UNTIL
LESSOR EXECUTES THIS LEASE THIS LEASE WILL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF THE LESSEE

CITYOF l3RIDGEPOtjCONNECTICUT PNC Eauinrnent Finance LLC

Lessor

X
anoaste

b

TiW

995 Dalton Ave

Cincinnati OH 45203

OalitO
999 BROAD STREET
BRIDGEPORT CT 06604



OPINION OF COUNSEL
I have acted as counsel to the abovanefcrcnad Lessee the Lessee with respect to this LcasoPurchase Agreement by and between the Lessor and Lessor
the Lease and in this capacity have reviewed the original or duplicate originals of the Lease and such other documents as 1 have deemed relevant Based
upon the foregoing I am ofthe opinion that A Lessee is a stateor a fully constituted political subdivisionor agency ofa statewithin the meaning ofSection
103 of the Intemai Revawc Codc of 1986 es amended tB the exaution delivery and performance of the Lease by Lessee has been duly authorized by ell
necessary action on We pert ofLessee C the Lease constitutes a legal valid and bindingobligation of Lesser enforceable inaccordenoc with its teens except
as limited by laws of general application affecting the enforcement of creditors rights and does not constitute a debt ofLessee which is prohibited by state

Iaw D the authorization approval and execution of the Lease and all other proceedings of Lessee related to the transactions contemplated thereby have been
pedorrrxd in accordance with all openmating laws public bidding Taws and all other applicable state laws The undersigned certifies that she is an
anomry duly authorized to practice Iaw in the State ofConnaticut

Thc foregoing opinions are limited to the Taws ofsuch State and federal laws of the United States

Attorney of L

sy
Pri C o

Law titm s



SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
Lease Number 178648000

18

Attached to and made a part ofthat certain LeasePurchase Ageement dated as ofNovember 15 2013 by and between
PNC Equipment Finance LLC as Lessor and CITY OF BRIDGEPORTCONNECTICUT as Lessee

Rent payments are payable as follows

Payment Number Oate Payment Interest Princi al Termination
1 2038216 000 2038216 7406035
2 2038216 375500 1662716 5693437
3 2038216 288668 1749548 3891403
4 2038216 197302 1840914 51995261
5 2038216 101164 51937052 100

As provided in Section 21 of the leasePurchase Agreement

999 BROAD STREET
BRIDGEPORT CT 06604

PNC uioment Finance LLC

Lessor

ey

Title

995 Dalton Ave

Cincinnati OH 45203

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT



G24

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY
Lease Number 178648000

Lessee CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

Amount 9228541

WHEREAS lessee a body pditk and wrporab duly organized and existing as a political subdivbbn munidpal oorporatbnorsimilar pubic entity of the State or
Commonwealth the Stab is authorized by the laws of the State to purchase acquiro and base certain equipment and other property for the benefit of the
Lessee and Its iMabbnband to enter IMo contracts with roapsd thereto and

WHEREAS pursuant to appliCabb law the goveminp body of the Lessee Governing Body is authorized to acquire dbpose of and enwmber real and personal
properly inducting without Ilmilstbrt rights and interest th property leases and easements necessary to the tundbrrs or operations of ihs Lessee

WHEREAS the Governing Body hereby finds andderrnines that the execution of one or more LeasePurchase AgreemerKs or lease schedules Leases in the
prMdpal amount not exceeding the amount stated above for the purpose of acquiring the propeAy Equipment to be described in the Leases Is appropriate and
necessary to the fundbns arxi operations ofthe Lasses

WHEREAS PNC Equipment Finance LLC Lessor shall act as Lessor under said Leases

NOW THEREFORE Be R Ordained by the Governing Body of the Lessee

1 Section t Eidter ane of the OR eachanAuthorized Reprssentatnre acting on behaf of the Lessee
is Irareby authorized to negotiate enter into execute and deliver one a more Leases In wsstantisly the form set forth b the documam prossrrtly before the
Gowming Body which document is avadabb for public inspection at the office of the LesseealEEach AuUrortzed Representative ailing on behaH of the Lessee b
hereby authorized to negotiate enter Imo execute and deliver such other dowmenb roladng to the Lease as the Authorized Representative deems necessary
and appropriate All other robtsd contrails and egroemenb necessary and inddental to the Leases are hereby authorized

Section 2 By a written istnsnent signed by any Authorized Representathre said Authorized Reprosentative may designate s

employees of the Lessee to execute and deliver agroamsnb and dowmenb rebting to the Leases on behalf of the Lessee
P Identified officers or

Section 3 The aggregab original pdndpal amount of the Lasses strati not exceed the amount stated above and shall bear interest as set forth In the Leases and
the Leases shall contain such options to purchase by the Lessee as set forth therein

Section 4 The Lessees obfigadons under the Leases shall be subject to annual appropriation or renewal by the Govemtrrg Body as set forth in each Lease and
the Lesseesobions under the Leases chap not ooratfiub general obligations of the Lessee or irrdeMedness urdet the Constitution or laws of the State

Section 5 As to each Lease the Leases roasonaby antfapates to issue net moro than 510000000of taucxempt obfigatians other than private adhrRy bonds
which arenotqualifred501cx3 bonds during the fiscal year in which each such Lease b issued and hereby designates each Lease as aqualified taxexempt
obligation for purposes of Sedton 285bof the Internal Revenue Code of 1988 as amended

Section 8 This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and approval

SIQNATURES AND TITLESOFUTHORIZEDR1ERESENjATNESAUTHORI2ED LEASE SIG NLY

Name Tide S re

Name Tide Signature

ADOPTED ANDAPPROVED on this 20

Section 7 Ithe underetgnad SecretaryCierk ldendfied below does hereby certify that I sm the duly obrxed orappointed and ailing SecrobrylClerk of the above
Leases apotidrlsubdivbbn duly ogganaed and exbWrg under the laws of the Siab whero Lessee is located that I have the tide stated below and that as of the
dab Mreof the individuals named bebw are the duly elected arappointed officers of thetssae holding the offkxis set forth opposRe their reapecdve names

The undersigned SecrobryCbrkof theabovenamed Lessee hereby certifies and attosb that the undersigned has access to the otfiaal rocoNs of the Governing
Body of the Lessee hurt the foregoing resotudons were duly adopted by sold Governing Body of the LeaseE at a meeting of said Governing Bodyand hurt such
resolutions have not been amended or aRared and are in tuff tome and elFsct on the date stated below

LESSEE CRY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

SEAL
Signature otSecretaryClarkof Lessee

1

Prim Nama
Otfitial Tide
Date



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE
LeaseNumber178648400

C

Qttantit Description Serial No

i Toro 5800
1 Toro Pro Core 648

1 Toro Blower

Lessee through its authorized representative hereby certifies to Lessor that

1 The Equipment has been delivered to the location where itwill be used which is the Equipment Location given in the LeasePurchase

Agreement Lease
2 All ofthe Equipment has been inspected and is a complete b properly installed c functioning and d in good working order
3 Lessee accepts the Equipment for all purposes under the Lease as of 20 the Acceptance Date which is the

date on whichthe Equipment was delivered and installed
4 The Equipment is ofa size design capacity and manufacture acceptable to Lessee and suitable for Lesseespurposes and
S Lessee is not in default under the Lease noNonAppropriation ofFunds as described in the Lease has occurred and aH ofLessees

statements and promises set forth in the Lease are true and correct

Lessor is hereby authorized to insert serial numbers on the Lease

THTS CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE IS SIGNED THIS DAY OF 20

989 BROAD STREET
BRIDGEPORT CT 06604

raw



toy

REQUEST FOR INSURANCE COVERAGE

November 17 2013

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

999 BROAD STREET

BRIDGEPORT CT 06604

Re Insurance Coverage Requirements for Equipment Financing Transaction between PNC

Equipment Finance LLC

and CITY OF BRIDGEPORT CONNECTICUT

Before funding your transaction requires evidence ofappropriate insurance coverage on the

equipment described in your transaction documents Please forward this request to your insurance
company agent orbroker as soon as possible and ask for the evidence of insurance tobe sent to the
address below

PNC Equipment Finance LLC will have an insurable interest in the following equipment

Quantity Description
1 Toro 5800

1 Toro Pro Core 648

Toro Blower

As a condition to entering into the equipment financing tzansaction
requires the following at all times during the term of the transaction

1 All ofthe equipment must be insured for its full insurable value on a 100

replacement cost basis

2 PNC Equipment Finance LLC must be named as lender loss payee under a

property insurance policy insuring all risks to the equipment including fire
theft and other customary coverage under an extended coverage
endorsement with a deductible not toexceed10000 per occurrence

3 must receive evidence that acomprehensive general liability insurance policy
isin place with a minimum coverage of PNC Equipment Finance LLC must

be named as an additional insured under the liability policy

4 Each property insurance policy must contain a lendersloss payable clause or

special endorsement in which the insurer agrees that anyloss will bepayable
in accordance with the policy terms notwithstandinganyact ornegligence of

the insured

Rev 022412



O1

5 Each policy must provide for thirty 30 days written notice toPNCEF prior
to any cancellation nonrenewal or amendment ofthe policy

6 All additional insurance requirements as specified below

The evidence of insurance can consist of a Certificate of Insurance form Evidence of

Insurance form Memorandum of Insurance binder for insurance declarations page or the actual

policy and endorsements in each case naming as follows

PNC Equipment Finance LLC and its successors and assigns as lender loss payee
995 Dalton Avenue

Cincinnati OH 45203
Attn Insurance Department

When completed the evidence of insurance should be faxed to8664631260

Rev022412



form 8038GC
Rev January 2012

Department of theTreasury
Irttemd Reverare Servke

Information Return for Small TaxExempt
Governmental Bond Issues Leases and Installment Sales

Under Internal Revenue Cade section 149e
OMB No 5450720

Cautionlfthe issue priceothe Issue s700000ormore use Form 8038G

1 issuersname 2 Issuersemdoyer iderrtification rxattber lE1M

Ct of Bride rt Connecticut 0 6 6 0 0 1 8 6 5
3 Number and street or PObox it mall is notdelivered to street address Roomsuite

999 Broad Street Lease Number 178648000

4 City town orpostoffwastate artd ZIPcode 6 Report number ForlRS Ilse Drily

Bride CT 06604

6 Name and ikb ofofficer or other employee of issues or desgnated cooled person whom theIRS may call fa more inlomation T Telephorb number of officer a bgal represeraative

Descri lion of Obii ations check one a single issue or aconsolidated return

Sa Issue price of obligationsseeinstructions f3a

b Issue date single issue or calendar date consolidated Enter date in mmddyyyy format for
example01012009 see instructions

9 Amount of the reported obligations on line 8a that is

a For leases for vehicles 9a

b Far leases for office equipment 9b

c For leases for real property 9c

d For leases for other see instructions 9d
e For bank loans for vehicles 9e

f For bank loans for office equipment f3f

g For bank loans for real property 9

h For bank loans for other see instructions 9h
i Used to refund prior issues 9i

j Representing a loan from the proceeds of anothertaxexempt obligation for example bond bank 9

k Other 9k

10 If the issuer has designated any issue under section265b3BIIIsmall issuer exception check this box

11 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate checkthis box see instructions
12 Vendors or banks name

13 Vendors or banks emolover identification number
under penalties of perttay i detilare that l nave examined this return ani

SI nature corrlete i further declare that I consent to theIRSs
9 that 1 have qshwa

and
n Q

Consent V
Signature of issuersauthorized esentative

a
a

I belief they are

to the persons

0111 t1
Type orprint name and titb

Paid PrintTypepreparers name V Preparers signature Date
Check if

PnN

Preparer
aO

US@ rliy Firmsname FansEIN

Fansadfess Phone no

General Instructions
Section references are to fhe fntemaf Revenue

Code unless otherwise noted

WhatsNew

The IRS has created a page on IRSgov for
Information about the Form8038 series and

its Instructions atwwwirsgovform8038
Information about any future developments
affecting the Form 8038 series such as

Iegisiation enacted after we release it will be

posted on that page

Purpose of Form

Forrn8038GC isused by the issuers of tax

exempt governmental obligations to provide
theIRS with the infortnatlon required by
sectbn 149eand to monitor the

requirements of sections 141 through 150

Who Must File

Issuersoftaxexemptgovernmental
obligations with issue prices of less than
100000must file Forth 8038GC

Issuers of ataxexempt governmental
obligation with an issue price of 100000 or

more must fife Forth8038GInformation

Return for TaxExemptGovernmental
Obligations
Filing a separate return fora single issue
Issues have the option to fife a separate
Form 8038GC foranytaxexempt
governmental obligation with an issueprice
of less than 3100000

M issuer of ataxexempt bond used to
finance construction expenditures must file a

separate Form 8038GC for eachissue to give
notice to the IRS Ehat an election was made to

S and statements and to Ure best of my krroxrle
return nforrttalion as necessary to process tiffs

pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate see
theTine 11 insWCtions

Filing a consolidated return formultiple
Issues For all taxexempt governmental
obligations with issue prices of less than

100000that arenot reported on a separate
Form 8038GC an issuer must flle a

consolidated information return including all
such Issues issued within thecalendar year

Thus an issuer may file a separate Form
8038GC foreach of a numberof small issues
and report the remainder of small Issues
issued during the calendaryear onone

consolidated Form 8038GC tiowaver if the

issue is a construction issue a separate Forth
8038GC must be filed to give the IRS notice
of the election to pay a penalty In Ifeu of

arbitrage rebate

Cat No 641088 Form fio38CaCi Rev12012



FormeasecClamt2otz Pay 2

When To Fle

To file a separate return for ashgle issue file
Form80380Con or before ftre 15th day of
the second calendar nromh aRer the dose of
thecalendar quarter in vNraM the issue le
Issued

To Ale a consoldated return for multlple
issues file Form 8038aCon ar before
February 131h of the calendaryear tonowing
theyore In which 8re Issue le fseued

Late ftlingM Issuer may be granted an
exterrebrt a tfms to iNe Form8008t3C under
aectlon 3 of Rev Prot 200248200237
LRB331 K It le dstemrined that thefeNure to

fns on time le notdue bwiNful neglect Type
or prlM at the top of thefarrnRequest for
Relief undersetilon 3 of Rev Prot 200246
Attach btMForm 8008CCa latter briefly
atatlng why theform was rat submitted to tM
iR5 on tlnte Also krdicete whether the

oblgation In gtioetion 0 under examktaYon by
the IRS Do not wbmitcopies of any bond
doaurrenfa leases ar krobYrrrent sob
doamrents See lMrere To FBe next

Where To Fiie

Fns Form6038GC and any attachments
with the Department of theTreasury Internal
Revenue Service Center Ogden l1T 84201

Prfvab dalhretyNrvicas You can use

oertatn private deNvery servips designated bi
the IRS bmeat the tlmaly rrreNing as Ymery
tnkrglpaying rota far tax returns and
payments These private deNvery services
irrdudeardy the farrowing
DFExpressDHI OFY same Gay service

Federal EnPessFedE FedEx Priority
Overnight FedEx Standard Overnight FedEx
2osyFedEx Intsrrretlorret Priority and FadEx
Intsmatlond First

United Parcel service NISk UPS Next Day
Air UPS Next Day Air Saver UPS 2nd Day
Ale UPS 2nd Day AleAMUPS WoAdwtde
Express Pkra and UPS Worldwide Express

The private delivery seMCe can tell you
fpow to get written proMof ftre marlingdate

Other FormsThat May Be

Required
Far rebatlng arbitrage ar paying a penalty in
Neu a arbitrage rebate m tM Federal
Oovemment ass Form 8038TArbitrage
Rebate Yield Reductlon and Penalty fn Ueu
of Arbitrege Rebate For privab acdvny
bonds use Form 8036 Inbrrnetlon Return for

TaxExempt Private Actlvity Bond Issues

For ataxexemptgovernmental obflgatlon
with an tsars prkx of 5100000or more use

Farm 80380

Rounding to Whole Dollars

You may showthemoney iterrte on this return

aswhobdullerits To do so drop arty
anwunt lees tlren50centsarxi Increase any
amount from 50 to 19 cent to thenext higtrer
ddler

DeBnifions

Obrrgatlorre rnle refers to a single tax

exampt govemrtwntd obligation H Form

803GC le used fa separets reporting or to

mulYplelaxexemptgovemmerNal obugatbns
N the form le used for oormclidated repoNng
Taxexemptobligation TMsis any obNgatlon
Indrrdkgabond instaNmeM purchase
agreement or flnancW lease on wttid the

Interest la excluded from Income under
aectlon 100

Taxexemptgovernmental obligatbn A

taxexempt obigation thst is not a private
activity bond sea below is ataxoxampt
govemrtrerrfal abllgatbn This iruudes a bond
lesued try a qudifled voirxteerfire department
undersection 150e

Private aotlvlty bond This Includes an

ottlon hared as part of an issue in whid

Mora than 10of the proceeds areto be
used for arty privets acYvity business use and

More than 10of thepayment of princlpe
ar Interest of the faaus le eNrier asecured by
an interest to propsAy to be used for aprivate
buafnees use or payments for such property
orbto be derived from psyrrrents for
property or borrowed marsy used for a

prNate txmtrvsas use

It also includes abond the proceeds of
whbh are bbe usedbmake or tirrencs
loansother than loans described In section
141cbpersons outer than governmenW
urdts and bexceeds the lesser of 5 of the
proceeds oru minion

Issue Generally obYgstbns are treated as
pall of the same lews oNy it they areissued

by the Sarre issuer on the samedate and as

part of asingle trarresdlon or aserNs of
related tranaactlons However obNgatlons
leafed during the same calendar year
undera loan agreement under which amounts

are to be advanced periodicallyadrew
down Ioenorbwith aterm notexceeding
270 days may be bested es pert or the same

issue a theobflgatlons are equally and ratably
secured under a single trtdenture ar loan
agroernent end era faued under a common

financing arrarrgernent for example under the
Same oMdal stabnreM psrtodiptlyupdated
to reflect dtangkrg factual dngimsfanpa
Alsofar obrrgatlorrs Issued urxier a draw
down ben that rrreeta the requirerrronb of ftre
preoedirq eentenoe odlgatiars issued during
dietcalendar years may be treated as

part o1 the same Issue If err of the arnouMs to

be advanced underthedrawdownban are

reasonably expected to beadwnoed withk 3
years of the datea leare of the fast
obrrpetlon tllcsvvbe obYgatbns other than
private actNfty bonds Issued under a single
agreement that is b the form of a lease or
Installment Sale may be treated as part of the
same laws H err of the property severed by
that agreement le reatonsbly expected to be
delivered vdthbr 3 years of the dab of Issue of
the first obNgatlon
Arbtrage rehab Generarrir Interest on a

stele or focal bond b notfaxxanpt unless
tM issuer of the bond rebates to the United
States arbitrage profits earned from Inveatlng
proceeds of the bond in higher yfelding
nonpurposs irrwsbrrents See ssctlan 148Q
Constructionbelts This b an issue of bx

sxerrrptbondsthat masts both of the

falowtrrg oondtlons

1At least 75of theavailable corr8tructbn
proceeds of the issue are to be used for
oonatrucYon axpertdihxes wflh roeped b
propeAy b be owrred by agovernmental unit
or a501cx3arganiraYon and

2 AY Of the bonds that are part of the issue
are quaNfled 501e3bonds bonds that are

not private activity fronds ar private activity
bonds issued to finance propertybbs ovmed

by a goverrxnental unit or a 501c3
orgardzatton

In lieu of rebating arty arbitrage that maybe
owed to the llnitsdStates the Issuer of a
cmroUucBon leave may make an inavocable
elecYon to payapenalty The penally le equal
to11Rof ftre amount of constructlon
proceeds that donot meet oertaln spending
raquirernents See ssdlon 14BQ4uand the
instructions fa Form 81Xi8T

Specific Instructions
M general a Form 80380Cmoat be
completed on the basis of available
infomretlon and raasonabb expectations as a
the date of issue However famre That are

fNed ona consolidated basismsy be
completed on the basis of infonnatlon readily
available to the leaver at the cbae a the
calerxiar year to wHch the form relates

led by eatlmates made in good

PartiRepotting Authority
Amandad retYrrfM issuer may file an

amended return b drengs aadd b the
tMomatlon reported on a prevkwaly Pled
return for the same date of issue M you are

flung to correct errors or changea prevlouafy
Algid rotum check thsMrendedAetwnbox
in theheading of the fomr

The amended return mustprovide all the
inforrnafion reported On ftre original return in
additbn to the new corrected IMormeYon
Attach an sxplanatlon of the reason for the

amended return and write aaoss the top
Amended Aetrtrrr Expienetbn

Line 1 The s name le the name of the
entity iswNtg ftre obrrrrgatilorq notthe Warne of
theaMity receiving the berreflt of the
ftrrerxingM iho peaof alease orirstarrment
sale the leaver le the lessee or purohaser
Line 2 M leaver itret doesnot have an

employer identiflptlon numtxrEIN should
apply fa one on Form SS4Apprrcatlon for
Employer IdentlfkatbnNumber You can get
this form on the IRS vvebalte at IRSgov or by
plNng1800TAXFORM1800829388
You may receive an EIN by telephone by
foNowUog the Msbucdorm tar Form SS4

Lures 3 end 4Enter ftre isms address a
tIre addressat thedesignated contact person
listedon oneetl theissuer wishes buse its
own address and theissuer reoeivasits mail
in pre of athkd party aWrorized
representative suchas snacxuntanta

attomsyy enter on the street address Nne
COfOIIOWed by The thMd partys Warne and

street address aPObox Include the sulfa
room or other unit number after thestreot

address If thepost oMce doesnot dalhrer
mall to the sheaf address and Urs ismiehas a

PObox showthebwc number insteadof the



roreeateccttZp1Z 3

street address h acltangs in address oaurs

after the rotum b ftled use Form 8822
Ctuargs of Addroas to rwtlly the IRS of the
new address

NoteThe address entered on Nnes 3 and 4b
the address the IRS will use far all written
communtaetloru rogarding theproceesing of
tlda rotum Inckrdksg any notloes BY
authoriztrtq aperson other than anauodzad
offlpraothererrgrloyee of the isauar to

commtsricat with the IRS and whom the IRS
may cantaet about tlrb return the Bauer

authorizes theIRS to communicate direttly
wRh theIndlvidrWlisted on Gres 8vrtrose
addroes b entered on Qrres 3 and 4 and
consent to disdaes the issuers return
infarnretlon to that htdlvidual sa necessary to
process tliareturn

one 8Thb Ikre aforIRS use only oo not

make any enbies in tMa txx

PartIIDescription ofObliglrtions
CtrsCk tMappropriate box deeignetlng this as

a rotum ons single taaus basin erra

coraoNdated Tatum bash

one t1a The have price d obNgatlons b
gYdetenrtkred under Ragrrlatbns
aectbn1148tbThus when issued far
cash the issue price b ets price at which a
aatxrMntlel amount of the oblbgatlorn orsadd
b the pudtc To determine thetaus price of
an obNgatlon Issued for property ass sections
1273 and 1274 and the related regulations
Una 8b Far a single leave enter the date of
Issue for exempt00152010 far asingt
taus beued on March 152010 generally
the date on whkhtlmIssuer physically
excherges the txxrd the aropart of the
taus for thewderwriters or other
purchasers funds fora loess or triataflnrent

sots enterthe data knareststarts to aocnre

For issues reported on aoonaoNdated basis
enter the ftrst day of Uw Cetrrdar year during
vfileh the obNgaNoru wars issued br
example for calendar year 2010 enter

olrolnolo
LMes 9a through ttlr Complete lids sectlon H
property outer then cashb exchanged for the

ottNgatton fornptaanririrtg a pocks car
aire tnxk or teleptwne egtriprrtertt through a

aeries of matthly payments fide type of
obNgatbrt b aometlmes roterred to as a

munk9pal leesoyAlsocarrtptste this aectlon
R real propeAy bdirectly arxltrired to

sxelwtgs for en obNgetbn to make periodk
payments of interest and prirtcal

Do trot complete linesga through 9d H tits
proceeds of an obUgatloa aro received in the

farm of cash even RCis term teasebwed

inthe tltls of the Isara For 6rrss 8a tluough
9denter the amount on the appropriate Nns
that represents a lease or irtstalkrtsnt
purcttsss For Itrts gdenter the type of Rem
fret b leased For NnesN thrargh gh enter

thearnorrM on theepproxfate Iirre that
represents a bank loan For line 8h enter the
type of bank ktart

LlneasIand 8J For line 9f enter the amount

d the proceeds that wiNbe used to pay
principal interesta call promium on any
otherissue of bonds IndudMg proceeds that
wpl bs used to fundan escrowaccount for
1Ms purpose Ssverel Ikws msy apply to a

partlculer oblgation For exempt report on

IGreagi and 9J odigetlons wed to rotund prior
issues whleh ropreaent loamfrom the

proceeds ofanothertaxexemptotion

Una 9k Enter on Ibse 9k the amours an Nna
tla that does notrepresard an obNgatlon
desalted an litres 9a through 9

UM 10 Check8isbox if Ors issuer has

designated any teas as aemaN bluer
exoeptlon under section265b36IN
Line 11 Check fhb box H the have b a

ooratrrrction Issue and an hrevocable electbn
to pay a penally In lieu of arbitrage rebate has

bean made onor before the date the fronds
were issued The penally bpayabt with a

Form8038Tfor each8nronth period after
thedsU the bondsareiesued Oo not male

any payment dpenally in Neu of robotswith

Form 8038CsCSee Rev Protg222
11s921CB 736 for nrbe regardtrrg the
etctlon doasrrent

Une 12Eller the name of tlse vendor orbank
who b a party to theIrutaNmerrt ptachaee
agreement ban or tirrarrdat tees If there
aremuttlpts vendoro or txarlntlsbeast

should attach a sdsedrrle

Una 13 Enter tlrsemployer Identiflcatlon
number of the vendor abank who b a party
to the InstaNment purchase egroement loan
or ftnancisl Isaee K thsro are multlpt vendors
or banks the Issuer should attach aschedule

Signature and Consent

An awwrizedrpreaentathrs of the Isswr
mustsign Form 8008GC and any appNeable
carfiflcatlon Also print the name and title of
theperoon signng Form8038GC The
arNrorized repressntatlve of the beast signing
this form must have the authority to consent

to the disclosure of tM Issuers Tatum
inforrnatlon as nsoeesarybprocess this
return to thepersonsthat has been
dealgnated in fhb form

Note If the issuer authorizes in line 8 the IRS
to communicate with apsraan other than an
offtoar or other employeeof the issuer such
autltorizatlon shall krclrxlecontact both in
vvrltlrtg raperdless of the address entered in

flnss 3 and 4 and by tslspttons by signing
Ws tam the bauaaautltorized
ropreeerttative oortsanb to thedbdosuro of
fifebeasts retrrm Intonrtatlon as necessary
to process fhb return to each person

Paid Prepaterr

M anautlarized representative of five issuer
ftlled inits return the paid preparors apace
should romaln blank Anycnswho propares
the return but does notcharge tlrs

arganizalion should not sign the rohxrr

Certain others who prepare thereturn should
notsign For example a rsgubr fuNtne
employee of the leaver such as actak
secretaryetc should not sign

Generally anyone who b paW to propane a
return mustsign R and flu N theother blanks
in the Paid Preparar lase Onfy area of the
return A paid properer Cannot use a sodal

secwity rxrmber hthe Paid Pnrparer Ilse Cny
box The paid proparer mwtuse aprslwer
tax idsntlftcatlon ntarrber PT1N Ifthe paid
proparer bseHemployed thepreparer
should enter his or her address in thebox

The paid preparer moat

Sign thereturn In the apace provided for the
preparersalgnatrae end

Give a copy of 1M rotum to the Issuer

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice

We oak for the lntornratlon on this farm to

carry outthe Internal Revenue laws of 1M
United States You arorequired to give w the
infomratlon Ws need k to ensure That you ors

complying vrHh these taws

You are not required to provide the
Informatlon requested on aform that b
subject to the Paperwork Reduction Ad

urtbss the formdbplsys a vaNd OMB control
rarmbsrBooks err records nelatlng to a farm
or its krsbuctlons moat be retakwd as long as

ihek contentsmay become material in the
admWatratlon of ary Internal Reverws taw
Generally lax rotums and return infonrretion
are oonfldentlal as required by section 8103

The ems needed to oornplate and lit fhb
farm wNlvary depending an Indlvkirral
dranrarroes The estlmated average time is

Learning about the
law or the form 4hr4s mU

Preparing the forrrr 2 hr 22 mYt

Copyhrg assembling and
sendbtgtls torn to the IRS 2 M34 min

H you have conurtenta oorxroming the
accuracy of areas time eatimstesor

suggastlons for meklrtg tltb form simpler we

would bs happy to hear from you You can
writeto thektterrtel Reversrs SeMce Tax
ProductsCoadrifnatlng Comndttee
SEWCAFtMPTM1111CortstitrAbn Ave
NWIR0528Waatrington OC 20224 Do riot
serW the form to Utbaddress Instead see
IARrere TOfHe



eIurn wumertf ica
Form

Revtscember20tf
pepvnnant the Treasury
rdanat Ravmue SerVrs

rV

Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the

Identification Number and Certification
requester Do not
send to the IRS

isms 0e shown on your hrcanwtax rWurra

PNC Bank National Association

PNC

nanwi

LLC

Cheek appropriate box for ICderat lax etaseiacalbn

IndivWuaVsoie proprblor C Corporation S Corporalbn Partnership TrusVoslalo

Q

o Umilod antaily compury Enter the tax classification CCcorporation SS corporolMsnPpartnorstup LI
Exempt payee

J Other seo Instruclbns
Address number Wreot and apt or wile

995 Dalton Avenue

city state and ZtP code

Cincinnati OH A5203

us accaunl rxanlxsrs tbro optbnaq

name

Enteryour TiN intheappropriate box The TIN provided must match the namo gluon on the Namo line t soaatseeumy

nt1umotTal
t

to avoid lockupwIhhoiding For indtvtduals this isyour social security number SSN tlowover fora
w

L
resident alien solo proprietor or disregardedentity sea Iha Part 1 inslnrclions on page 3For other

enUtios It isyour ompbyer Wantification number EIN It you do mot tutus a number seo How to gei a

T1N on page 3

Note It the account is in more than one namo seo the chart on page A for guidollnos on whose Employer Identlacatlon number

number fo enter 2 2 1 1 4 6 4 3 0

CertiCcation
Under penalties of perJury I certify that

t Tha numbershown on this form Ismy correct laxpoyer identi0cation number or I amwaiting for a number to bo issued to mo and

2 I am notsubject to backup willthdding because a l am exempt from barcupwithholding orb I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service IRS that 1 am subjoc to backup withholding as a result of a laiure to report all Interest or dividends orc the IR51tas noliRed mo That 1 am

no longer sutect to backup withholding and

3 I am a US citizen a otherUS parson defined bebw

CeRilicatlon ktstructlona You must cross outitem 2 above ii you have been nolitimf by the IRS that you aro currontly subject to backup vithholding

becauseyou have tailedto report all Interest and dividends on your tax rolum For real estate Iransaclbns Item 2 does not apply For mortgage

interest paid acquisition or abandonment of secured property cancellation of debt contributions to an individual roliremonl arrangement IRJU and

goneraAy payments other Than interest and dividends you are notrequired Io sign Iho contticrtllon but you mustprovide your correct TIN See the

Imtructions on page A

7t9n Slgnaluroai T OateH@I8 US person a

General Instru6tions

Section references are to Iha Internal Revenue Code unioss othorvise

noted

Purpose of Form

Note ll a requester gives you aform other than FormW8to request

your T1N you must use the requestersCorm it ll issubstnnlialy similar

to this Form Wg

Dotfnition of a US person For federal tax purposes you are

cansideeda US person ff you are

M Indf idualvho lan U S citizen or U S resident alien
A person vito is required to file an inlormatlon return with Iho IRS must

obtain your correct taxpayer Idontigcalion number TIN la report for

v

A partnership corporation company or association created or

example income paid to you roai estate trensaclions rctortgage interest organized M theUnited States or under thelava of the United Stales

you paid acquisition orabandonment of aocurod property cancellation yestate other than a foreign estate or

of debt of coniribuliorts you rnade to an IRA
A dorneslic Uust as defined in Rogulalions section30177017

UseForm Wfl only it you area US parson Qnduding a rosidenl

alien to provide your correct TIN to theperson requesting It Iho Spacial rulesfor partnerships Partnerships that conduce a Trade or

business In the United Stales are generally required to pay a withholding

roquaster and whenapplicaWo to tax on any foreign partners share of income from such business

tCerny That the TIN you are giving is correct or you arewailing for n Further incertain cases where a FarrnWfihas not been received a

number to be Issued

Codify that you are not subject to backup withholding or2

partnership is requtred to presume that a partner is a foreign person

and pay the vrilhholding lax Thorotorn it you ate a USperson that is a

i d

3Claim exemption Irom backupvilhhoiding II you are a US exempt
tepartner in a parlnerstipconducting a Trade orbusiness inthe Un

States provkte FormW91olho partnership to establish your US

payee ii apptieaWo you are also certifying that as aUS parson your

allocable share of any partnership Income irom a USIrado or twsness status and avoid vithhokiing on your share of partnership income

Ea notsubject to thewithholding lax on foreign partners share of

otloctivay connected Income

CatNa 104Jix
FamtlRovt22oitl



tC7

t

n o C7
rt y

f1

W N W

N ni rt
O A

n
r

fi n

n
fD

fD

n

O

V

b cu

rt

O A

y

n

rD
n

g CA

W

n

C7 vi

A

A y

C

0

YI

O

H

W



Critical Emergencv Purchase means a purchase of goods or services that if not purchased or ordered
immediately can result in injury to human life or significant property damage or result in consequencesdetriment to the citys best interests These types of purchases include all requirements needed on an
emergency basis a to comply with federal state or local laws or codes or b to avoid complete loss of
funds made available by noncity public and private funding sources or c to make emergency repairs of
cityowned property buildings infrastructure equipment and vehicles the need for which or the quantitythereof could not have been reasonably anticipated with proper advance planning The Purchasing Agentshould use the Informal Competitive Quotation Process for Critical Emergency Purchases if possible but
shall not be limited by the applicable threshold dollar amounts set forth herein due to the emergencynature of the purchase Lastminute purchases not constituting true emergencies or other emergencypurchases that do not comply with this definition may only be approved in accordance with the MayoralBid Waiver prgcess set forth herein

Qualified Purchase means a purchase of goods or services where either there is only one source for
such purchase a purchase from a special source will provide a lower cost than would result from
Competitive Bidding time is critical and the purchase could not have been planned or the purchaseinvolves items whose prices ark controlled by federal or state regulation

l

x
l a

W

f

r

n

D Wit1



RESOLUTION

Whereas important provisions of the Citvs Purchasing Ordinance will be improved by theimplementatonof more stns procedures sections concemnathe Waiv f i
Formatted Deft

er o om et tive Bidding inCnbcal Emergencies and Qualified Purchases should be revised

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCILTHAT THE PURCHASING ORDINANCE SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS

G Waiver of Competitive Processes in Critical Emergencies

1 Waiver of Competitive Bidding For Critical Emergency Purchases

a The ContrectingOfficer shall set forth in writing to the Purchasing Agent thereasons why Public Advertising and Competitive Bidding or other competitive process otherwise
required by this Section should be waived accompanied by an integrity affidavit on a form
approved by the City Attomgy Critical Emergency Purchases shall be limit d t the o ose purchases
reasonably necessary and only for such duretion as may be required to meet the emergencycircumstances described The Purchasing Agent shall initially determine whether a Critical
Emergency Purchase is appropriate and if circumstances ailowse shall make a writtenrecommendation to the Mayor to grant seskawaiver of Public Advertising and Competitive
Bidding The Mayor shall consider the matter an if appropriate shallissue a Mavoral Bid Waiver or in hisher absence the Chief Administrative Officer 6eapeil
esideatshall consider and decide such matter and issue a Mavoral Bid Waiver before anyCritical Emergency Purchase maybe made

b After the issuance of any Mayoral 81d Waiver the Purchasing Agent shall ieFra
ra i the name tof the particular vendorewerdersand other pertinent details within five 5working days aftersuch purchase to the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office ofPolicy and Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the PurchasingAgents quarterly report to the BPP

t

c Due to the timesensitive nature of Cri ical EmergenFy Purchases emailr rcommurncations and oral communications subsequently onfirmed in writing may be utilized to
s e d thep e communication of requests and action on such reau c gip

t2 Waiver of CompetitiveBiddirigForQualifiedPurchases Wot Bold
Lett 1No bullets or

a Purchases other than Critical Emergency Purchases may be made without
n

Competitive Bidding for the
following reasons

i Only one 1 qualified or available vendor or sole source can be identified
through reasonable efforts for example where onlyone vendor is authorized or certified
to do such work where parts an available only through a single dealer or distributor or
where the work is proprietary or relates to products that are proprietary and cannot be
substituted or installed by nonauthorized installers without adverse effects or

complications

ii Purchase from aspecial source including but not limited to a sale
purchasing plan government discount or tradein allowance that will provide a

substantiallvlower cost thantatMislwouldresult from a competitive process





RESOLUTION

Whereas important provisions of the Citys Purchasing Ordinance will be improved by theimplementation of more strict procedures sections concerning the Waiver of Competitive Bidding inCritical Emergencies and Qualified Purchases should be revised

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCILTHAT THE PURCHASING ORDINANCE SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS

G Waiver ofCompetitive ProcessesinCritical Emergencies

Waiver ofCompetitive Bidding For Critical Emergency Purchases

a The Contracting Officer shall set forth in writing to the Purchasing Agent thereasons why Public Advertising and Competitive Bidding or other competitive process otherwiserequired by this Section should be waived accompanied by an integrity affidavit on a formapproved by the City 44ttorney Critical Emergency Purchases shall be limited to those purchasesreasonably necessary and only for such duration as may be required to meet the emergencycircumstances described The Purchasing Agent shall initially determine whether a CriticalEmergency Purchase is appropriate and if circumstances allow shall make a writtenrecommendation to the Mayor to grant a waiver of Public Advertising and Competitive BiddingThe Mayor shall consider the matter and if appropriate shall issue a Mayoral Bid Waiver or inhisherabsence the Chief Administrative Officer shall consider and decide such matter and issue
a Mayoral Bid Waiver before any Critical Emergency Purchase may be made

b After the issuance of any Mayoral Bid Waiver the Purchasing Agent shall providethe name of the particular vendor and other pertinent details within five 5 working days aftersuch purchase to the Mayor the City Council the Director ofFinance the Director of the Office ofPolicy and Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the PurchasingAgentsquarterly report to the BPP

c Due to the timesensitive nature of Critical Emergency Purchases email
communications and oral communications subsequently confirmed in writing may be utilized tospeed the communication of requests and action on such requests

2 Waiver ofCompetitive Bidding For Qualified Purchases

a Purchases other than Critical Emergency Purchases may be made without
Competitive Bidding for the following reasons

i Only one 1 qualified or available vendor or sole source can be identified
through reasonable efforts for example where only one vendor is authorized or certified
to do such work where parts are available only through a single dealer or distributor or
where the work is proprietary or relates to products that are proprietary and cannot be
substituted or installed by nonauthorized installers without adverse effects or
complications

ii Purchase from a special source including but not limited to a sale
purchasing plan government discount or tradein allowance that will provide a

substantially lowercost than would result from a competitive process

iii The purchase involves items that are regulated by federal or state
government



b A request for a Qualified Purchase requires the following steps to be taken inorder i the Contracting Officers submission of adetailed memo with all backup documentationexplaining the need to make a purchase in this manner accompanied by an integrity affidavit on aform approved by the City Attorney ii a certification by the Purchasing Agent that the requestsupports the waiver of Competitive Bidding or Public Advertisement iii the Contracting Officersreasons to the Purchasing Agent for the selection of the particular vendor and iv if approvedthe Purchasing Agentssubmission of hisher report of such purchase within five 5 working daysto the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office of Policy andManagement and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the Purchasing Agentsquarterly report to the BPP If the request for a Qualified Purchase is not approved the purchaseshall be made in accordance with approved purchasing methods set forthherein



INTEGRITY AFFIDAVIT OF

Re Proposed Award of Contract to

Contractor for Work Without
Public Advertising or Competitive Bidding

All Critical Emergency Purchases andQualedPurchasesrequested under City OrdinanceChapter308070G1andG2must be accompanied by Phis affidavit signed by fhe CitysContracting Oftcer making such request Allcapitalized terms not defined herein have themeanings assigned to them in the Citys purchasing ordinance

I the Contracting Officer requesting this purchase herebyswear that during the three 3 years preceding the dale of this affidavit I have not received orbeen offered any gift as defined in Conn Gen Stat 179e12 see attachedexcerpt fromthe Contractor including a gift for the celebration of a major life event as described therein fromany person I know or have reason to believe to be an employee owner shareholder officerdirector member or agent ofthe Contractor except for the following provide details if nonewrite NONE in the space below

I further hereby swear that during the three 3 years preceding the date of this affidavit I havenot been coerced threatened or pressured by any person to affect any decision I have maderegarding the request to award any contract involving the Contractor

I understand that the City of Bridgeport will rely upon the truthfulness and accuracy of thisaffidavit in connection with my request and that making a false or incomplete statement ormisrepresenting or omitting facts may result in disciplinary action under the City Code of Ethics orunder the City Purchasing Ordinance
n

rn w
N C

Name
i ca

Job Title or Position

Sworn to and subscribed before me this

Date

day of

vo
vim
pp

4 T

on

Commissioner ofthe Superior Court
Notary Public
My commission expires



Section 179 Connecticut General Statutes states in part

e Gift means anything of value which is directly and personally received unless considerationof equal or greater value is given in return Gift shall not include

1 A political contribution otherwise reported as required by law or a donation or payment asdescribed in subdivision 9 or 10 of subsection b of section9601x

2 Services provided by persons volunteering their time ifprovided to aid or promote thesuccess or defeat of any political party any candidate or candidates for public office or theposition of convention delegate or town committee member or any referendum question

3A commercially reasonable loan made on terms not more favorable than loans made inthe ordinary course of business

4 A gift received from A an individuals spouse fiance or fiancee B the parent brother ofsister of such spouse or such individual or C the child of such individual or the spouse of suchchild

5 Goods or services A which are provided to astate agency orquasipublic agencyiforuse on state orquasipublic agency property or iithat support an event and B which facilitatestate orquasipublic agency action or functions As used in this subdivision state propertymeansiproperty owned by the state oraquasipublic agency or ii property leased to a stateagency orquasipublic agency

6 A certificate plaque or other ceremonial award costing less than one hundred dollars
7 A rebate discount or promotional item available to the general ptllic
8 Printed or recorded informational material germane to state action or functions

9 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars in the aggregate per recipient in acalendar year and consumed on an occasion or occasions at which the person paying directly orindirectly for the food or beverage or his representative is in attendance

10 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars per person and consumed at apublicly noticed legislative reception to which all members of the General Assembly are invitedand which is hosted not more than once in any calendar year by a lobbyist or businessorganization For the purposes of such limit Aa reception hosted by a lobbyist who is anindividual shall be deemedtohave also been hosted by the business organization which he ownsor is employed by andB a reception hosted by a business organization shall be deemed tohave also been hosted by all owners and employees of the business organization who arelobbyists In making the calculation for the purposes of such fiftydollar limit the donor shall dividethe amount spent on food and beverage by the number of persons whom the donor reasonablyexpects to attend the reception

11 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars per person and consumed at a
publicly noticed reception to which all members of the General Assembly from a region of the
state are invited and which is hosted not more than once in any calendar year by a lobbyist orbusiness organization For the purposes of such limit A a reception hosted by a lobbyist who isan individual shall be deemed to have also been hosted by the business organization which he
owns or is employed by and B a reception hosted by a business organization shall be deemed
to have also been hosted by all owners and employees of the business organization who are
lobbyists In making the calculation for the purposes of such fiftydollar limit the donor shall dividethe amount spent on food and beverage by the number of persons whom the donor reasonablyexpects to attend the reception As used in this subdivision region of the state means the

2



established geographic service area of the organization hosting the reception
12 A gift including but not limited to food or beverage or both provided by an individual forthe celebration of a major life event provided any such gift provided by an individual who is not amember of the family of the recipient shall not exceed one thousand dollars in value
13 Gifts costing less than one hundred dollars in the aggregate or food or beverageprovided at ahospitality suite at a meeting or conference of an interstate legislative associationby a person who is not a registrant or is not doing business with the state of Connecticut
14 Admission to a charitable or civic event including food and beverage provided at suchevent but excluding lodging or travel expenses at which a public official or state employeeparticipates in his official capacity provided such admission is provided by the primarysponsoring entity

15 Anything of value provided by an employer of A a public official B a state employeeor C aspouse of a public official or state employee to such official employee or spouseprovided such benefits arp customarily and ordinarily provided to others in similar circumstances
16 Anything having a value of not more than ten dollars provided the aggregate value of allthings provided by a donor to a recipient under this subdivision in any calendar year shall notexceed fifty dollars or

17 Training that is provided by a vendor for a product purchased by astate orquasipublicagency which is offered to all customers of such vendor

a



x lttI

RESOLUTION

Whereas important provisions of the Citys Purchasing Ordinance will be improved by theimplementation of more strict procedures sections concerning the Waiver of Competitive Bidding inCritical Emergencies and Qualified Purchases should be revised

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCILTHAT THE PURCHASING ORDINANCE SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS

A Definitions

Critical emergency purchase means a purchase of goods or services that if notpurchased or ordered immediately can result in injury to human life or significant propertydamage or result in consequences detriment to the citys best interests These types ofpurchases include alt requirements needed on an emergency basis a to comply with federalstate or local laws or codes or b to avoid complete loss of funds made available by noncitypublic and private fundingssources or c to make emergency repairs of cityowned propertybuildings infrastructure equipment and vehicles the need for which or the quantity thereof couldnot have been reasonably anticipated with proper advance planning The purchasing agent shoulduse the informal competitive quotation process for critical erne encrg y purch es if possible butshall not be limited by the applicable threshold dollar amounts set fortr1ereirluento theemergency nature of the purchase purchases n E1tEiEleenaan

G Waiver ofCompetitive Processes in Critical Emergencies
1 Waiver ofCompetitive Bidding For Critical Emergency Pu

a The Contracting Officer shall set forth in writing to the
reasons why Public Advertising and Competitive Bidding or other comperequired by this Section should be waived uch writing shall include

Z oc

c
hasRglgent theyprocess otherwis

1c1The Purchasing Agent shall
le inauirv whether a Critical Emergency Purchase is appropriate in that there is a

LdL If the Purchasina AnPnf determinQS that a Critica Emempnrv Purchacp isaoorooriate the Purchasina Agent shall make a written recommendation

lbl The Cynntrartina Cffirrcrchalalso
on a form approved by the City Attorney

p integrity affidavit



bfl After the issuance of any Mayoral Bid Waiver the Purchasing Agent shall providea coov of the Bid Waver a coov of hisAritten recommendation of the Mayor the name of theparticular vendor and other pertinent details within five 5 working days after such purchase tothe Mayor the City Council the Director of Finaiice the Director of the Office of Policy andManagement and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the Purchasing Agentsquarterly report to the BPP

desk

hs Due to the timesensitive nature of Critical Eiergency Purchases emailcommunications and oral communications subsequently confirmed in writing may be utilized tospeed the communication of requests and action on such requests

2 Waiverof Competitive Bidding For Qualified Purchases

a Purchases other than Critical Emergency Purchases may be made withoutCompetitive Bidding for thefollowing reasons

i Only one 1 qualified or available vendor or sole source can be identified
through reasonable efforts for example where only one vendor is authorized or certified
to do such work where parts are available only through a single dealer or distributor orwhere the work is proprietary or relates to products that are proprietary and cannot besubstituted or installed by nonauthorized installers without adverse effects or
complications

ii Purchase from a special source including but not limited to a salepurchasing plan government discount or tradein allowance that will provide a
substantially lower cost than would result from a competitive process

iii The purchase involves items that are regulated by federal or state
govemment

b A request for a Qualified Purchase requires the following steps to be taken inorder ithe Contracting Officerssubmission of a detailed memo with all backup documentationexplaining the need to make a purchase in this manner accompanied by an integrity affidavit on aform approved by the City Attorney ii a certification by the Purchasing Agent that the request

to the Mayor to grant a waiver of Public Advertising and Competitive Biddingrecomm ndaion half incl de

1The Mayor shall consider the matter and if appropriate shall issue a Mayoral BidWaiver or in hisher absence the Chief Administrative Officer shall consider and decide suchmatter and issue a Mayoral Bid Waiver before any Critical Emergency Purchase may be made



supports the waiver of Competitive Bidding or Public Advertisement iii the Contracting Officersreasons to the Purchasing Agent for the selection of the particular vendor and iv if approvedthe Purchasing Agentssubmission ofhisher report of such purchase within five 5 working daysto the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office of Policy andManagement and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the Purchasing Agentsquarterly report to the BPP If the request for a Qualified Purchase is not approved the purchaseshall be made in accordance with approved purchasing methods set forth herein



Ortiz Frances

From Pacacha Ronald
Sent Monday October 07 2013 130 PM
To Ortiz Frances
Subject FW Proposed Changes to Purchasing Ordinance Regarding Critical Emergency Purchasesand Qualified Purchases
Attachments Proposed Changes to Purchasing OrdinanceCritical Emergencies and QPsOctober 4 13

RJPRdocx Proposed Changes to Purchasing OrdinanceCritical Emergencies and QPsOctober 4 13 RJPCLEANdocx Proposed Changes to Purchasing and MBE OrdinanceCritical Emergency and QPsIntegrity AffidavitOctober4 13 RJP CLEANdoc

Frances in case you have not been provided with the proposed changes to the Purchasing Ordinance to be discussed at
tonights Ordinance Committee meeting attached are the proposed changes that I sent to Tom McCarthy and the
Administration on Friday October 4 In a conversation with Andy Nunn this morning he believed that someone
perhaps Tom had send the proposed resolutions to the Council the Ordinance Committee members and to youroffice So I am provided these to you in case no one else has Ifyou have any questions let me know Thanks Ron

In anticipation ofthe Ordinance Committee meeting scheduled for Monday October 7 2013 at 515pmattached are
proposed amendments to two sections ofthe Purchasing Ordinance relating to Critical Emergency Purchases and
Qualified Purchases Also attached is a clean copy of the proposed changes Lastly I have attached a copytaproposed Integrity Affidavit that each person who requests either a Critical Emergency Purchasera IifiFlPurchasewill have to submit with such request as required by the proposed changes to the ordinance C

si
To the extent that such proposed changes are acceptable to the Ordinance Committee in theme urrent formthmodifications the CoChairs may want to order a public hearing on the changes so that the C Councian anal
action on these changes at its second October meeting in order for such changes to be imple nted prix toexpiration ofthis Council session c t

If you have any questions please let me know Thank you i
Ronald J Pacacha
Associate City Attorney
City Hall Annex
999 Broad Street 2nd Floor

Bridgeport CT 06604
Tel 203 5767647
Fax 203 5768252

Unauthorized interception is prohibited by Federal Law Electronic Communications Privacy Act of
1986 18 USC 2701aand 2702 a

This message is intended exclusively for the individuals and entities to which it is addressed This communicationincluding any attachments may contain information that is proprietary privileged confidential or otherwise legally
exempt from disclosure Ifyou are not the named addressee you are not authorized to read print retain copy or
disseminate this message or any part of it If you have received this message in error please notify the sender
immediately byamail and delete all copies ofthis message This message is protected by applicable legal privileges and
is confidential



RESOLUTION
f

Whereas im ortant provisions of the Citvs Purchasing Ordinancewill be improved by the
implementation of more stud procedures sedron left

s concemrng the Waiver of Competitive Bidding inCritical Emergencies and Qualified Purchases should be revised

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BYTHE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCILTHAT THE PURCHASING ORDINANCE SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS

G Waiver of Competitive Processes in Critical Emergencies
1 Waiver of Competitive Bidding For CritiralEmergency Purchases

a The Contracting Officer shall set forth in writing to the Purchasing Agent thereasons why Public Advertising and Competitive Bidding or other competitive process othervvise
required by this Section should be waived accompanied by an integrity affidavit on a formimproved by the City Attomev Critical Emergency Purchases shall be limited to those purchasesreasonably necessary and only for such duration as may be required to meet the emergencycircumstances described The Purchasing Agent shall initially determine whether a Critical
Emergency Purchase is appropriate and if circumstances allowse shall make a writtenrecommendation to the Mayor to grant sustawaive f P bli Aro u c dvertising and ComoeitnreBidding The Mayor shall consider the matter and ffappropriate shallissue a Mavoral Bid Waiver or in hisher absence the Chief Administrative Officer 6euRSApresidentshall consider and decide such matter and issue a Mavoral Bid Waiver before anyCritical Emergency Purchase may be made

I b After the issuance of any Mayoral Bid Waiver the Purdtasing Agent shall iaferr w
rovide the nameof the particular vendorervergers and other pertinent details within five 5working days after t3 cQsuch purchase to the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office of rniPolicy and Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the Purchasing C t

Agent s quarterly report to the BPP CIO

c Due to the timesensitive nature of Critical Emergency Purchases email
commurncatrons and oral communlcaUons subseguentiv confirmed in writing may be utilized to

j D rOO
r1speed the communrcatron of requests and action on such requests Q
n

2 WaiverofCompetitive Bidding For QualifiedPurchases
Indent Len 1 No bullets rX

a Purchases other than Critical Emergency Purchases may be made withoutCompetitive Bidding
following reasons

i Only one 1qualified oravailable vendor or sole source can be identified
through reasonable efforts for example where only one vendor is authorized or certifiedto do such work where parts are available only through a single dealer or distributor orwhere the work is proprietary or relates to products that are proprietary and cannot besubstituted or installed by nonauthorized installers without adverse effects or
complications

ii Purchase from a special source inducting but not limited to a sale

I purchasing plan government discount or tradein aliowanoe hat will provide a
substantially lower cost thantHatnrhisqwouldresult from a competitive process



iiiv The purchase involves items that are re ulated by
FOraIrWent littRx6ne os

arefederal orstate oovemmentfegulated
9

b A request for a Qualified Purchacn rPndmchofnaee

explaining the need to make a purchase in this manner accompanied by an integrity affidavit on aform approved by the Cmr Attomev Ui a certification by tThe Purchasing Agent staaNawake
hat the request supports the waiver of Competitive Biddingor Public Advertisement ii the Contracting Officers reasons to the Purchasing Agent for theselection of the particular vendor and iv if approved thePurchasing Agents submission of hisher report of uchpurchase wtthm five 5 working daiis to the Mayor the CityCoundl the Director of Finance theDirector of the Office of Policy and Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be indudedin the Purchasing Agentsquarterly report to the BPP If the request for a Q alified Purchase isnot approved the purchase shall be made in accordance wdh approved purchasing methods setforth herein



RESOLUTION

Whereas important provisions of the CitysPurchasing Ordinance will be improved by theimplementation of more strict procedures sections concerning the Waiver of Competitive Bidding inCritical Emergencies and Qualified Purchases should be revised

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BRIDGEPORT CITY COUNCILTHAT THE PURCHASING ORDINANCE SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS

G Waiver ofCompetitive Processes in Critical Emergencies

Waiver ofCompetitive Bidding For Critical Emergency Purchases

a The Contracting Officer shall set forth in writing to the Purchasing Agent thereasons why Public Advertising and Competitive Bidding or other competitive process otherwiserequired by this Section should be waived accompanied by an integrity affidavit on a form
approved by the City Attorney Critical Emergency Purchases shall be limited to those purchasesreasonably necessary and only for such duration as may be required to meet the emergencycircumstances described The Purchasing Agent shall initially determine whether a Critical
Emergency Purchase is appropriate and if circumstances allow shall make a written
recommendation to the Mayor to grant a waiver of Public Advertising and Competitive BiddingThe Mayor shall consider the matter and if appropriate shall issue a Mayoral Bid Waiver or inhisher absence the Chief Administrative Officer shall consider and decide such matter and issue
a Mayoral Bid Waiver before any Critical Emergency Purchase may be made

b After the issuance of any Mayoral Bid Waiver thePchasing Agent shall providethe name of the particular vendor and other pertinent details within five 5 working days aftersuch purchase to the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office ofPolicy and Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the PurchasingAgents quarterly report to the BPP

c Due to the timesensitive nature of Crfical EmergencYPurchasesemailcommunications and oral communications subsequently confirmed in writing nayfutild tospeed the communication of requests and action on such requests G

rn
2 Waiver ofCompetitive Bidding ForQualified Purchases rn

rn rna Purchases other than Critical Emergency Purchases m be maw vt
Competitive Bidding for the following reasons

n
i Only one 1 qualified or available vendor or sole sou canbideied

through reasonable efforts for example where only one vendor is aut orized or certified
to do such work where parts are available only through a single dealer or distributor or
where the work is proprietary or relates to products that are proprietary and cannot be
substituted or installed by nonauthorized installers without adverse effects or
complications

ii Purchase from a special source including but not limited to a sale
purchasing plan govemment discount or tradein allowance that will provide a

substantially lower cost than would result from acompetitive process

iii The purchase involves items that are regulated by federal or state
govemment



b A request for a Qualified Purchase requires the following steps to be taken inorder ithe Contracting Officers submission of a detailed memo with alt backup documentation
explaining the need to make a purchase in this manner accompanied by an integrity affidavit on aform approved by the City Attorney iia certification by the Purchasing Agent that the requestsupports the waiver of Competitive Bidding or Public Advertisement iii the Contracting Officersreasons to the Purchasing Agent for the selection of the particular vendor and iv if approvedthe Purchasing Agentssubmission of hisher report of such purchase within five 5 working daysto the Mayor the City Council the Director of Finance the Director of the Office of Policy and
Management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in the Purchasing Agentsquarterly report to the BPP If the request for a Qualified Purchase is not approved the purchaseshall be made in accordance with approved purchasing methods set forth herein

r



INTEGRITY AFFIDAVIT OF
CONTRACTING OFFICER INVOLVED IN RECOMMENDING A CRITICAL

EMERGENCY PURCHASE OR A QUALIFIED PURCHASE

Re Proposed Award of Contract to
Contractor for Work Without

Public Advertising or Competitive Bidding
All Critical Emergency Purchases and Qualified Purchases requested under City Ordinance

Chapfer308070G1andG2must be accompanied by this affidavif signed by the CitysContracting Officer making such request All capitalized terms not defined herein have the
meanings assigned to them in the Cityspurchasing ordinance

I the Contracting Officer requesting this purchase herebyswear that during the three 3 years preceding the date of this affidavit I have not received or
been offered any gift as defined in Conn Gen Stat 179e12seeattached excerpt from
the Contractor including a gift for the celebration ofa major life event as described therein from
any person I know or have reason to believe to be an employee owner shareholder officerdirector member or agent of the Contractor except for the following provide details if nonewrite NONE in the space below

JI further hereby swear that during the three 3 years preceding the date of this affidavit I have
not been coerced threatened or pressured by any person to affect any decision I have made
regarding the request to award any contract involving the Contractor

I understand that the City of Bridgeport will rely upon the truthfulness and accury oftaffidavit in connection with my request and that making a false or incompletestmenit i
misrepresenting or omitting facts may result in disciplinary action under theCiaOode thit or
under the City Purchasing Ordinance

r
y qrmmF

Name

Job Title or Position
Date

4 n
c

v rn
Swom to and subscribed before me this day of

Commissioner of the Superior Court

Notary Public

My commission expires



Section 179 Connecticut General Statutes states in part

e Gift means anything of value which is directly and personally received unless considerationofequal or greater value is given in return Giftshall not include

1 A political contribution otherwise reported as required by law or adonation or payment asdescribed in subdivision 9 or 10 of subsection b of section 9601a

2 Services provided by persons volunteering their time ifprovided to aid or promote thesuccess or defeat of any political party arty candidate or candidates for public office or theposition of convention delegate or town committee member or any referendum question

3A dommercially reasonable loan made on terms not more favorable than loans made inthe ordinary course of business

4 A gift received from A an individuals spouse fiance or fiancee B the parent brother orsister of such spouse or such individual orC the child of such individual or the spouse of suchchild

5 Goods or services A which are provided to a state agency orquasipublic agencyiforuse on state orquasipublic agency property or iithat support an event and B which facilitatestate orquasipublic agency action or functions As used in this subdivision state propertymeansiproperty owned by the state or aquasipublicagency or ii property leased to astate
agency orquasipublicagency

6 A certificate plaque or otherceremonial award costing less than one hundred dollars

7 A rebate discount or promotional item available to the general public
8 Printed or recorded informational material germane to state action or functions

9 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars in the aggregate per recipient in acalendar year and consumed on an occasion or occasions at which the person paying directly or
indirectly for the food or beverage or his representative is in attendance

10 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars per person and consumed at a
publicly noticed legislative reception to which all members of the General Assembly are invitedand which is hosted not more than once in any calendar year by a lobbyist or business
organization For the purposes of such limit A a reception hosted by a lobbyist who is an
individual shall be deemed to have also been hosted by the business organization which he owns
or is employed by and B a reception hosted by a business organization shall be deemed to
have also been hosted by all owners and employees of the business organization who are

lobbyists In making the calculation for the purposes of such fiftydollar limit the donor shall dividethe amount spent on food and beverage by the number of persons whom the donor reasonablyexpects to attend the reception

11 Food or beverage or both costing less than fifty dollars per person and consumed at a
publicly noticed reception to which all members of the General Assembly from a region of the
state are invited and which is hosted not more than once in any calendar year by a lobbyist or
business organization For the purposes of such limit A a reception hosted by a lobbyist who is
an individual shall be deemed to have also been hosted by the business organization which he
owns or is employed by and B a reception hosted by a business organization shall be deemed
to have also been hosted by all owners and employees ofthe business organization who are
lobbyists In making the calculation for the purposes of such fiftydollar limit the donor shall divide
the amount spent on food and beverage by the number of persons whom the donor reasonablyexpects to attend the reception As used in this subdivision region of the state means the

2



established geographic service area of the organization hosting the reception

12 A gift including but not limited to food or beverage or both provided by an individual forthe celebration of amajor life event provided any such gift provided by an individual who is not a
member of the family of the recipient shall not exceed one thousand dollars in value

13 Gifts costing less than one hundred dollars in the aggregate or food or beverageprovided at ahospitality suite at ameeting or conference of an interstate legislative association
by a person who is not a registrant or is not doing business with the state of Connecticut

14 Admission to a charitable or civic event including food and beverage provided at such
event but excluding lodging or travel expenses at which a public official or state employee
participates in his official capacity provided such admission is provided by the primarysponsoring entity

15 Anything of value provided by an employer of A a public official B astate employeeorC a spouse of a public official or state employee to such official employee or spouseprovided such benefitsarecustomarily and ordinarily provided to others in similar circumstances

16 Anything having a value of not more than ten dollars provided the aggregate value of all
things provided by adonor to a recipient under this subdivision in any calendar year shall not
exceed fifty dollars or

17 Training that is provided by avendor for aproduct purchased by a state orquasipublic
agency which is offered to all customers of such vendor



Chapter 308 CITY CONTRACT AND PURCHASING PROCEDURES
Sections
308010 EstablishedAppointmentTermPowers and duties
308020 Purchasing agentHead of office
308030 Proposed draft of annual purchasing policy statement
308040 Execution of contractsConsultation with city attorney
308050ContractsDuplicates to be made
308060 Sale of department personal propertyMade through office of public purchases
308070 Purchasing procedure
308080 Deleted
308090 Disqualification of vendors from doing business with thecityProcedure308100 Certified checks or bid bondsRequiredwhenProcedure
308110 Public hearing on sale of cityowned propertyAdvertisement
308120 Prevailing union wage rate on all city contracts required
308130 Insurance
308140 Unauthorized activities prohibitedLiability
308150 Penalty for violations of Sections308070308080 and308100



308010 EstablishedAppointmentTermPowers and duties
A There shall be a board of public purchases consisting of the director of finance and fourmembers appointed by the mayor The members appointed by the mayor shall beknowledgeable concerning or experienced in procurement finance business or publicadministration or other disciplines related to the work of the department In January1993 the mayor shall appoint four members of the board of public purchases each ofwhom shall serve for a term ending March 31 1993 Thereafter members of such boardshall be appointed in tie manner and for the terms provided for in Chapter 8 Section14a and Chapter 22 Section 10 of the charter of the city
B The board shall elect one of the members appointed by the mayor as president and mayelect such other officers as it deems necessary The members of the board shall servewithout compensation

C The board of public purchases so appointedsiall have all of the powers and perform allof the duties vested in the board of public purchases by the charter and code

Ord dated 122192 11

308020 Purchasing agentHead of office

The head of the office of public purchases shall be a purchasing agent appointedpursuant to the provisions of the charter of the city r

Ord dated 122192 10

308030 Proposed draft of annual purchasing policy statement
Not later than April 1st of each year the purchasing agent shall submit to the board of

public purchases a proposed draft of the annual purchasing policy statement required byChapter 8 Section 14b of the city charter The board of public purchases shall review and
approve such statement prior tothe start of the next fiscal year

Ord dated 122192 13

308040 Execution ofcontractsConsultation with city attorney
The mayor shall execute all contracts made on behalf of the city unless the city councilshall by ordinance or resolution otherwise direct and before executing the same he shall consultwith the city attorney in relation to the proper legal form and sufficiency thereof

Ord dated 122192 14 prior code 2273

308050 ContractsDuplicates to be made

All contracts made by the city shall be in duplicate one of which shall be retained by the
city and filed in the office of the director of finance and the other of which shall be delivered to
the contracting party

Ord dated 122192 15 prior code 2274



308060 Sale of department personal propertyMadethrough office of public
purchases

Whenever anybyproduct or other personal property of any department of the city which
makes its purchases through the office of public purchases shall be sold the sale shall be made
through the office of public purchases

Ord dated 122192 12

308070 Purchasing procedure

Purpose The city recognizes the importance of adopting a comprehensive purchasingordinance that authorizes the use of modern procurement practices provides for electronic
processing and monitoring of purchasing activities and establishes responsibility for oversightand reporting within city government

A Definitions For the purpose of this section the following definitions shall apply
Approved communication methods means any communication required or

desired to be made in connection with a purchase provided however that such
communication is by hand by overnight or guaranteed delivery service by deposit in a

depository of the United States Postal Service properly addressed and postage prepaid
by facsimile transmission delivered to the intended addressee or by electronic
communication including but not limited toamail or other electronic means delivered to
the intended addressee or otherwise approved by official policy of the board of public
purchases

Audit rights means the citys independent right to audit charges costs
expenses payments setoffs change orders and other expenditures under any
purchase arrangement whether or not such right is specifically included in the bid
package or other documents related to the purchase

Authorized pricing methods means one of several permitted methods for
obtaining informal competitive price quotations in the purchase of goods general
services special or professional services where permitted herein provided however
that such quotation is obtained in hard copy byamail facsimile computer or other
electronic communication to the contracting officer by current catalog price or price
sheet intemet quote or other method approved by the board of public purchases

Award means the purchasing agents announcement of the selection of the
apparent a responsible low bidder in a competitive bid process b most qualified and
responsible bidder in a QBS selection process c responsible bidders in a
consolidated purchasing process or d responsible bidder in any other selection
process authorized herein provided however that an award or notification of intent to
make an award does not create a legal right in the bidder regarding the subject matter
of the bid or entitlement to a contract but is intended to inform the bidder that additional
obligations of the bid must be met such as the posting of surety and evidence of
insurance negotiation of a contract and securing proper approval of the parry
authorized to enter into a contract or obligation binding upon the city

Best value means during a competitive bidding process or request for proposal



process the purchasing agent after considering the recommendations of the
contracting officer if any may consider the following factors in determining to make an
award to a bidder other than the apparent lowest responsible bidder a the bidders
price b the bidders business reputation c the quality of the bidders goods or

services d the extent to which the goods or services meet the citys needs e the
bidders current or past relationship with the city f the impact on the citys ability to
comply with laws and rules relating to contracting with historically underutilized
businesses and nonprofit organizations employing persons with disabilities g the total
longterm cost to the city to acquire the bidders goods or services and h any relevant
criteria specifically listed in the bid documents The city reserves the right to make an
award either to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder that provides goods or
services having the best value to the city

Bidder means any person sometimes referred to herein as a vendor or
proposer seeking to do business with the city pursuant to this section including any
individual corporation partnership sole proprietorship joint stock company joint
venture limited liability partnership limited liability company or any other private legal
entity each of which shall be required to disclose in its bid whether or not the bid
documents specifically make such request the names and addresses of the bidders
officers directors members and owners holding five percent or more in ownership of
the bidder or its parent at the time of the submission of its bid which obligation to
disclose shall continue for the duration of the bidders relationship with the city

Bidder list means a mailing or notification list maiptained by the city of all
suppliers vendors contractors or service providers who have made a request by an
approved communication method to receive notice of the citys intent to make particular
purchases which bidder list does not imply that such those parties on it have been
prequalified orpreapproved to do business with the city The city reserves the right to
charge a nominal maintenance fee to those parties that desire to be included on the
bidder list to cover the citys cost of making and keeping the same

Board of public purchases or BPP means the board created by charter
responsible to discharge the duties described therein and herein with respect to the
citys purchasing process including but not limited to hearing and determining appeals
taken from decisions made by the purchasing agent preparing reports of its activities in
overseeing the citys purchasing practices establishing purchasing policies rules and
regulations in furtherance of this section publishing annual purchasing statements and
the like The official policies working rules and regulations adopted shall on their
respective effective dates be published applicable to and used in the implementation
and interpretation of this section and shall not otherwise be contrary to or in derogation
of the rights duties and responsibilities of city officials executives and administrators
set forth in the charter and ordinances as the same may be amended from time to time

Brand name brand name or equal specification means a bid specification a
limited to one or more items according to manufacturer name product code or catalog
number brand name specification orb providing the information stated in a above
to describe the standard of quality performance and other salient characteristics
needed to meet city requirements but allowing for the submission of equivalent
products

Consolidated purchasing means a centralized purchasing method whereby the



purchasing agent determines annually based upon the anticipated purchases projectedby contracting officers and hisher own experience that the purchase of items or
categories of items in bulk or pursuant to price agreements on a citywide basis from
one or more vendors will result in economies of scale and costsavings to the city

Competitive bidding or competitive bid means the citys procedure for
obtaining goods or general services in which sealed bids are submitted in response to
bid specifications This process does not permit any negotiation with the apparent
winning bidder after the receipt and opening of bids Competitive bidding may be
accomplished as a result of public advertisement or other electronic public notice
methods adopted as official policy by the BPP

Competitive proposal means a QBS process used for obtaining special or
professional services in which the city solicits a request for proposals based upon
qualifications experience and other specific requirements together with a request for a

price t

Contract means any type of writtenagreement or documented arrangement
involving a purchase regardless of what the evidence ofsuch arrangement may be
called or how it may be referred to which is approved by the contracting officer contain
terms and conditions protecting the citys legal interests is properly funded and where
required by charter or ordinance has been approved by the citycouncil or its designee
provided however that socalled letters of intent letters of interest memoranda of
agreements and other examples of latent potential unilateral or executory documents
or arrangements that otherwise may not be binding uponthe city may become a
binding legal obligation of the city only if and to the extent that any such document or
arrangement has been approved by the city council or its designee

Contracting officer means any director or deputy of a city department any
president or chief executive of a city agency board or commission including the board
of education the WPCA and any other similar dulyconstituted agency of city
government as defined by Charter or ordinance or contained in the citys table of
organization including hisher respective designee set forth in writing to the purchasing
agent having direct authority or due authorization to initiate purchases

Critical emergency purchase means a purchase of goods or services that if not
purchased or ordered immediately can result in injury to human life or significant
property damage or result in consequences detriment to the citys best interests These
types of purchases include all requirements needed on an emergency basis a to
comply with federal state or local laws or codes or b to avoid complete loss of funds
made available by noncity public and private funding sources or c to make
emergency repairs of cityowned property buildings infrastructure equipment and
vehicles the need for which or the quantity thereof could not have been reasonably
anticipated with proper advance planning The purchasing agent should use the informal
competitive quotation process for critical emergency purchases if possible but shall not
be limited by the applicable threshold dollar amounts set forth herein due to the
emergency nature of the purchase Lastminute purchases not constituting true

emergencies or other emergency purchases that do not comply with this definition may
only be approved in accordance with the mayoral bid waiver process set forth herein

Decentralized purchase order means payment other than through the
purchase order process for a department agency or commissions purchases of items



or services of any kind that conform to the official policy of the board of public purchases
as to items that may be so purchased and paid for expenditures that may be made in
this manner due to the timing or requirements of a noncity funding or financing source
dollar thresholds exceptions prohibitions and the like provided however that a
purchase may be paid by decentralized purchase order for a greater amount than any
dollar threshold established for such item or expenditure if the purchase constitutes
either a critical emergency purchase involves a purchase that if not made and paid for
in this manner would result in the loss of funding or constitutes a purchase or
expenditure otherwise permitted by Charter or ordinance and is approved in writing by
the comptroller

General services means all services that result in a measurable end product as
defined by bid specifications including but not limited to all services used in the process
of building altering maintaining improving or demolishing any cityowned property
structure building or public infrastructure but excluding architectural engineering and
other design services and construction services Examples of general services include
but are not limited to electrical work road resurfacing sewer repair building demolition
equipment maintenance and waste disposal services

Goods means supplies material equipment and articles whether purchased or
leased including but not limited to fuels furniture computers paper products food
products sand and hightech hardware and software telecommunications equipment
and office equipment

Informal competitive proposal means the purchaseof special or professional
services that are in excess of seven thousand eve hundred dollars750000 but do
not exceed twentyfive thousand dollars 2500000 based upon a reasonable and
documented attempt to solicit proposals as set forth herein which process shall not
require public advertisement

Informal competitive quote or informal competitive quotation means the
purchase of goods or general services or the purchase of special or professional
services that are in excess of one thousand dollars100000 but do not exceed seven
thousand four hundred ninetynine dollars749900 which processes shall not

require public advertisement

Lowest responsible bidder means the bidder whose bid is a a complete
response to the invitation to bid and b the lowest of those bidders possessing the skill
ability financial capacity business integrity and experience necessary for faithful
performance of the described work based on objective criteria Evaluation of lowest
responsible bidder shall include best value considerations whether or not such
considerations are set forth in the bid documents Bidders may be excluded from
consideration entirely if they are listed on the disqualed vendor list at the time the
invitation to bid is the subject of public advertisement or at the time the city otherwise
seeks to make a purchase as described herein In a request for proposals process a
bidder may be chosen as lowest responsible bidder from among those bidders that are

prequalified or based upon recognized industry standards that the contracting officer
responsible for the purchase has certified in writing to the purchasing agent as

commercially relevant The city reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive
informalities in a bid to the extent that such informalities are not material and do not give
one bidder an unfair advantage over other responsive and responsible bidders



Maybral bid waiver means the mayorsauthority to grant a written waiver of the
requirements for public advertisement and the need for a competitive bidding orcompetitive proposal process in connection with critical emergency purchases after
receiving a the contracting officerswritten statement of the need for such waiver withall appropriate backup information and b the purchasing agents written
recommendation of the need for such waiver

Public advertisement or publicly advertised means the advertisement in one
or more media of the citys desire to make a purchase expected to cost seven thousandfive hundred dollars750000 or more placed a in a newspaper of generalcirculation in the Bridgeport area b in other print media designated to encourage a
greater number of bids c on the citys intemet website d on other electronic media
available to the general public or e in other media authorized by the BPP it beingunderstood that certain purchases such as those made by the informal competitivequote and the informal competitive proposal processes critical emergency purchases
qualified purchases and purchases under ore thousand dollars100000 shall not
require public advertisement The content and location of public advertisements shall be
determined as set forth herein or as otherwise authorized by official policy of the BPP
Purchases shall not be deliberately split in amount artificially staggered over time or
otherwise be the subject of any other artifice designed to avoid the requirement to utilize
competitive bidding or other purchasing methods required herein

Qualified purchase means a purchase of goods or services where either there
is only one source for such purchase a purchase from a special source will provide a
lower cost than would result from competitive bidding time is critical and the purchasecould not have been planned or the purchase involves items whose prices are
controlled by federal or state regulation

Qualitybased selection or QBS selection means a method for purchasing
special or professional services by either initially prequalifying bidders prior to obtaininga price proposal or making a final selection without a price proposal Such process
initially requires the submission of professional qualifications demonstrated business
experience specific project experience evidence of business integrity and professional
competence Where qualifications alone are paramount in the selection process and
price is not a factor final selection is made based on qualifications alone In other
QBS processes where price is not a factor initially in the selection process or only one
of a number of factors to be considered in making a final decision a final selection is
made based upon the submission of price proposals followingprequalification

QBS selection panel means a group of individuals qualified by knowledge
training and experience in purchases of the type contemplated and having no real or
apparent conflict of interest in the outcome of the QBS selection consisting of at least
three city employees selected by the contracting and supplemented where possible by
other similarly qualified individuals from the general public having no real or apparent
conflict of interest in the outcome of such selection or otherwise as specified by official
policy of the BPP Such panels shall use uniform objective selection criteria established
in advance for the particular purchase or criteria otherwise specified in writing by the
BPP The QBS selection panel shall make a written report of its selection the criteria
used and its recommendation to the board of public purchases which shall make the
final decision and award



Reglest for proposals means a form of QBS selection process that includes a
request for professional qualifications where such qualifications are important but not
paramount and where price is a paramount factor to be considered in making an awardA request for proposals may follow a request for qualifications from prequalifiedbidders

Request for qualifications means a form of QBS selection that includes a
request for professional qualifications where such qualifications are paramount in the
selection and price is not a factor

Special or professional services means the furnishing of judgment expertisedesign advice or effort by persons other than city employees not involving the deliveryof a specific end product defined by bid specifications These types of services includebut are not limited to consulting legal financial technical audit appraisal architecture
design engineering and other similar professional services not contemplated as generalservices Such services shall also include unique warranty orsinglesource services not
generally available for specific cityowned property equipment building systems and
equipment and vehicles where the nature of the required services cannot be defined in
advance by bid specifications and the professional or proprietary knowledge and
expertise of the service provider is paramount to the lowest cost and otherwise in the
citys best interests

Summary bid process means a competitive bid process described herein that
the city may elect to utilize among the selected responsib qualified bidders for a
purchase when all bids exceed any budget appropriation
B Purchase of goods and general services

Purchases not requiring competitive bidding Except for items the city
requires to be purchased from vendors selected during a consolidated
purchasing process competitive bidding through the purchasing agent is
not required for purchases between one dollar100 and nine hundred
ninetynine dollars 99900 provided however that purchases shall not
be deliberately split in amount artificially staggered over time or be the
subject of any other artifice in order to avoid the requirement to utilize the
competitive bidding process informal competitive quotation process or
another purchasing method otherwise required herein The comptroller
and the purchasing agent shall monitor such purchases and report any
questionable practices to the BPP within five days of becoming aware of
such practices

2 Purchases permitted by informal competitive quotation process
Purchases of goods or general services that are in excess of one
thousand dollars100000 but less than seven thousand four hundred
ninetynine dollars749900 seeCGS 7148v as the same may
be amended from time to time shall be based upon authorized pricing
methods provided however that purchases shall not be deliberately split
in amount artificially staggered over time or be the subject of any other
artifice in order to avoid the requirement to utilize the competitive bidding
process or another purchasing method otherwise required herein An
informal competitive quotation process shall be conducted as follows



a Price quotations either oral or written shall be solicited from at
least three vendors or service providers by one or more
authorized pricing methods A valid vendors or service providers
documented refusal to quote shall qualify as a quotation If the
process yields less than three responsive and responsible bidders
or if it yields only a single responsive and responsible source for
the purchase a selection shall be made if such selection is in the
citys best interests under the circumstances The contracting
officer shall promptly document the informal competitive quotation
process in writing to the purchasing agent

b A purchase of goods or general services shall be counted as one

purchase for like items Unlike items grouped together on one

purchase requisition shall require price notations only for those
s items on the purchase requisition that are in excess of three

thousand dollars3OOQ00 The determination of like and unlike
items shall be based on the commodity codes assigned such
items under the thencurrent city1inancial system

c The purchasing agent may waive solicitation of informal
competitive quotations for a critical emergency purchase or for
any other purchase for which a mayoral bid waiver may be sought
as provided herein

3 Purchases requiring competitive bidding Competitive bidding shall be
used for all purchases of goods and general services exceeding the sum
of seven thousand five hundred dollars 750000 See CGS
7148v as amended provided however that purchases shall not be
deliberately split in amount artificially staggered over time or be the
subject of any other artifice in order to avoid the requirement to utilize the
competitive bidding process informal competitive quotation process or
another purchasing method otherwise required herein

4 Consolidated purchasing
a Commonly used goods general services special and professional

services The purchasing agent shall make purchases that are

commonly used by several departments where the total annual
purchase for each type of goods or services anticipated to be
used by such departments is in excess of twentyfive thousand
dollars 2500000 per fiscal year in the aggregate in order to
achieve the best price

b Fcclusions from consolidated purchasing The purchasing agent
may exclude purchases from the requirements of consolidated

purchasing provided that the contracting officer submits a written
request with justification for exclusion from consolidated
purchasing and the purchasing agent makes a written
determination that

i No significant cost savings other efficiencies or benefits
can be achieved through consolidated purchasing or



ii The unique requirements of such purchase require that
such purchase be made separately from consolidated
purchasing

c Requirements contracts price agreements The purchasing agent
may at hisher discretion purchase specific items under one
procurement by procuring a master requirements contract or a
price agreement under which city departments may obtain goods
or services directly from the vendor In selecting such a vendor
the total cost of all goods or services at the expected quantities or

dollar values to be purchased shall be used in determining the
total cost of the proposal or bid and the selection shall be made
on the basis of best value

d Planning for anticipated needs The purchasing agent shall solicit
from the various departments and contracting officers their
anticipated requirements for goods and services prior to each
fiscal year and as appropriate shall invite representatives of
various departments to determine specifications for items of

goods or services to be obtained using consolidated purchasing
for their common needs

C Competitive bidding process

For each purchase of goods or general services made by competitive
bidding the following shall apply

All requirements terms and conditions sought by the city
including quality delivery terms and vendor or contractor
qualifications shall be contained in the bid specifications For
purchases requiring a contract the contracting officer shall
include a draft contract as part of the bid package whenever
possible or other provision shall be made to protect the legal
interests of the city Ifprequalification of bidders is sought prior to
bids being accepted or prior to award the criteria to be met shall
also be set forth in the bid documents

2 The purchasing agent shall publish a notice inviting sealed
competitive bidding at least once by public advertisement The
notice shall to the extent practicable be published not less than
ten working days before the final date for submitting bids Said
notice shall contain a general description of the goods or general
services desired the place where the bid specifications may be
obtained the day hour place and manner for bid opening and
other pertinent information

3 The purchasing agent shall in addition to the public
advertisement solicit and receive sealed bids by approved
communication methods from all qualified responsible bidders on
the bidder list whose goods and services comply with the
purchases sought according to the citys thencurrent commodity
codes by sending them copies of the public advertisement



promptly after publication Such communication notices shall be
solely for the convenience of suppliers Any failure to provide or

delay in providing any supplier with such notice shall not invalidate
the bid process incur liability to the city or prejudice it in any
manner

4 The purchasing agent may revise the bidder lists by deletingbidders who have not responded to three consecutive bids sent to
them who have not registered orreregistered electronically or
have not otherwise given written notice to the city by an approved
communication method of their interest in remaining on such
bidding list

5 All bids shall be submitted sealed to the extent that the
purchasing method used permits sealing to the purchasing agent
and shall be accompanied by bid security in the form of certified
check credit card authorization or bond in the amount stated in
the public advertisement or bid documents provided however
that target groups and SLBEs defined in Section312130 of this
title shall only be required to submit bid security for contracts
having a value in excess of or reasonably expected at the time of
award to have a value in excess of one hundred thousand dollars
10000000 A bid is nonresponsive unless such security or
evidence that such security can be obtained is received at the
time of bid opening Each bidder is solely responsible for
submitting all bid requirements in strict compliance with the public
advertisement The bids shall be opened in public at the time and
place stated Any bid received after the time specified in any
other manner than required or at any other location than specified
in the public advertisement shall be deemed nonresponsive shall
be rejected and shall be returned unopened where the method
used may allow to the bidder

6 For each purchase made by competitive bidding a record of all
bids submitted giving the names of the bidders and amounts of
the bids and indicating the successful bidder together with the
originals of all competitive bids and any other pertinent
documents shall be preserved by the purchasing agent in
accordance with state law or the citys record retention practices
whichever shall be longer in duration

7 The purchase shall be awarded to the lowest responsive
responsible and qualified bidder or prequalified bidder who
meets the requirements terms and conditions contained in the bid
specifications and represents the best value to the city In the
case of a purchase by competitive bidding where the public
advertisement indicates that bidders will be prequalified the
purchasing agent has the authority to make an award exclusively
from the list ofprequalified bidders

8 In the event all bids submitted by responsive responsible and



qualified bidders exceed the citys budget for such purchase after
deduction of all reasonably anticipated contingencies at the
request of the contracting officer the purchasing agent shall
conduct a summary bid process open only to such responsible
qualified bidders that originally submitted a bid Such summary bid
process may include a postbid conference shall permit
resubmission of such original bids or the submission of new bids
in not less than three days from the mailing of notice to the
original bidders and may provide for the deletion or modification
of one or more altemates or change in the specifications provided
in the original bid package as determined by the contracting
officer

D Awarding of contracts that contain altemates

1 All bird specifications for a purchase for which alternates are to be
included shall have the alternates listed in their order of priority provided
however that the contracting officer may change the priority of such
alternates during a summary bid process

2 Prior to making an award for which the bid specifications list alternates to
be included the contracting officer shall inform the purchasing agent as
to which alternates are to be included in the award

E Purchasing special or professional services

1 Purchases permitted by consolidated purchasing Purchases of special or

professional services anticipated to cost less than twentyfive thousand
dollars 2500000 per fiscal year may be procured through
consolidated purchasing as provided herein

2 Purchases exempt from competitive bidding Purchases of special or

professional services anticipated to cost between one dollar100 and
nine hundred ninetynine dollars 99900 shall be made in the manner

specified in paragraph B1 hereof

3 Purchases permitted by informal competitive quotation process
Purchases of special and professional services anticipated to cost
between one thousand dollars100000 and seven thousand four
hundred ninetynine dollars749900 shall be made in the manner

specified in paragraph B2 hereof

4 Purchases requiring an informal competitive proposal process
Purchases of special or professional services that are in excess of seven
thousand five hundred dollars750000 but do not exceed twentyfour
thousand nine hundred ninetynine dollars 2499900 shall be based
upon a reasonable and documented attempt to solicit proposals without
the need for public advertising in the following manner

a Proposals shall be solicited from at least three qualified or

prequalified vendors An otherwise qualified vendors refusal to

submit a proposal shall qualify as the solicitation of a proposal
The contracting officer shall document the process in writing and



submit a report to the purchasing agent If a single reasonable
source exists for the service the contracting officer shall include
this information in hisher submission to the purchasing agent

b The solicitation of proposals may be waived for any critical
emergency purchase by obtaining a mayoral bid waiver A waiver
other than a mayoral bid waiver shall require the contractingofficer to certify in writing to the purchasing agent the need for a
waiver and the purchasing agent shall determine if such waiver is
appropriate No further approval shall be required If the
purchasing agent is not requested to give such waiver or refuses
to approve such waiver a mayoral bid waiver may be sought All
said waivers shall be included in the purchasing agents quarterlyreport to the BPP

5 Purchases requiring a QBS selection process In cases where the
contracting officer intends to purchase special or professional services
that are anticipated to exceed twentyfive thousand dollars2500000a QBS selection process shall be used for such purchase

F Qualitybased selection processes prequalification process competitive
proposal process competitive qualification process followed by competitive
proposal process

1 Solicitation of proposals using qualitybased selection
a Qualitybased selection asaprequalification process

A QBS selection process may be utilized to prequalify
bidders for the purchase of special or professional
services in an amount greater than twentyfive thousand
dollars 2500000 where the contracting officer
determines that such services are unique or that the
nature of the project requires selection criteria primarily
influenced by the bidders knowledge and experience in
similar or related projects The contracting officers
recommendation to conduct such a prequalification
process shall be set forth in writing and submitted to the
purchasing agent for approval A QBS selection panel
shall be formed by the contracting officer or otherwise in
accordance with official policy of the BPP

Public advertisement of the QBS selection process
whether or not such process is used forprequalification of
bidders or final selection shall be deemed satisfied for
such purchase

iii The contracting officer shall prepare the public
advertisement containing necessary and desirable
information for those who might respond to a QBS
selection process and the criteria to be used for selection
A QBS selection panel shall be formed to evaluate the
responses determine the qualified respondents and



proceed to make a selection andor to submit a request for
proposals to such respondents

iv The QBS selection panel shall review all qualifications
submitted and shall where necessary and practical
interview not less than three proposers or such lesser
number as shall have submitted qualifications so long as
the purposes of competitive procurement meeting the best
interests of the city is achieved The QBS selection panel
shall evaluate the responses identify the qualified or

prequalified proposers and proceed to submit a request
for proposals to the highestranking prequalified
proposers and thereafter make a selection
recommendation to the BPP The QBS selection panel
shall make a written report of its selection the criteria used
and its recommendation to the board of public purchases
which shall maki the final decision and award The use of
such QBS processes shall be included in the purchasing
agents quarterly report to the BPP

v The city reserves the right to refuse to award or approve a

contract with or purchase from a bidder as a result of
prior facts and circumstances that resulted in increased
costs additional risks or liabilities or other damage
harmful to the best interests of the city reasons including
but not limited to the following
a The bidder having defaulted on a previous contract

and failed to cure such default resulting in
termination of the contract

b The bidder having failed without acceptable
justification to complete a contract within the
contract time

c The bidder having completed the material terms of
a contract neglecting or refusing to close out the
contract by delivering all required documentation
training warranties manuals and the like failing to
complete punchlist or warrantly work in a timely
manner as required by the contract or

d the bidder having made misleading or false
statements representations or wananties
concerning its financial stability personnel
qualifications experience capitalization
performance record absence of conflicts

b Qualitybased selection as a final selection process A QBS
selection process may be utilized in the purchase of special or

professional services without seeking price proposals when the
contracting officer determines that such services are unique or



that the nature of the project requires selection criteria where the
knowledge and experience of a bidder in similar or related
projects are paramount and the best interests of the city will be
served by the use of such process without considering price as a
determining factor in selection The contracting officer shall then
negotiate a proposed contract with the selected bidder with the
assistance of the office of the city attomey at compensation
determined by the contracting officer to be fair and reasonable to
the city considering the estimated value scope complexity and
professional nature of the services to be rendered Such selection
shall be conducted documented and recommended to the BPP
for approval in the same manner as described above for a
qualitybased selection as aprequalification process togetherwith the proposed contract The contract price shall be determined
in the following manner

After selection the contracting officer shall then enter into
negotiation of a contract preferably on a form included
with the bid documents with the selected vendor with the
assistance of the office of the city attorney using a
formula for compensation determined by the contractingofficer to be fair and reasonable to the city considering the
scope of the work the delivery or completion
requirements the complexity and specialized nature of the
services to be rendered and other relevant factors Such
formulas may include but are not limited to time and
materials with or without anottoexceed price cost of the
work plus a fee lump sum guaranteed maximum price
and the like The contracting officers rationale for
selection of a compensation formula shall be made in
writing to the purchasing agent prior to entering into
negotiations or

ii Should the contracting officer be unable to negotiate a

satisfactory contract with the selected vendor negotiations
shall be terminated in writing or

iii The contracting officer shall then enter into negotiations
with the next most qualified firm identified in the selection
process and still interested in the project Should the
contracting officer be unable to negotiate a satisfactory
contract with such vendor negotiations shall be terminated
in writing and shall proceed to negotiate with the next most
qualified firm and so on or

iv The city reserves the right to refuse to award or approve a

contract with or purchase from a bidder for the same
reasons as set forth in Section F above

c Reports For each purchase of services by QBS selection
process the contracting officer or QBS selection committee as



the case may be shall make a written report of all such purchases
to the BPP the city council the mayor the office of policy and
management and the finance department The purchasing agent
shall make a record of all proposals submitted giving the names
of the proposers indicating the successful proposer clearly
stating the basis for the selection made the basis for the award
made by the BPP including the originals of all proposals and any
other documents pertaining to the selection process and shall
keep the same in accordance with the citys records retention
policy

2 Requests for proposals

Except as otherwise authorized in this section for each
purchase of special or professional services in excess of
twentyfive thousand dollars 2500000 where professional
qualifications and experience are important but where price is the
paramount factor to be considered in making a selection such
purchase shall be made by competitive proposal process as
follows

a Preparation of the request for proposals The contracting
officer shall prepare a request for proposals All
requirements terms and conditions including bidder
qualifications desired by the cify shall be included in the
request for proposals Whenever possible a draft contract
shall be made a part of the request for proposals or other
bid documents The purchasing agent shall assist in the
preparation if needed For purchases that require an
additional funding appropriation the request for proposals
shall clearly state that the award of a contract is contingent
upon the appropriation of funds

b Solicitation of proposals
i The purchasing agent shall in cases where such

proposed purchase is not preceded by a QBS
prequalification process bar public advertisement
make notice of the request for proposals at least
once within ten working days prior to the deadline
to submit proposals unless the contracting officer
determines that a shorter response time is
required Whenever the service requested is so

specialized that few appropriate bidders can

reasonably be expected to respond to said notice
public advertisement shall also be made in other
media appropriate to the nature of the service
requested and calculated to result in a greater
number of proposals

ii The purchasing agent shall in addition to the public
advertisement solicit competitive bids from all



qualified responsible bidders on the bidder list
whose goods and services comply with the
purchases sought according to the citys
thencurrent commodity codes by sending them
copies of the public advertisement promptly after
publication Such mailings shall be solely for the
convenience of suppliers Any failure to provide or

delay in providing any supplier with such notice
shall not invalidate the bid process incur liability to
the city or prejudice it in any manner

iii The proposal process may be waived for any
critical emergency purchases or for any other
reasons contained in this section and in the
manner provided herein

c Evaluation of proposals

The purchasing agent with the assistance of the
contracting officer if any shall evaluate all
proposals based upon the criteria and
requirements stated in the request for proposals or
othenivise in accordance with BPP official policy
For purchases exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars 10000000 tkie QBS selection panel
shall if possible and practical conduct personal
interviews with the most qualified bidders

A QBS selection panel shall be formed to review
the proposals and make a selection according to

preestablished selection criteria and a price
proposal Such selection shall be conducted
documented and recommended to the BPP for
approval in the same manner as described above
for aqualitybased selection as a final selection
process The use of requests for proposal shall be
included in the purchasing agents quarterly report
to the BPP

iii The contracting officer or QBS selection panel as
the case may be shall not accept as responsive or
review any proposal received that is not in strict
compliance with this section

iv The contracting officer or QBS selection panel as

the case may be shall select the proposer whose
proposal is deemed to best provide the services
desired taking into account the requirements
terms and conditions contained in the request for
proposals and the criteria for evaluating proposals
and make a recommendation to the BPP which
shall make the final award



v For each purchase of services by competitive
proposal the contracting officer or QBS selection
panel as the case may be shall make a written
record of all proposals submitted giving the names
of the proposers indicating the successful
proposer clearly stating the basis for the selection
made and including the originals of all proposals
and any other documents pertaining to the
selection process and shall submit the same to the
purchasing agent foG keeping in accordance with
the citys records retention policy

3 Request for qualifications process followed by request for proposals
process A QBS selection process may be utilized to prequalify bidders
for tfe purchase of special or professional services in an amount greaterthan twentyfive thousand dollars 2500000 where the contractingofficer determines that such services are unique or that the nature of the
project requires selection criteria primarily influenced by the bidders
knowledge and experience in similar or related projects but that price is
also an important factor in making a selection The contracting officers
recommendation to conduct a request for qualifications process followed
by a request for proposals process with prequalified bidders shall be set
forth in writing and submitted to the purchasing agent for approval A
QBS selection panel shall be formed and shalt attempt to select a
minimum of three qualified bidders to receive a request for proposalsThe QBS selection panel shall make a written report of its selection
following review of responses to the request for proposals the criteria
used and its recommendation to the board of public purchases which
shall make the final decision and award The use of suchprequalification
process followed by a proposal process shall be included in the
purchasing agents quarterly report to the BPP

G Waiver of competitive processes in critical emergencies
Waiver of competitive bidding for critical emergency purchases
a The contracting officer shall set forth in waiting to the purchasing

agent the reasons why public advertising and competitive bidding
or other competitive process otherwise required by this section
should be waived Critical emergency purchases shall be limited
to those purchases reasonably necessary and only for such
duration as may be required to meet the emergency
circumstances described The purchasing agent shall initiallydetermine whether a critical emergency purchase is appropriate
and if so shall make a written recommendation to the mayor to
grant such a waiver The mayor shall consider the matter and
issue a mayoral bid waiver if appropriate or in hisher absence
the council president shall consider and decide such matter
before any critical emergency purchase may be made

b After the issuance of any mayoral bid waiver the purchasing



agent shall inform the contracting officer who shall submit written
certification of the selection of the particular vendor or vendors
and other pertinent details within five working days after such
purchase to the mayor the city council the director of finance the
director of the office of policy and management and the BPP
Such purchases shall be included in the purchasing agents
quarterly report to the BPP

2 Waiver of competitive bidding for qualified purchases

a Purchases other than critical emergency purchases may be made
without competitive bidding or other competitive processes
otherwise required by this section for the following reasons

i Only one qualified or available vendor or sole source can
be identified through reasonable efforts for example
where only one vendor is authorized or certified to do such
work where parts are available only through a single
dealer or distributor or where the work is proprietary or
relates to products that are proprietary and cannot be
substituted without adverse effects or complications

ii Purchase from a special source including but not limited
to a sale purchasing plan government discount or
tradein allowance will provide a lower cost than that
which would result from a competitive process

iii Time is a critical factor and such purchase could not have
been previously anticipated through proper advance
planning

iv The purchase involves items the prices of which are
federal or state regulated

b Tfe purchasing agent shall make written certification of the
reasons for the waiver of competitive bidding or public
advertisement the reasons for the selection of the particular
vendor or vendors and other pertinent details within five working
days after such purchase to the mayor the city council the
director of finance the director of the office of policy and
management and the BPP Such purchases shall be included in
the purchasing agentsquartetyreport to the BPP

H Duties of the purchasing agent contracting officers board of public purchases
1 Purchasing agent The purchasing agent has the primary responsibility

for working with contracting officers concerning the content of public
advertisements and the general content of all bid specifications and
specific city requirements issuance of public advertisements for all

competitive bids and QBS selection processes for goods general
services or special or professional services and such other
responsibilities set forth in the charter or ordinances or established by the
BPP The purchasing agent is responsible for reporting all material



exceptions deviations from or violations of this section to the mayor the
citr council the director of finance the office of policy and management
and the BPP within fourteen 14 days of learning of such matter

2 Contracting officer The contracting officer directly or through hisher
designee has primary responsibility for protecting the legal interests of
the city by ensuring that with the advice of the city attorney the citys
legal rights and remedies are protected in connection with such
purchase The contracting officer also has the primary responsibility to
develop the technical requirements and other projectspeck needs for
inclusion in the bid documents to disclose the selection process and
criteria to be used to specify the legal requirements for the contractual

relationship with the bidder including wherever possible the form of
contract to be entered into and the like The contracting officer is further
responsible to ensure that heshe has authority to make the subject
purclase the resulting contract has received all city approvals required
and upon the execution of any contract original executed documents or
true and complete copies are distributed promptly to the finance
department and the city attomey It is also the primary responsibility of
the contracting officer or hisher designee to attend to the details of the
purchase and the administration of the relationship with the selected
vendor over time including but not limited to ensuring that the contract is
adhered to problems disputes events of default and the like are

properly documented and promptly brought tp the attention of the city
attomey for advice or action all insurance policies and security eg
cash deposits bonds letters of credit guarantees remain current
uptodate and in place for the citys benefit and the contract
documentation and closeout thereof including where appropriate
obtaining all lien waivers and final releases guarantees operating and
service manuals employee training etc is completed

3 Board of public purchases The BPP shall be familiar with purchasing
department operations and other city operations involved in the
purchasing process and shall perForm the responsibilities assigned to it
in the Charter ordinances and this section Such responsibilities include
but are not limited to hearing appeals from decisions of the purchasing
agent handling bid protests reviewing appeals from decisions regarding
vendor disqualification establishing official purchasing policies working
rules and regulations evaluating periodic reports from the purchasing
agent taking appropriate action where required and otherwise ensuring
that the purchasing process operates as intended The BPP shall
circulate any proposed official policy working rule or regulation for review
and comment to the purchasing agent the mayor the city council the
department of finance the office of policy and management and the city
attorney thirty 30 days in advance of its intent to adopt and shall not
vote to adopt such proposal until it has received and considered
comments during such thirty 30 day period

I Contract requirements
Contract required A written contract between the city and a bidder is



required for any purchase that exceeds twentyfive thousand dollars
500000 Such requirement may be satisfied with a contract form
included in the bid documents and executed by the parties a contract
negotiated and executed by the parties after award or by the standard
terms set forth on the citys purchase order form acceptable to the office
of the city attorney as the same may be amended from time to time
Except for purchases where the contract is contained on the purchase
order any other contract shall be reviewed and approved as acceptable
by the office of the city attorney by the citys risk manager where
insurance indemnification guarantees bonds or other security is
required and by other appropriate city debartments and such contract
shall be signed by the mayor or other designee in the manner authorized
by the city council provided however that with respect to contracts
resulting from a competitive bidding process the purchasing agent is
authorized to execute such contracts in consultation with the office of the
city attorney Purchases for amounts less than seven thousand five
hundred dollars750000 shall be governed by the terms of the
purchase order acceptable to the office of the city attorney

2 Contract approval material modifications All contracts for purchases that
exceed twentyfive thousand dollars 2500000 shall require citycouncil approval and shall be signed by the mayor or the contracting
ofiicer with the following exceptions
a In cases where this section allows the berms of the contract to be

contained on the purchase order which does not require the
execution of additional contract document

b In cases where this section authorizes the purchasing agent to
sign all contracts that result from the competitive bidding process

c In cases involving consolidated purchasing the purchasing agent
is authorized to sign all contracts that result

d In cases where a critical emergency purchase is authorized the
mayor or his designee is authorized to sign all contracts that
fesult and

e In cases where a qualified purchase is authorized the mayor or
his designee is authorized to sign all contracts that result

If material modifications in the scope time or price of the
contract are desired after signing except in the case of a

construction contract or other contract that provides by its terms
for the submission consideration rejection or approval of
changes in scope time or price which changes are of the type
that were not anticipated at the time of bid and result from
unforeseen conditions changes in law latent defects in bid
specifications and similar changed circumstances such material
modifications shall require written approval by and signature of
the mayor in consultation with the director of finance the director
of the office of policy and management and the office of the city



attorney unless the BPP has adopted an official policy governingthe procedure for dealing with material changes
3 Contract extensions

a The contract time for performance in contracts having an originalvalue of greater than one hundred thousand dollars 10000000that resulted from a QBS selection process critical emergency
purchase or qualified purchase may not be extended unless the
contracting officer certifies in writing to the purchasing agent the
necessity of such extension and that no significant additional cost
to the city will result If the purchasing agent approves such
request such extension may not exceed six months except for
construction contracts where the contract contains provisions for
changes in schedule including suspension of work which shall
govern the duration of any such extension

b Any purchase that results from competitive bidding or competitive
proposal processes may be extended beyond the contract time
period for up to one additional year from the date of award without
additional bidding for one or more of the following reasons

i The vendor is the sole qualified or available provider This
shall include sole source or proprietary
servicemaintenance contracts for existing equipment and
vehicles

ii Additional competitive bidding or requests for proposals
would result in an increase in cost or significant disruption
of city operations Employee benefits contracts with
thirdparty providers and administrators are included in this
category

iii City services would have to be discontinued in the
absence of another vendor There shall be a sixmonth
limit on the contract extension

iv An option to extend the contract term is included in the bid
documents or the contract

c The contracting officer is responsible to give written notice to the
purchasing agent of such extensions the purchasing agent shall
keep a record of every contract extension and shall include such
extensions in hisher quarterly report to the BPP

4 Additional purchases from a vendor prohibited The city shall not
purchase any item of goods or services from a vendor that was not of the
type or closely related to the goods or services described in the bid
documents or the contract

J City right to setoffdelinquent property taxes owed

1 Right of setoffPursuant toCGS 12146b as amended the city has
the right to setoffagainst any payment due to a vendor or to withhold



payment from any vendor if any taxes levied by the city against any
vendor or its property both real and personal are delinquent provided
however that no such amount withheld shall exceed the amount of tax
plus penalties lien fees and interest outstanding at the time such setoff
or withholding of payment occurs Any vendor that has either been
selected by competitive bidding process has signed a contract or has
obtained a purchase order hereby authorizes the city to execute such
setoffor to withhold such payment from amounts otherwise due to the
vendor

2 Authority to setoff Upon the tax collectorsissuance of any delinquent
tax list the contracting officer or the comptroller shall have the authority
to setoffagainst any payment due to a vendor or to withhold payment to
such vendor the amount of any delinquent taxes due together with
penalties lien fees and interest outstanding

K Purchases through state and federal did lists cooperative agreements between
municipalities and the like

1 Use of other bid lists Procurements obtained by competitive bidding
conducted by the State of Connecticut by the Connecticut HospitalAssociation or its affiliates by the federal General Services
Administration or through cooperative associations or agreements
between and among municipalities may be utilized when the purchasing
agent determines in writing to the BPP that utilization of such
procurements would be in the best interests of the city provided
however that either the purchasing agent shall issue guidelines for the
proper utilization of such procurements or the BPP shall adopt an official
policy for the proper utilization of such purchases The purchasing agent
shall be responsible for the proper utilization of such other bid lists and
cooperative agreements and shall take proper precautions to prevent
misuse asheshe may deem to be in the best interests of the city

L Exemptions from this section

The sale or purchase of public utilities as defined under Connecticut law
are not subjectto the provisions of this section however any provider of a public
utility that seeks to do business with the city must meet the threshold
requirements of a responsive and responsible bidder under this section

M Reports to be prepared by the purchasing agent
1 Quarterly reports The purchasing agent shall prepare a written quarterly

report within thirty 30 days after the close of each calendar quarter
ending in the months of September December March and June in a
fiscal year and shall submit the same to the BPP with copies to the
mayor the city council the department of finance and the office of policy
and management Said reports shall contain information about the
following activities

a Purchases made by the competitive bidding process

b Purchases made by the competitive proposal process



c Waivers granted from competitive bidding or competitive proposal
processes including critical emergency purchases mayoral bid
waivers issued and qualified purchases

d Waivers granted from informal bid and proposal processes
e Contracts granted material extensions of scope time or price
f Contracts granted material modifications of terms and conditions
g Purchases made through federal or state bid lists or through

cooperative purchasing arrangements with associations or other
municipalities

h Violations or suspected violations ofthis section and

i
t Other activities required to be reported to the BPP herein

2 Annual list of purchases A listrof all purchases made by the purchasingagent shall be filed annually with the city clerk Said list shall include the
name address disadvantaged or minority business status of the vendorthe department board or commission making such purchase the typesof goods or services purchased and the total price paid by the city

N Audit

The citys internal auditors shall conduct an audit of purchasing activities
every three years or as otherwise directed by the BPP Notwithstanding this
requirement the department of finance office of policy and management or the
mayor may request an independent auditor to perform an audit of city purchases

O Violations and penalties

Any deliberate willful attempt to violate or circumvent the purchasing
process established by this section shall be a violation of the citys code of
ethics as the same may be amended from time to time and shall be dealt with
as appropriate by the ethics commission Any decision by the ethics commission
shall not prohibit the city from pursuing its other legal rights and remedies in
connection with such violations

P Purchases requiring use of other procedures

Notwithstanding the provisions of this section with regard to anypurchase that is funded in whole or in part by federal or state grant funding or
other assistance where the city is the applicant or directly or indirectly benefits
therefrom or as a condition of such funding or assistance the city is required tofollow the grantors procurement rules and regulations such other procurement
rules and regulations shall be followed in lieu of the purchasing processes
described in this section

Q Records retention All records of purchases made and related activities shall be
retained in accordance with state of Connecticut guidelines for retention of publicrecords

R Mandated contract terms incorporated by reference All terms required by law to



be inserted in a contract for particular purchases or purchases in generalincluding but not limited to equal employment opportunities affirmative action
goals and the like shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into anycontract described in this section as if fully such terms are set forth therein

Ord dated61906 part Ord dated61603

308080 Deleted

308090 Disqualification of vendors from doing business with the
cityProcedure

Purpose The standards for determining when a contractor vendor or consultant should
be disqualified from contracting with the city directly or as a subcontractor for another party
contracting with the city arad the procedures for disqualification are hereby established in order
to determine when such action is in the best interestsofthe city

A Definitions Used For purposes of vendor disqualification proceedings the
following definitions shall apply
Decision means the written determination by the hearing officer followingnotice to the vendor and an opportunity to be heard in accordance with the provisions of

this section with reasons for any action taken which decision shall be given to the
vendor within ninety 90 days following the last date of any hearing in the matter bycerti0ed mail return receipt requested

Hearing officer means the citys purchasing agent or in hisher absencehisher qualified designee
Period of disqualification means the period specified in a decision of the

hearing officer during which the vendor shall not be permitted to seek or obtain a
contract from or other arrangement to supply goods or services to the city which periodshall be no longer than two years duration for the violation that is the subject of the
decision

B Direct Basis for Finding Disqualification The hearing officer may disqualify a
vendor from seeking or obtaining a contract from or arrangement to supply
goods or services to the city for one or more of the following reasons

1 Conviction or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere for or admission
to the commission of a criminal offense as an incident to obtaining or
attempting to obtain a public or private contract or subcontract or in the
performance of such contract or subcontract

2 Conviction or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere or admission to
the violation of any state or federal law for embezzlement theft forgery
bribery falsification or destruction of records receiving stolen property or
any other offense indicating a lack of business integrity or business
honesty which affects responsibility as a municipal contractor

3 Conviction or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere or admission to
a violation of any state or federal antitrust collusion or conspiracy law



arising out of the submission of bids or proposals on a public or privatecontract or subcontract
4 A willful failure to perform in accordance with the terms of one or more

public contracts agreements or transactions

5 A history of failure to perform or of unsatisfactory performance of one or

more public contracts agreements or transactions
6 A willful violation of a statutory or regulatory provision or requirement

applicable to a public contract agreement or transaction
7 A willful violation of Section312130 of this title

C Conduct That May be Imputed to the Vendor For purposes of determining
whether a vendor should be disqualified the following conduct may be imputed
to the vendor

A

1 The fraudulent criminal or other seriously improper conduct of any
officer director shareholder partner employee or other individual
associated with a vendor may be imputed to the vendor when the conduct
occurred in connection with the individuals performance of duties for or
on behalf of the vendor and the vendor knew or had reason to know of
such conduct The term other seriously improper conduct does not
include advice from an attorney accountant or other paid consultant if it
was reasonable for the vendor to rely on such advice

2 The fraudulent criminal or other seriously improper conduct of a vendor
may be imputed to any officer director shareholder partner employee
or other individual associated with the vendor who participated in knew
or had reason to know of the vendors conduct and

3 The fraudulent criminal or other seriously improper conduct of one
vendor participating in a joint venture or similar arrangement may be
imputed to other participating vendors if the conduct occurred for or on
behalf of the joint venture or similar arrangement and these vendors
knew of or had reason to know of such conduct

D Mitigating Circumstances The existence of a cause for disqualification shall not
be the sole factor to be considered in determining whether the vendor shall be
disqualified In making a determination the hearing officer shall consider the
seriousness of the vendors acts or omissions and any mitigating factors

E Other Factors That May be Considered After a decision is rendered the city
council may reduce the period or extent of disqualification upon the vendors
request supported by documentation for the following reasons

1 Newlydiscovered material evidence
2 Reversal of the conviction or guilty plea upon which the disqualification

was based
3 Bona fide change in ownership or management of the vendor

4 Elimination of other causes for which the disqualification was imposed or



5 Other reasons the city deems appropriate
F Limited Exception from Disqualification When the Public Good Would be Served

The city may grant an exception permitting a disqualified vendor to participate in
a particular contract upon a written determination by the purchasing agent with
the advice of the city attorney that there is good cause in the interest of the
public for such action

G Notice and Opportunity to be Heard The city through its purchasing agent shall
give written notice to the vendor of the citys intent to commence a hearing to
determine whether the vendor should be disqualified under this section and shall
hold one or more hearings thereon in accordance with the provisions of Chapter54 Section 4166 et seq of the General Statutes then in effect The cityattorney is authorized and directed to assist the hearing officer in the dischargeofhisher duties under this section

Ord dated 7207 Ord dated61603

308100 Certified checks or bid bondsRequiredwhenProcedure
A All advertisements for the proposals or estimates for contracts when the several partsof the work to be done or the materials or supplies to be furnished under said contract

having a value in excess of or reasonably expected at the time of award to have a value
in excess of fifty thousand dollars 5000000 shall require such proposals orestimates to be accompanied by a certified check or bid bond drawn to the order of the
city for a sum which shall be ten percent per centum of the total amount of such
proposals or estimates provided however that target groups and SLBEs defined in
Section312130 of this title shall only be required to submit bid security for contracts
having a value in excess of or reasonably expected at the time of award to have a value
in excess of one hundred thousand dollars 10000000 Where a certified check orbid bond is required under this section the proposals or estimates of those bidders onlywho have furnished a certified check or bid bond shall be considered by the purchasingagent in the awarding ofany contract

B All such certified checks or bid bonds shall be returned to the unsuccessful bidders for
such contract after the office of public purchases shall have announced the award
thereof to the successful bidder Within ten days after he shall knave received notice of
the award to him of any contract or within such time as may be otherwise directed by the
purchasing agent the successful bidder shall fumish to the city a good and sufficient
performance bond with surety for the faithful performance of such contract in such
amount and containing such terms and conditions as shall be acceptable to the
purchasing agent and shall enter into such written contract as the policies ofthe office of
public purchases shall require The certified check or bid bond furnished to the office of
public purchases by the successful bidder shall be returned to him when he shall have
executed any written evidence of such contract which may be required by the office and
furnished the city with the performance bond provided in this section In the event that
any bidder whose proposals or estimates have been accepted does not fumish the citywith said performance bond within ten days from the date that such bidder is notified of
the acceptance of his proposals or estimates or within such time as may be otherwise
directed by the purchasing agent such certified check or bid bond and the funds



represented thereby shall be retained by the city not as a penalty but as stipulated
damages for his failure to execute such written contract and furnish such performance
bond

C Concession bids and where deemed advisable the bids for anybyproduct or personal
property to be sold through competitive bidding by the office of public purchases shall
require such proposals to be accompanied by a certified check or bid bond drawn to the
order of the city for the sum which shall be ten per centum of the total amount of such
proposal

D All such certified checks for bid bonds shall be returned to the unsuccessful bidders for
such contract after the ofiice of public purchases shall have announced the award
thereof to the successful bidder Within ten days after he shall have received notice of
the award to him of any contract or within such time as may be otherwise directed by the
purchasing agent the successful concession bidder shall furnish to the city a good and
sufficient performanpe bond with surety for the faithful performance of such contract in
such amount and containing such terms and conditions as shall be acceptable to the
purchasing agent and shall enter into such written contract as the policies of the office of
public purchases shall require Sale ofbyproducts or personal properly shall require a
bill of sale or contract

E The certified check or bid bond furnished to the office of public purchases by the
successful bidder shall be returned to him when he shall have executed in writing
evidence of such contract which may be required by the office and furnished the city
with the performance bond provided in this section

F In the event that any bidder whose proposals have been accepted does not execute
such written contract or furnish the city with said performance bond whichever is
appropriate within ten days from the date that such bidder is notified of the acceptance
of his proposals or within such time as may be otherwise directed by the purchasing
agent such certified check or bid bond and the funds represented thereby shall be
retained by the city not as a penalty but as stipulated damages for his failure to
execute such written contract and furnish such performance bond

Ord dated61906part Ord dated 122192 18 prior code 2277

308110 Public hearing on sale ofcityowned propertyAdvertisement
The city council shall hold a public hearing on the sale of any cityowned property not

less than seventytwo72 hours prior to any vote by the city council to approve or disapprove
the sale of such property The city clerk shall cause notice of such public hearing to be
published in a newspaper of general circulation no less than ten days prior to such public
hearing

Ord dated 122192 25 prior code 2247

308120 Prevailing union wage rate on all city contracts required
Each contract hereafter entered into by the city with any person for the construction

remodeling alteration or repair of any public building or of public works of any kind shall have
incorporated therein the following provision



Wages paid any mechanic laborer or workman employed under this contractshall be not less than the customary or prevailing rate of wages paid in the City ofBridgeport for the same type of work in the same trade or occupation as disclosed bythe records of the United States Department of Labor relative to the wage schedulesand rates in such trades and occupations in the area in which the City of Bridgeport islocated

Prior code 2288

308130 Insurance
A All insurance coverage for which the premium to be paid shall exceed the basicprovision of the existing law shall be purchased by the board of public purchases inconformance with its standard purchasing procedures
B The board of public purchases when it shall have awarded any insurance coveragepursuant to subsection A of this section shall thereupon notify the insurancecommission of its action

C In the event that the premium for any insurance coverage shall be less than the basicprovision of existing law the insurance commission shall make arrangements for thepurchase of the same

Prior code 2289

308140 Unauthorized activities prohibitedLiability
A No contracts undertakings commitments purchases or obligations shall be made orentered into by the city with any individual firm partnership corporation or other legalentity to provide or perform lobbying services or activities on behalf of the city or any ofits officials boards commissions or agencies without the approval ofthe city council Nofees shall be paid by the city or any of its officials boards commissions or agencies forlobbying unless funds have been expressly appropriated and identified for that particularpurpose within the adopted budget
B Any official officer or employee who authorizes expenditures or disburses funds inviolation of this section may be deemed personally liable therefor
Ord dated 122192 26 prior code 2290

308150 Penalty for violations ofSections308070308080 and308100
Any officer or employee or any member of any board commission department bureauor other agency of the city who shall violate any of the provisions of Sections 308070308080 and 308100 shall be deemed guilty of misconduct in office and shall be liable toremoval from office therefor

Prior code 2278



a

n

n

0

A
fD

5

f1
rt

n 1y
rN

N

p b
O A

O
r

fD v

Y1

v O O
z

c

x
d
v

m

W
y oo

Wn

o

yc

0

1

W



1

Res 2013 Refdto Ordinance Committee on 7anuary 21 2014 Cancelled Carried over to

February 3 2014

Proposed Ordinance Change

Sect 308070

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PURCHASING PROCEDURES OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

Be it ordained by the city council of the City of Bridgeport that the Municipal Code

of Ordinances Chapter 308 City Contracts and Purchasing Procedures append addin

Section 308070 Purchase of goods and general services Subsection afoliws
and renumbering the remaining subsections accordingly

ct t

NEW 7
c rn

n
B Purchase of eoods and eeneral services rn

T rn

services are required 3 an estimate of the cost of eoods or services 4 the

source of funds to pav for such eoods or services 5 certification by the director

of finance or the directorsdesienee that funds are available for the proposed

purchase in that yearsapproved budeet

2 Purchases not requiring competitive bidding Except for items the city requires
to be purchased from vendors selected during a consolidated purchasing process

competitive bidding through the purchasing agent is not required for purchases
between one dollar 100 and nine hundred ninetynine dollars 99900 provided
however that purchases shall not be deliberately split in amount artificially
staggered over time or be the subject of any other artifice in order to avoid the

requirement to utilize the competitive bidding process informal competitive
quotation process or another purchasing method otherwise required herein The

comptroller and the purchasing agent shall monitor such purchases and report any

questionable practices to the BPP within five days of becoming aware of such

practices

3 Purchases permitted by informal competitive quotation process Purchases of

goods or general services that are in excess of one thousand dollars100000 but

less than seven thousand four hundred ninetynine dollars 749900 see CGS

7148v as the same may be amended from time to time shall be based upon authorized

pricing methods provided however that purchases shall not be deliberately split in

amount artificially staggered over time or be the subject of any other artifice in

order to avoid the requirement to utilize the competitive bidding process or another

purchasing method otherwise required herein An informal competitive quotation
process shall be conducted as follows



a Price quotations either oral or written shall be solicited from at least three
vendors or service providers by one or more authorized pricing methods A valid
vendors or service providers documented refusal to quote shall qualify as a

quotation If the process yields less than three responsive and responsible bidders
or if it yields only a single responsive and responsible source for the purchase a

selection shall be made if such selection is in the citys best interests under the

circumstances The contracting officer shall promptly document the informal

competitive quotation process in writing to the purchasing agent

b A purchase of goods or general services shall be counted as one purchase for like
items Unlike items grouped together on one purchase requisition shall require
price notations only for those items on the purchase requisition that are in excess

of three thousand dollars 300000 The determination of like and unlike items
shall be based on the commodity codes assigned such items under the thencurrent city
financial system

c The purchasing agent may waive solicitation of informal competitive quotations
for a critical emergency purchase or for any other purchase for which a mayoral bid
waiver may be sought as provided herein

4 Purchases requiring competitive bidding Competitive bidding shall be used for
all purchases of goods and general services exceeding the sum of seven thousand five
hundred dollars 750000 See CGS 7148v as amended provided however
that purchases shall not be deliberately split in amount artificially staggered over

time or be the subject of any other artifice in order to avoid the requirement to

utilize the competitive bidding process informal competitive quotation process or

another purchasing method otherwise required herein

4 5 Consolidated purchasing

a Commonly used goods general services special and professional services The

purchasing agent shall make purchases that are commonly used by several departments
where the total annual purchase for each type of goods or services anticipated to be
used by such departments is in excess of twentyfive thousand dollars 2500000
per fiscal year in the aggregate in order to achieve the best price

b Exclusions from consolidated purchasing The purchasing agent may exclude

purchases from the requirements of consolidated purchasing provided that the

contracting officer submits a written request with justification for exclusion from

consolidated purchasing and the purchasing agent makes a written determination that

i No significant cost savings other efficiencies or benefits can be achieved

through consolidated purchasing or

ii The unique requirements of such purchase require that such purchase be made

separately from consolidated purchasing

c Requirements contracts price agreements The purchasing agent may at hisher

discretion purchase specific items under one procurement by procuring a master

requirements contract or a price agreement under which city departments may obtain

goods or services directly from the vendor In selecting such a vendor the total

cost of all goods or services at the expected quantities or dollar values to be

purchased shall be used in determining the total cost of the proposal or bid and the

selection shall be made on the basis of best value



d Planning for anticipated needs The purchasing agent shall solicit from the

various departments and contracting officers their anticipated requirements for goods
and services prior to each fiscal year and as appropriate shall invite

representatives of various departments to determine specifications for items of goods
or services to be obtained using consolidated purchasing for their common needs



N r
k

f
0113Consent Calendar

Application for Waiver to Extend Driveway Width 4
Entrances Located at the New Harding High School on

Bond Street

eort
of

DriIliE

OIY

ubfic safety attbrattortatioi

Submitted January 21 2014 Cancelled
Carried over to

February 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 8pecial Meeting

Adopted

Attest

City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



Y

D p

o

itp of ribgeortorrecttcut
yORPpR11TEe

e the GitpGauncil cif the Gitp ofOriQyeart
The Committee on Public Safety and Transportation begs leave to report and

recommends for adoption the following resolution

0113Consent Calendar

WHEREAS Municipal Code Section 1208030 sets forth the requirements for

driveway construction as no wider than 20 twenty feet at the sidewalk and no closer

together than 25 feet from each other and

WHEREAS Municipal Code Section 1208070 sets forth an application process
for any person desiring a permit for adriveway approach having a greater width than

twenty 20 feet at the sidewalk or any person desiring to establish two driveway
approaches for the same property which shall be closer together than twentyfive 25
feet and

WHEREAS an application for a permit 1o construct driveways has been duly
and properly submitted by the Director of Public Facilities to the City Council Now
therefore be it

RESOLVED That the City Council does hereby order the issuance ofapermits
to the applicant listed below for location and purposes herein specified

APPLICANT Antinozzi Associates
Architecture Interiors
271 Fairfield Avenue

Bridgeport CT 066041

PURPOSES Construction of Driveways
In excess of twenty 20 feet in width

LOCATIONS Bond Street New Harding High School



r

Report of Committee on Public Safety and Transportation0113 Consent Calendar

2

Respectfully submittedTHE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY
AND

Michelle A Lyoas Co hair

vA
Tack O Basta

Alfre Castillo

I Frino CoChari

k s
hard D S er Sr

c

Eneida L MartiaezWalker

chard M Paoletto J

City Council Date January 21 2014 Cancelled and Carried over toFebruary 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting



I
w

w

03 13 Conse

n

len r
w

nt Ca da

Executive Session Discussion and Potential Action as

Appropriate with respect to Certain Litigation
specifically the Pending Appeal concerning the
Stratford ZBAs Granting of a Variance for the New
Access Way Constructed by Mark IV Construction Co
Inc on Sikorsky Memorial Airport Property

eort
of

Commfttee
on

uic safety a1Yb racuortatfor

Submitted January 21 2014 Caacelled
Carried over to

February 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Adopted

Attest I
City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



pD p

O
A
O

itp of ribgorouuecricuryoAPpRATE ab

a the Gitp GJauncil of the Gitp ofCridyeert
The Committee on Public Safety and Transportation begs leave toreport and recommends for adoption the following resolution

0313 Conseat Calendar

RESOLVED That the Public Safety and Transportation Committeeheld an Executive Session Discussion on January 9 2014 and moved toAuthorize Approve Empower and Direct the City Attorneys Office andthe Airport Management to Proceed to Full and Final Settlement ofAllPending Litigation Involving the Relocation of the Access Way Off ofRoute 113 to Off of Sniffens Lane in Accordance with the Terms andConditions as Discussed in Executive Session and in Accordance withthe Prior Approval of the CitysAirport Commission be and hereby isapproved ratified and confirmed

Respectfully submitted
THE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

AND

TRANSPORTATION

C

K r

Michelle A Lyons CoC air

l

ck O Basta

Alfre Castillo

f

r i chard D S lter Sr

Eneida L MartinezWalker

M Paoletto Jr

City Council Date January 21 2014 Cancelled and Carried over to
February 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting



1

0913Consent Calendar PHOj

Public Hearing Ordered for February 2014 re

Disposition and Redevelopment of City Owned

Property located at 1752 Barnum Avenue

teort
of

Connfttee

on

C tbirottrtettt

Submitted February 3 2014 Cancelled

Submitted February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Adopted

Atte

pity

Approve

Mayor



D Ep

o

J itp of ribgeort ouuecticut
yDAPOAAtE

a the Gitp GJCUncil cfthe Gitp cfCridyepcrt
The Committee on ECD and Enviranment begs leave to report

and recommends for adoption the following resolution

0913Consent Calendar PHO

BE IT RESOLVED That a Public Hearing be held before the City Council on

Tuesday evening February 18 2014 beginning at 700 pm in the City Council

Chambers City Hall 45 Lyon Terrace Bridgeport Connecticut relative to the

Disposition and Redevelopment of City Owned Property located at 1752 Barnum

Avenue

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT

i

L av
Ly aN MartinezCoChair ack O BantaCoChair

t

Mary cBn eLee card DeJ s

Michelle A Lyons Michael J lla

Eneida MartinezWalker

Council Date February 32014 CANCELLED
February 42014 Special Meeting



1013Consent Calendar PHO

Public Hearing Ordered for February 18 2014 re

Disposition and Redevelopment of City Owned
Property located at 431435 8v 445449 Kossuth

Street

teort
of

ConYmittee
opt

CB ttbirotttnettt

Submitted February 3 2014 Cancelledl

Submitted February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Attest 7Y GG
City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



lD p0
0

itp ofrigeotouuecticut
RPpRATEe

a the 6itp GJauncil of the Gitp cfCridye6rt
The Committee on ECD and Environment begs leave to report

and recommends for adoption the following resolution

1013Consent Calendar PHO

BE IT RESOLVED That a Public Heaving be held before the City Council on

Tuesday evening February 18 2014 beginning at 700 pm in the City Council

Chambers City Hall 45 Lyon Terrace Bridgeport Connecticut relative to the

Disposition and Redevelopment of City Owned Property located at 431435 445449
Kossuth Street

RESPECTFULLY SUI3MITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT

L dia N Martinez CoCh

Mary ride ee

o

Mic elle A Lyons

Jack O BantaCoChair

1

chard DeJesu

Michael J ella

I

EneidaMartinezWalker

Council Date February 32014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting



1113Consent Calendar

Grant Submission re State Department of Energy and
Environment Protection DEEP Microgrid Design and
Installation Grant for Critical Facilities

teDrt
of

Commcfttee

Dl

QC birottittettt

Submitted Februay 3 2014 Cancelled

Submitted February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Adopted

Attest

City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



A

o

1Citp of ibgeort Couuecticut
1ORPOAATEO

e the Gitp GJeuncil of the Gitp cfOridyeert

The Committee on ECD and Environment begs leave to report
and recommends for adoption the following resolution

1113Consent Calendar

A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

Regarding the State of Connecticut Department ofEnergy and Environmental

Protection

Microgrid Design and Installation Grant for Critical Facilities

WHEREAS the State of Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental

Protection is authorized to extend financial assistance to municipalities in the form of

grants and

WHEREAS this funding has been made possible through the Microgrid Grant

Program and

WHEREAS funds under this grant will be used for the engineering procuring
constructing and operating of an electrical system capable of independent operation
island mode and grid connected operation to serve critical facilities in Bridgeport
Connecticut and

WHEREAS it is desirable and in the public interest that the City ofBridgeport
Department of Public Facilities submit an application to the State of Connecticut

Department ofEnergy and Environmental Protection in the amount of2975000 for the

Microgrid Design and Installation Grant for Critical Facilities Now therefore be it

hereby

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL

1 That it is cognizant of the Citys grant application to and contract with the

State of Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection to

engineer procure construct and operate an electrical system capable of

independent operation island mode and grid connected operation to serve

critical facilities located in Bridgeport Connecticut



H

i

Report ofCommittee on ECD and Environment

1113Consent Calendar

2

2 That it hereby authorizes directs and empowers the Mayor or his designee to

execute and file such application with the State Department of Energy and

Environmental Protection for the Micrcgrid Design and Installation Grant for

Critical Facilities and to provide such additional information and to execute

such other contracts amendments anidocuments as may be necessary to

administer this program

3 That if the power generation purchase power agreement contract for this

project is not approved by Full City Council that the City will not expend any

funds or create any financial obligations in relation to this project

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 8s ENVIRONMENT

tryl
Lydi N MartinezCoChair

Mary A Mc ride ee

ack O antaCoChair

chard De es

1Q

Michelle A Lyons Michael J M ell

Eneida MartinezWalker

Council Date February 32014 Cancelled
February 42014 Special Meeting



1513Consent Calendar

Grant Submission re State Department of Energy and

Environment Protection for America the Beautiful

Grant

eort
of

OIIYItYiee

OYC

C rtbirottmettt

Submitted Februap 3 2014 Cancelled

Submitted February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Attest Xo

City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



Fp0
O

itp of ribgeortouuecticut
RPORASE9lb

e the GitpGeuncil of the Gitp ofOridyep6rt

The Committee on ECD and Environment begs leave to report
and recommends for adoption the following resolution

1513Consent Calendar

A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council

Regarding the State of Connecticut Department ofEnergy and Environmental
Protection

America the Beautiful Grant

WHEREAS the State of Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental

Protection is authorized to extend financial assistance to municipalities in the form of

grants and

WHEREAS this funding has been made possible through the America the Beautiful

Grant Program and

WHEREAS funds under this grant will be used to implement a Watershed Based

Tree Planting Program to assist in the restoration cif the urban tree canopy throughout the

Pequonnock and Rooster River Watersheds in Bridgeport Connecticut and

WHEREAS it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of Bridgeport
Department of Public Facilities submit an application to the State of Connecticut

Department of Energy and Environmental Protection in the amount of12000 for the

America the Beautiful Grant Now therefore be it hereby

RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL

1 That it is cognizant ofthe Citys grant application to and contract with the State of

Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection to implement a

Watershed Based Tree Planting Program to assist in the restoration ofthe urban

tree canopy throughout the Pequonnock and Rooster River Watersheds in

Bridgeport Connecticut and



Report ofCommittee on ECD and Environment

1513Consent Calendar

2

2 That it hereby authorizes directs and empowers the Mayor or his designee to

execute and file such application with 1he State Department of Energy and

Environmental Protection for the America the Beautiful Grant Program and to

provide such additional information anal to execute such other contracts

amendments and documents as may be necessary to administer this program

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 8v ENVIRONMENT

r
L aN MartinezCoChair ack O ants CoChair

r

Mary A ride ee chard DeJes

G
Michelle A Lyons Michel M ella

Eneida MartinezWa cer

Council Date February 32014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting



0613Consent Calendar

Settlement of Pending Litigation with Joseph Diaz

ieort
Df

QDIIYriitteP

Dl

iCeIIDlPDUDer

Submitted February 3 2014 Cancelled
Sbmited February 4 2014 Sgecial 34ieetini

Adopted

Attest uD
CityClerk

Approved

Mayor



DG p

o

itp of tbgeottCouuecticut
V

yCORPORAT E06

a the GitpGQUncilf the Gitp ofOridyeart
The Committee on Miscellaneous Matters begs leave to report and recommends

for adoption the following resolution

0613Consent Calendar

WHEREAS a lawsuit in the following name was filed against the City ofBridgeport
andor its employees and investigation disclosed the likelihood on the part of the City for
which in the event ofsuit and trial the City might be held liable and

WHEREAS negotiations with the Plaintiffsattorney has made it possible to settle

this suit for the figure set forth below and the City Attorney therefore recommends the

following settlement be accepted Now Thereforete it

RESOLVED That the Comptroller be and hereby is authorized empowered and
directed to draw his order on the City Treasurer payable as follows

NAME ATTORNEY NATUREof CLAIM SETTLEMENT

Joseph Diaz Laura M Mooney Esq Dog Bite 6000000
Morrissey Morrissey
Mooney
Thomas Neary Building
203 Church Street

PO Box 31

Naugatuck CT 06770

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amount set forth as above are paid to the

Plaintiffs attorney in full payment settlement release and discharge of all rights and
cause of action described in the suit instituted by the above mentioned Plaintiff against
the City and known as docket numbers in the courts set forth provided however that the

Citys draft shall not be delivered to the Plaintiffs attorneys until the City Attorney has

been furnished with a full release and discharge in writing in each case approved by the

City Attorney or Deputy City Attorney



Report ofCommittee on Miscellaneous Matters
0613 Consent Calendar

2

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Patricia ain Chair

an Brann lly

Robert E Halstead

G
Jack O Banta

Council Date February 32014 Cancelled
February 42014 Special Meeting

e
Am izzoP C air



1213Consent Calendar

Resolution approving the 20142016 Bridgeport
Citizens Union Committee

ieort
of

Commfttee
oar

iceYiateouatter

Submitted ebruar 3 2014 Cancelledj
Submitted February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Adopted

Attest

City Clerk

Approved

Mayor



a ao
o

J itp of rtbgeot1Courecticut
yRPpAATE

a the GitpG6uncil cf the Gitp cfCrrdyeart
The Committee on Miscellaneous Matters begs leave to report

and recommends for adoption the following resolution

1213 Consent Calendar

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN AND CITIZENSUNION

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS Bridgeport City Ordinance 2108010 establishes a

Bridgeport CitizensUnion and

WHEREAS the Citizens Unior is incorporated into the
BridgeportsCitizen Participation Plan and

WHEREAS the purpose of the CitizensUnion is to provide the

citizens of Bridgeport with an organized structure for allowing them the
opportunity to participate in the planning and development of the Citys
Five Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plans which implement
the goals and objectives articulated in the Consolidated Plan and

WHEREAS a total of twenty 20 members will sit on the Citizens
Union and

WHEREAS one representative will be appointed by each of the

twenty Bridgeport City Council members for a total of twenty members
and

WHEREAS the proposed slate of new members is subject to City
Council approval Now therefore be it

RESOLVED that the Bridgeport City Council hereby approves the
attached 20142016 Bridgeport CitizensUnion Committee slate as

nominated by members of the City Council



As amended by substituition from floor on242014Special Meeting
City of Bridleport CitizensUnion

20142016 Raster

DistrictCouncil Member Nomination
130 Susan T Brannelly name

addres
Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

130hRick Torres Cecelia Manning
41 Calderwood Court

Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

1315L Jack O Banta Pia AlstonCarr
344 Hanover Street

Bridgeport CT

Phone2032432082
Email hiaaiston@yahoocom rxi

1315 Denese TaylorMoye Charles McNiel i

426 Lafayette Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

Phone9179573570 x
Email

132dPatricia Swain Brian McInerney
38 Denver Avenue

Bridgeport CT 06605

Phone
Email

132 Robert E Halstead Florisca Carter

68 Blackman Place

Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

133 Howard Austin Sr name
address
Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

133 Thomas C McCarthy Jeanette Herron

Board oi Education

2649 Main Street

nrn
an

rno
1



i Bridgeport CT 06606

Phone 2033454307

Cell 2032092788

Email Jinone@aolcom
134 Michelle A Lyons name

address
Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

134 AmyMarie VizzoPaniccia Charles Chuck J Hebert Jr

254 Thorme Street

Bridgeport CT 06606

Phone 2037502111work
2033716764home

Email Chuckhebertl0uemailcom
135 Mary A McBrideLee name

address
Bridgeport CT

Phone

Email

135 Richard D Salter Sr Latasha Marks

191 Lakeview Avenue

Bridgeport CT 06606

Phone2033451006
Email immarks69Cnyahoocom

136 Richard DeJesus Athenit Vila
127 Merriam Street

Bridgeport CT 06604

Phone19175088069

Email

136 Alfredo Castillo Rondall Miley
30 Salem Street

Bridgeport CT 06606

Phonet035400948
Email

137 Lydia N Martinez Maria Hernandez

211 Arctic Street

Bridgeport CT 06608

Phone

Email

137 Milta I Feliciano Carmen R Vargas
92 Grant Street

Bridgeport CT 06610

Phone2038957116



Email
138 Michael J Marella Jr Jasmine Amenda

294 Nutmeg Road

Bridgeport CT 06610

Phone 2032575345cell2032964803
home
Email amendajl@owlssouthernct edu

138th Richard M Paoletto Jr Amy Espinosa
146 Court D Building 65

Success Village
Bridgeport CT 06610

Phone 2036126079

2033843420
Email amvaowell34Cyahoocom

139 Eneida L MartinezWalker Dawn Spearman
168 Hollister Street

Bridgeport CT 06607

Phone2039131654
Email

139 Eneida L MartinezWalker Shonda DeVane

address
Bridgeport CT

Phone2037261303
Email

Prepared by the Department ofHousing and Community Development
February 4 2014



Report of Committee on Miscellaneous Matters

1213Consent Calendar

2

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
THE COMMITTEE ON MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Am e VizzoP iccia CoChair

Jack O Banta

Council Date February 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting

Pa cia Swain CoChair



0413

Norified on February 10 2014

M Anastasi City Attorney
A Wood Chief of Staff
A Nunn CAO

J Garcia Director Fublic Facilities
J Cottell Director Utilities

Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste Interlocal
Agreement

PD1
of

CDriYllitteP
OIt

Corrtract

Submitted December 16 2013

Tabled 8s Resubmitted on January 6 2014

Tabled 8s Resubmitted on January 21 2014

Cancelled

Carried over to February 3 2014 Cancelled
February 4 2014 Special Meeting

to in Adopted
c r

o
Qta LL Attest

wt r Cit Clerk
w y

Q

w
v r

Approved



Amended by substitution from Council floor on242014
Draft12014

GREATER BRIDGEPORT REGIONAL SOLID
WASTE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

017390764 23311



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

1 PURPOSE1

2 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP1

3 DURATION OF AGREEMENT 2

4 EFFECTIVE DATE 2

5 ESTABLISHMENT OF GREATER BRIDGEPORT REGIONAL SOLID WASTE
COMMITTEE 2

6 ORGANIZATION OF THE COMMITTEE 2

7 POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COMMITTEE 2

8 REGULAR SPECIAL AND EMERGENCY MEETINGS 5

9 VOTING QUORUM 5

10 BUDGET PAYMENT OF EXPENSES6

11 AMENDMENT WITHDRAWAL 7

12 MISCELLANEOUS7

01739076 4 23311 i



Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Waste
Interlocal Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT dated as of January 1 2014 is by and among the Municipalities

signatory to this Agreement Municipalities

1 PURPOSE The purpose ofthis Agreement is to create the Greater Bridgeport Regional

Solid Waste Committee the Committee as the body to deal with all matters affecting the

Municipalities in connection with the delivery ofmunicipal solid waste to one or snore resources

recovery facilities with which the Committee contracts each a Facility and the purchase of

electric power if the terms ofsuch delivery include the supply ofelectric power

2 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP a Each of the following Municipalities which has

ratified this Agreement pursuant to Section7339c of the General Statutes of Connecticut shall

be a member ofthe Committee

Town ofBethany
City ofBridgeport
Town ofEaston

Town ofFairfield

City ofMilford

Town ofMonroe

Town ofOrange
Town ofStratford

Town ofTrumbull

Town ofWestport
Town ofWoodbridge

b If an additional municipality is contractually entktled or obligated to deliver

municipal solid waste to the Facility through the Conunittee and ratifies this Agreement pursuant

to CGS Section7339c it shall become a member of the Committee with all rights and

obligations ofa member pursuant to this Agreement providedtJaathe Commitfieconsents to

such municipality becoming amember of the Committee by amajority vote

01739076 42331I



3 DURATION OF AGREEMENT The Agreement shall be in effect from its effective

date until June 30 2034 unless at any time there are not two Municipalities continuing to be

members in which event it shall automatically terminate

4 EFFECTIVE DATE The effective date ofthis Agreement shall be January 1 2014

5 ESTABLISHMENT OF GREATER BRIDGEPORT REGIONAL SOLID WASTE

COMMITTEE The Greater Bridgeport Regional Solid Wash Committee is hereby

established as authorized by Sections 7339a and 22a221c of the General Statutes of

Connecticut The Committee shall be an operating committee constituting a public

instrumentality and political subdivision ofthe State of Connecticut

6 ORGANIZATION OF THE COMMITTEE Within sixty days of the effective date of

this Agreement the representatives to the Committee designated by the member Municipalities

shall meet and organize and select from among the designated representatives aChairman Vice

Chairman Secretary Treasurer and such other officers as the representatives deem appropriate

The initial term ofoffice shall expire at 1200amMidnight on December 31 2014 New

officers shall be elected annually at the last regularly scheduledg ofthennlnittee in any

calendar year and each term ofoffice shall commence at 1201amon the first day of January
each year In the absence or incapacity ofthe Chairman the Vice Chairman shall be vested with

all powers ofthe Chairman

7 POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COMMITTEE a The Committee is

authorized to negotiate execute and deliver one or more contracts for the delivery ofmunicipal
solid waste to a Facility each between the Committee on the one hand and the operator of the

Facility on the other hand as it shall determine in its discretion to be in the best interests of the

01739076 4 23311 2



Municipalities as a whole Each contract shall be fol a terns the Committee shall determine but

shall not extend beyond the term of this Agreement The Committee is authorized to obligate

each Municipality to deliver municipal solid waste to a Facility which obligation may be in the

form of a commitment of a Municipality to deliver all municipal solid waste under its control

but the Committee may not obligate any Municipality to deliver a specific minimum tonnage of

municipal solid waste without the consent of the Municipality The Committee is authorized to

determine by resolution or in the contract the consequences to each Municipality of any default

in the performance of any delivery commitment made by the Committee or on behalf of any

Municipality The Committee shall be responsible forreprting the inerests of the

Municipalities in all matters relating to the delivery ofmunicipal solid waste to the Facility and

shall be the authorized representative of each Municipality for purposes of any such contract

including without limitation all matters stated therein to be determined by the Committee Any

such contract may provide for

i Arrangements for the billing and payment of tipping fees directly
between the operators ofthe Facility and aMunicipality

ii Arrangements for the delivery of electric power by the Facility to
the Municipality and billing and payment of electric power purchase payments directly between
the operators of the Facility and a Municipality or payment in the form of a credit against
tipping fees provided that the Committee shall not commit a Municipality for the delivery of
electric power if such commitment shall be in violation ofany existing electric power purchase
agreement by the Municipality ofwhich the Committee has been givenwrittex notice andor

iii Billing of an aggregate administrative cost whether or not in the
form of a per ton charge authorized and approved by the Committee to a Municipality and

payable to the Committee or to the operators of the Facility for further credit to the
Municipality

b The Committee shall analyze all reports communistionsand other data received

by it and advise member Municipalities and make recommendations s appropriate The

Committee shall inquire and investigate any matter deemed by it to justify such action and shall

01739076 4 23311 3



keep member Municipalities advised of all developments The Committee shall prepare and

distribute to the member Municipalities an annual report of its activities and recommendations

and such additional reports as deemed appropriate

c The Committee shall have the following additional powers

i to retain by contract or employ counsel auditors private consultants and

advisers

ii to conduct such hearings examinations and investigations as may be

necessary and appropriate to the conduct of its operations and the fulfillment of its

responsibilities

iii toexamine alternatives to disposal ofmunicipal solid waste at the Facility

including alternatives to renewal ofcontractual arrangements with respect to the Facility

and

iv to otherwise do all things necessary or desirable in connection with the

performance of its duties the conduct of its operations and its relationships with the

Municipalities and the Facility

01739076 4 23311 4



8 REGULAR SPECIAL AND EMERGENCY MEETINGS a The Committee shall

hold regular quarterly meetings or more frequent regular meetings at such times and places as

determined by the Committee In the event the Chairman of the Committee determines that it is

not necessary to hold a regular meeting heshe may cancel such meeting by giving written or

telephone notice ofsuch cancellation at least 24 hours prior to the time ofthe meeting

b The Chairman of the Committee may call a special or emergency meeting as

heshedetermines appropriate giving in each instance as much advance notice as circumstances

permit The Chairman or Secretary of the Committee shall promptly call a special or emergency

meeting upon the request ofrepresentatives from three or more member Municipalities

c The Committee shall conduct its affairs in compliance with the Freedom of

Information Act All meetings ofthe Committee shall be conducted in accordance with Roberts

Rules ofOrder except as otherwise provided herein

9 VOTING QUORUM a Each member Municipality shall be entitled to one

representative on the Committee Such representatives shall be the chief elected official of such

member Municipality or his or her designated alternate Representatives to the Committee shall

serve without compensation In voting upon all matters coming before the Committee the vote

ofeach representative shall be accorded aweight determined as follows

i The number derived by dividing 100 by the number of
Municipalities plus

ii The quotient derived by dividing the tonnage of municipal solid
waste delivered by or on behalf of the Municipality from which the representative is appointed
for the prior fiscal year dividend by the total tonnage ofmunicipal solid waste delivered by or

on behalf ofall Municipalities for the prior fiscal year divisor multiplied by 100 and

iii Dividing the sum ofa and b by two

01739076 4 23311 5



iv The resulting number shall be rounded to the nearest whole
number

v The weighted vote shall be determined and announced by the
Chairman of the Committee as of the first meeting of the Committee after the end of a fiscal
year prior to the conduct ofany other business of the Committee

b A quorum for conducting business at any meeting ofthe Committee shall consist

ofthe presence ofrepresentatives collectively holding amajority ofthe total weighted vote

c Unless otherwise specifically provided herein all matters shall be decided by a

majority vote of the total weighted vote of the representatives present Should the Committee

become involved in any dispute or controversy 1eguiring resolution by a third party the

Committee shall give priority to the use of Alternaiive Dispute Resolution means in resolving

such dispute or controversy

10 BUDGET PAYMENT OF EXPENSES The Committee shall prepare a proposed

annual expense budget and shall distribute it to the Municipalities fog comments at least 60 days

prior to the Committee voting to adopt a budget When a budget is adopted by the Committee

such budget shall be binding upon the Municipalities Ifthe means by which revenues to meet

such annual expense budget are collected are not provided forarermsany contract for

the delivery ofmunicipal solid waste to aFacility the Committee shall also approve amethod by

which each Municipality shall be bear a portion of such budget which method shall be

reasonably designed so that each Municipality bears a ratable portion of such budget based on

tonnage ofmunicipal solid waste delivered by or on behalf of such Municipality for the current

or most recently completed fiscal year

01739076 4 23311 6



11 AMENDMENT WITHDRAWAL TheAlreement may be amended by vote of the

legislative bodies oftwothirds of the member Municipalities

A member Municipality may withdraw from the Committee as of right at the end of the

current term not including any unexercised options to extend such term ofa contract for the

delivery of its solid waste to a Facility provided such Municipality gives notice to the

Committee at least six months prior to the date ofwithdrawal

In addition member Municipality may request permission from the Committee to

withdraw from the Committee at any time but any such withdrawal shall be subject to approval

by a majority of the total weighted vote of the Municipalities eapprovalf a request to

withdraw shall not be unreasonably withheld but such approval may be conditioned by the

Committee in the Committeesdiscretion as to time breakage costs damages or other matters

and on such withdrawal not being in breach of any contract for delivery of municipal solid waste

then in effect

12 MISCELLANEOUS

121 Binding Effect ofAgreement This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and

shall be binding upon each ofthe Municipalities and their respectivesueeessorsariassigns

122 Entire Agreement The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute the entire

agreement among the Municipalities with reference to their obligations to each other relating to

the Facility

01739076 4 23311



123 Severability In the event any provision ofthis Agreement shall be held invalid or

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction such holding shall not invalidate or render

unenforceable any other provisions hereof

124 Relationship of the Parties Except as otherwise explicitly provided herein

nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute any party hereto a partner agent or

legal representative ofany other party thereto or to create any fiduciary relationship between or

among such parties

125 Notices All notices or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently

given and shall be deemed given when mailed by first class mail postage paid to each

representative as follows

To the Town ofBethany Connecticut

The Town ofBridgeport
Town Hall
40 Peck Rd

Bethany Connecticut 06524
Attention First Selectman

To the City ofBridgeport Connecticut

The City ofBridgeport
City Hall
Room 204
45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport Connecticut 06004
Attention Mayor

To the Town of Easton Connecticut

The Town ofEaston
Town Hall
225 Center Road

Easton Connecticut 06612
Attention First Selectman

01739076 4 23311 g



To the Town ofFairfield Connecticut

The Town ofFairfield
Town Hall

611 Old Post Road

Fairfield Connecticut 06430
Attention First Selectman

To the City ofMilford Connecticut

The City ofMilford
City Hall

Milford Comnecticut 06460
Attention Mayor

To the Town ofMonroe Connecticut

The Town ofMonroe

Town Hall

7 Fan Hill Road

Monroe Connecticut 06468
Attention Town ManagerFirst Selectman

To the Town ofOrange Connecticut

The Town ofOrange
Town Hall
617 Orange Center Road

Orange Connecticut 06477
Attention First Selectman

To the Town ofStratford Connecticut

The Town of Stratford
Stratford Town Hall
2725 Main Street

Stratford Connecticut 06497
Attention Mayor

To the Town ofTrumbull Connecticut

The Town ofTrumbull
Town Hall

5866 Main Street
Trumbull Connecticut 06611
Attention First Selectman

To the Town ofWestport Connecticut

01739076 4 23311



The Town ofWestport
Town Hall
110 Myrtle Avenue

Westport Connecticut 06880

Attention First Selectman

To the Town of Woodbridge Connecticut

The Town ofWoodbridge
Town Hall

11 Meetinghouse Lane

Woodbridge Connecticut 06525

Attention First Selectman

Notices to the Committee shall be given to the notice of the Municipality whose representative
is serving as Chairman at the time ofgiving ofthe notice

126 Law Governing Construction ofAgreement The law ofthe State of Connecticut

applicable to contracts made and to be performed in such State shall govern the construction of

this Agreement

01739076 4 23311 10



This Agreement has been approved by the vote of the legislative body of each of the

following towns and cities

Date ofApproval
By Legislative Bodv

Town or City

TOWN OF BETHANY

By
Its

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT

By
Its

TOWN OF EASTON

By
Its

TOWN OF FAIRFIELD

By
Its

CITY OF MILFORD

By
Its

TOWN OF MONROE

By
Its

TOWN OF ORANGE

By
Its

TOWN OFSTITFflRD

By
Its

01739076 4 23311 11



TOWN OF TRUMBULL

By
Its

TOWN OF WESTIBT

By
Its

TOWN OF WOODBRIDGE

By
Its

01739076 4 23311 I2


	Public Notice
	Minutes
	Agenda: Special Meeting February 4, 2014
	Public Hearing Notice: Item# 04-13
	Item# 17-13
	Item# 18-13
	Item# 19-13
	Item# 21-13
	Item# 22-13
	Item# 23-13
	Item# 24-13
	Item# 25-13
	Item# 16-13
	Item# 20-13
	Item# 01-13
	Item# 03-13
	Item# 09-13 (PHO)
	Item# 10-13 (PHO)
	Item# 11-13
	Item# 15-13
	Item# 06-13
	Item# 12-13
	Item# 04-13



